pISSN: 2220-7562 eISSN: 2617-9482 Recognized by PMDC

JBUMDC

Journal of Bahria University Medical & Dental College

Volume 9 Issue 4, October - December 2019



Bahria University Medical & Dental College Adjacent PNS SHIFA, DHA Phase II, Karachi

JBUMDC

Journal of Bahria University Medical & Dental College

Peer Reviewed Multidisciplinary Quarterly Published Journal ISSN (print): 2220-7562, ISSN (online): 2617-9482

Recognized by PM&DC (IP/0072)

Online edition is available at URL: https://jbumdc.bahria.edu.pk,

Indexed with Index Medicus for the Eastern Mediterranean Region (IMEMR),

ROAD Directory of Open Access Scholarly Resources at https://portal.issn.org/

Pakmedinet at www.pakmedinet.com/jbumdc,

Google Scholar at https://scholar.google.com.pk/,

Bahira University DSpace Repository at http://111.68.99.22:8080/xmlui/handle/123456789/6388,

Pakistan Scientific and Technological Information Center (PASTIC) at http://pastic.gov.pk/

Correspondence Address:

Editor, JBUMDC, Bahria University Medical & Dental College, Adjacent PNS SHIFA,

DHA Phase II, Karachi Pakistan

C +92-21-35319491-9

https//jbumdc.bahria.edu.pk

editor.bumdc@bahria.edu.pk

f https://www.facebook.com/jbumdc/, https://www.facebook.com/journal.bumdc.7

Published by: Bahria University Medical & Dental College

All rights are reserved with the Publisher. No part of this publication may be reproduced, distributed, or transmitted in any form or by any means, including photocopying, recording, or other electronic or mechanical methods, without the prior written permission of the publisher.



JBUMDC

Journal of Bahria University Medical & Dental College

Patron-in-Chief Rear Admiral Habib ur Rehman Qureshi HI(M) Rector Bahria University Patron Rear Admiral Imtiaz Ahmad (R) HI(M) Director General BUMDC

Editor-in-Chief Asadullah Khan **Editor** Iqbal Hussain Udaipurwala Managing Editor Nadia Khalid

Associate Editors Shakeel Ahmed Daud Mirza Kulsoom Fatima Rizvi Khalid Aziz Assistant Editors Samreen Iqbal Shama Asghar Saman Hakeem Kiran Mehboob Ali Bana Ammara Hameed

Members Advisory Board - BUMDC

Ambreen Usmani (BUMDC) Beenish Fatima (BUMDC) Hassan Ali (BUMDC) Khalida N. Abdullah (BUMDC) Kulsoom Fatima Rizvi (BUMDC) Mushtaq Ahmed (BUMDC) Naheed Sultan (BUMDC) Nasim Karim (BUMDC) Nighat Rukhsana (BUMDC) Sajid Abbas Jaffri (BUMDC) Sameer Shahid Ameen (BUMDC) Syed Ahmed Omer (BUMDC) Tabassum A Qadeer (BUMDC) Wahab Bukhsh Kadri (BUMDC)

Members Advisory Board - National

Hussain Mehdi (JMDC) M. Shuja Farrukh (DUHS) Munawar Ansari (LUMHS) Nighat Huda (LNH) Qamar Jamal (ZMU) Rafat Murad (UMDC) Salman Mutiullah (JMDC) Tahir Khadim (CMH-MIMS)

Members Advisory Board - International

Mukhtiar Baig (KSA) Aamir Omair (KSA) Irfanullah Siddiqui (KSA) Sadiqa Syed (KSA) Ambreen Ahmed (USA) Shamaun Razi (KSA) Farida Habib (KSA) Raheela Hafeez (USA) S. Moazzam Zaidi (Newzeland)

Technical Assistant Mirza Hassan Ahmed **Plagiarism Check** Ghulam Ashdar

Statistician Muhammad Faisal Fahim

JBUMDC

Journal of Bahria University Medical & Dental College Volume-9, Issue-4. October - December 2019

CONTENTS

Editorial	
Are We Ready For The Paradigm Shift In The Health Care System Of Pakistan? Inayat H. Thaver, Nadia Khalid	255
Original Articles	
Effect Of <i>Citrullus Lanatus</i> Juice On Hemoglobin, Red Blood Cells And Liver Enzyme; An Experimental Study	257
Shahid Ali, Nuzhat Sultana, Muslim Abbas, Zareen Naz, Muhammad Akbar Hassan, Muhammad Abid	
Risk Factors Associated With Health And Wellness of Professional Automobile Drivers Of City Karachi, Pakistan	261
Samira Faiz, Farhan Muhammad Qureshi, Sehrish Zahra, Seema Nigah-e- Mumtaz	
Perception Regarding Oral Health Among Patients Visiting Dental OPD Saima Asim, Syed Muhammad Zulfiqar Hyder Naqvi, Syed Imtiaz Ahmed Jafry, Shikoh Naz	266
Neonatal Outcomes In Cord Clamping And Its Association With Hematological Parameters. Zara Jamali, Shazia Naseeb, Saba Khan, Khadija Bano	271
Awareness Of Medical Students Regarding Periodontal Disease In Diabetic Patients In A Private Dental	275
College of Karachi Natasha Fatima, Saima Mazhar, Mushtaq Ahmed, Umair Aslam	
Association of Physical activity levels and BMI Among Doctor of Physical Therapy Students of a Private College from Karachi	281
Khalid Aziz, Ayesha Afridi, Abida Arif, Ghousia Shahid, Muhammad Faisal Fahim, Rabia Khan	
Association Of Vitamin D Deficiency With Type 2 Diabetes Sehrish Shafique, Rana Ansari, Hamidullah Ariff, Sajid Abbas Jafri, Naveed Faraz	286
Risk Factors Associated With Sino-Nasal Polyposis And Its Relationship With The Occupational	290
Inhalants Qaisar Sajad, Ayub Musani, Faheem Ahmed Khan	
Awareness Regarding Minimally Invasive Dentistry among Dentists of Karachi Sara Ikram Khan, Shama Asghar, Adeena Abid, Farwah Aftab	294
Patterns Of Hysterosalpingographic Findings In Infertile Patients Presenting In A Tertiary Care Hospital	299
Pari Gul, Shama Jogezai, Fahmida Naheed, Palwasha GulPari Gul, Shama Jogezai, Fahmida Naheed, Palwasha Gul	
Outcome Of Manual Vacuum Aspiration Vs Surgical Evacuation Fozia Akmal, Sadia Suboohi, Saba Pario, Sugra Abbasi, Shahanaz Hassan Siddiqui	303
Comparison Of Diacerein-Ginger With Diacerein Alone In Treating Knee Osteoarthritis Mehtab Munir, Shahid Mustafa Memon, Sajid Abbas Jaffri, Khalid Mustafa Memon	308
Medical Education - Original Article	
Assessment of Teaching Strategy among Undergraduate Medical Students of Clinical Sciences Sadaf Jabeen, Asad Raza Jiskani, Hina Khan, Fouzia Kirmani, Nighat Seema, Devi Kumari	312
Review Articles	
Diagnosis Of Endometriosis In The Light Of Prevalent Theories ArfaAzhar, Rabiya Ali, Mohummad Hassan Raza Raja, Rozeena Baig, Rehana Rehman	316

Case Report	
Huge Thyroglossal Duct Cyst Mimicking As Goiter In An Adult Man Iqbal Hussain Udaipurwala, Sana Muhammad Sadiq, Sohail Aslam	321
Commentry	
Reasons of Diagnostic Errors and the Ways to Overcome among Medical Residents Shafaq Sultana, Farhat Fatima	324
Letter to Editor	
Medical Marijuana: A Hope For Resistant Epilepsy? Arsalan Anwar, Sidra Saleem	326
Author Index	327
Subject Index	331
Instructions to Author	

Are We Ready For The Paradigm Shift In The Health Care System Of Pakistan?

Inayat H. Thaver, Nadia Khalid

I

I

Pakistan's health care indicators and accomplishment of its national as well international goals/targets though improving but are lagging the expected achievements¹. The country is at a crossroads of having the demographic as well the epidemiologic transitions; besides these, social as well as mental issues are also increasing². There is also a challenge of urbanization³ with its consequent flourishing of squatter settlements adding to burden on the health system.

Our health care systems have been traditionally focused on rural areas and catering for mother and child health, including the communicable diseases (especially in children) as they had been the main causes of mortality and morbidity⁴. Therefore, both curative and preventive (including promotive) care in the form of various levels of care from primary to tertiary and the famous Primary Health Care (in the aftermath of Alama Ata Declaration) have targeted mainly Communicable Diseases and some of the Non-Communicable Diseases (NCD)⁵. The selective NCDs that were considered such as cardio-vascular and metabolic disorders are mainly being treated and not prevented.

Similarly, demographically, we have moved on to 'population bulge' with a maximum proportion of adolescents and increasing trend of longer survival having older people⁶. Both these groups (adolescents and old) have got their emotional, social, reproductive and health requirements. The situation is further aggravated by the mushrooming but unregulated private (for-profit sector); perverse healthseeking behaviors, indiscriminate use of antibiotics and selfmedication. The old-age health delivery systems, stereotype (and focused on selective health issues) training institutions (and trainers) and lop-sided human resource production are not even mentally ready to think about these new emerging challenges. Besides, our EPI (Expanded Program for Immunization) and the vertical programs such as TB, Malaria, HIV/AIDS and others are yet to be controlled; the Polio eradication efforts are still not satisfactory⁷. We are also encountering epidemics of Dengue, HIV/AIDs, and Congo Fever etc. The geographical spread of these as well NCDs such as Diabetes, Hypertension, Cardio-vascular Diseases

Inayat Thaver

I

I

I

L

Professor, Head of Community Health Sciences Bahria University Medical and Dental College, Karachi

Nadia Khalid Sr. Lecturer Department of Community Health Sciences Bahria University Medical and Dental College, Karachi

Received: 23-07-2019

Accepted: 01-10-2019

and mental/psychological problems are alarmingly increase with its health and financial consequences in terms of both treatment and rehabilitation and productive years lost.

The current malnutrition status, illustrates a combination of both undernutrition as well as the over nutrition or obesity⁸. Both male and female and even adolescent besides small children are victims of this status. Thus according to Epidemiological Transition, we are in the third phase of transition, wherein we are faced with the challenges of both communicable as well as non-communicable diseases along with old age and the big group of adolescent and malnourished population.

Pakistan's current government health care service delivery system is mostly focused for rural areas, with the probable exception of having the 'tertiary hospitals' located in larger cities⁹. Thus the 40%+ population residing in urban areas (half of which are in squatter settlements) have the main access to the tertiary hospitals; this is leading to the overcrowding and taking extra load of hospitals for just primary level health care facilities. Since there are inadequate outreach facilities in urban areas (especially in squatter areas), people are more used to seeking care by the nearby General Practitioners (GPs) or quacks, adding to their out-of-pocket expenditure¹⁰. Let us not forget the emerging trends in morbidity & mortality due to trauma and injuries including various disasters which are posing another burden to our ailing health system¹¹.

Pakistan has original data sources in health, through various surveys such as Multiple Indicator Cluster Survey (MICS), Pakistan Demographic Health Survey (PDHS), National Nutrition Survey (NNS), Survey of Bureau of Statistics and other government supported institutions. We also have documented health policy and strategic approaches, however until now all of these have not been translated into implementation plans and improved health systems to address these emerging problems. The paradigm shifts are bound to happen, and we can already see the indicators related to high population growth, malnutrition, rapid urbanization, uncontrolled communicable and increasing proportions of non-communicable diseases all being addressed by same old system having human resource who emphasize more on curative care¹². The usual approach of having another "vertical" program is not going to make a big difference, as there is a growing feeling of having integration of programs; one example has been the IRMNCH (Integrated Reproductive Maternal & Neonatal Health) Program. Unfortunately, there is no organized program for addressing the urban poor living in sums; the attention to over nutrition is the least; the oldage people are being neglected; common psychiatric problems (such as anxiety, depression) are treated as having somatic symptoms related to physical problems and for noncommunicable diseases, we are building the hospitals or specialized/state-of-art departments in hospitals.

How long should we be treating these above diseases and their consequences by neglecting the basic premise that, all of them, with few exceptions, can fairly well be prevented at an early stage; and healthy life style approaches can be easily promoted and implemented. We cannot take an ostrich approach and either ignore or wait for a miracle to happen through some international donor. We have to bring order to our own house. Each day wasted is accumulating more and more problems with consequent disastrous health and development outcomes. Considering the current sociopolitical, economic and security situations, the paradigm shift by the government may not be forthcoming though the WHO guidelines, recommendations and approaches are available. This may be because, "True paradigm shifts represent drastic, sometimes uncomfortable change. It is not surprising, therefore, that these events can be met with resistance as organizational leaders step outside their comfort zones".

We have traditionally been waiting for the government to take some action; let us also not forget that "Health is also each one of us' responsibility". A large difference can be made, If the medical, health and paramedic fraternity can make just an extra effort to spend some time to talk about (health education) how to prevent a disease that the patient has presented; and also encourage him/her for maintaining a healthy life style. Inspired by the quote of Gabriela Mistral I wish to extend it to all the population, by saying "To them, we cannot answer 'tomorrow', their (people) name is today".

REFERENCES:

- 1. Ali, S., Farooq, F., & Chaudhry, I. S. (2012). Human Capital Formation and Economic Growth in Pakistan. Pakistan Journal of Social Sciences, 32(1), 229-240.
- 2. World Health Organization. Country Cooperation Strategy for WHO and Pakistan 2011–2017. Eastern Mediterranean. Regional Office. Cairo: 2013
- 3. Kugel man, M. 2014. Urbanization in Pakistan: Causes and Consequences. NOREF Expert Analysis
- 4. Health system profile of Pakistan. Regional Health Systems Observatory- WHO, 2007
- Mortality Collaborators GBD Global, regional, and national under-5 mortality, adult mortality, age-specific mortality, and life expectancy, 1970-2016: a systematic analysis for the Global Burden of Disease Study 2016. Lancet. 2017; 390:1084–150
- Durr e Nayab. Demographic dividend or Demographic threat in Pakistan. Pakistan Institute of development Economics, working Papers 2006:10
- Hussain SF, Boyle P, Patel P. Eradicating polio in Pakistan: an analysis of the challenges and solutions to this security and health issue. Global Health. doi: 10.1186/s12992-016-0195-3
- 8. National Nutrition Survey 2018. UNICEF Pakistan
- 9. Zahid G, Ali N, Bhutta ZA. Health Systems in Pakistan. In: Bhutta ZA, editor. Reproductive, Maternal, Child Health and Nutrition in Pakistan: opportunities for change. Karachi: Paramount Publishing Enterprise; 2013. p. 1-17
- Sheikh, B. T., Rabbani, F., Safi, N., & Dawar, Z. (2010). Contracting of primary health care services in Pakistan: Is upscaling a pragmatic thinking? The journal of the Pakistan Medical Association. 2010;60(5): 387.
- 11. Jennifer R. Davis, , Wilson S, Brock-Martin A, Glover S, and Erik R. The Impact of Disasters on Populations With Health and Health Care Disparities. Disaster Med Public Health Prep. 2010; 4(1): 30–38.
- 12. Islam S, Purnat TD, Phuong NTA. Non-Communicable Diseases (NCDs) in developing countries: a symposium report. Globalization and Health 2014; 10(81): 1-7



Effect Of *Citrullus Lanatus* Juice On Hemoglobin, Red Blood Cells And Liver Enzyme; An Experimental Study

Shahid Ali, Nuzhat Sultana, Muslim Abbas, Zareen Naz, Muhammad Akbar Hassan, Muhammad Abid

ABSTRACT:

Objective: To determine effect of citrullus lanatus juice on hemoglobin and Serum Glutamic Pyruvic Transaminase (SGPT) level.

Study design and setting: It was an experimental study conducted on healthy rabbits for sixty days in the research department of pharmacy University of Karachi.

Methodology: Current study was planned to evaluate effect of *Citrullus lanatus* juice on red blood cells, hemoglobin and liver enzyme. 60 days study was performed at 2 different doses i.e 3and 6ml/kg on rabbits. These rabbits were from either gender and were divided into 3 groups their weight ranges from 1200 to 1800 grams. Group A is control group (Normal saline 6ml/kg), Group B is treated group (3 ml/kg), Group C is treated group (6ml/kg). After taking mean of all values they are compared with control group. Significance of mean can be estimated by Tukes Post Hoc Test. P<0.05 estimated as significant.

Results: It was found that count of red blood cells rises significantly along with rise in hemoglobin level. As far as liver enzyme serum glutamate pyruvate transaminase (SGPT) was concerned its concentration decreases slightly.

Conclusion: Citrullus lanatus juice contain ingredients which are important for RBC hemoglobin and synthesis .It also contains important antioxidants that have organoprotective role due to which SGPT level decreases even in healthy animals as compared to control groups.

Key words: Citrullus lanatus, Red Blood Cells, Hemoglobin, SGPT

INTRODUCTION:

World health and food agriculture organization propose better diet for every person which should includes diet rich in fiber, less amount of fat, carbohydrates in the form of fruits and vegetables and their daily intake should not be less than 400gm, daily diet should also include cereals and legumes not less than 30gm¹. Vegetables and fruits are the major source of vitamins for human being and animals. Only fresh pulp of fruit consumed while leaving seeds and

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

Shahid Ali Assistant Professor, Department of Pharmacology Bolan University of Medical and Health Sciences, Quetta Email: drshahidali2009@gmail.com
Nuzhat Sultana Assistant Professor, Department of Pharmacology Karachi University
Muslim Abbas Assistant Professor, Department of Pharmacology Jinnah Medical and Dental College
Zareen Naz Assistant Professor, Department of Pharmacology Liaquat College of Medicine and Dentistry
Muhammad Akbar Hassan Assistant Professor, Department of Pathology United Medical and Dental College
Muhammad Abid Assistant Professor, Department of Pharmacology Bolan University of Medical and Health Sciences, Quetta
Received: 27-02-2019 Accepted: 12-09-2019

rinds in most countries. Fruits comprise of 85% water, small varying amount of fats proteins and carbohydrates are also present, carbohydrates comprises of cellulose while small amount of starch and sugar is also present. Micronutrients are richly present in fruits which includes carotene or provitamin A, Ascorbic acid, Vitamin k, Riboflavin, Iodine, Iron and other minerals².

Citrullus lanatus fruit is also called as Egusi watermelon, Egusi melon, Desert watermelon, West African watermelon and cooking melon³. It belongs to Cucurbitaceae family⁴. The plant of Citrullus lanatus is ascending or scramble up nature. It is yearly plant with many herbaceous. Stem of plant is hard and sturdy having length of about 3 meter; older part of plant is lacking hair while young fresh parts have yellow to brownish dense woolly hairs. Leaves of plant are 60 to 200mm in length and 40 to 150mm in breadth having both rough surfaces, these leaves are usually lobed or double lobed having largest central lobe. Stalks of leaves are hairy having length of 150mm, single plant contains flowers of both male and female sex (Monoecous). Stalk of flower is hairy having length of 40mm. Shape of fruit is usually subglobose having diameter of about 200mm and its stalk is 50mm in length^{5,6,7,8}.

It is evident from history that watermelon was first harvested 5000 years ago in Egypt and then it spreads to different parts of world. China is considered as highest grower of watermelon presently followed by other countries like Korea, Turkey, Iran and USA^{9,10,11}.

Nutritional values of 100gm of watermelon consumption yields 30 kcal. Water content is 92%, carbohydrates 7.55% out of which sugar is 6.2% and dietary fiber includes 0.4%. It is also rich source of Caretnoids, Flavonoids and Citrulline. Watermelon is cholesterol and fat free therefore considered as fruit of low calories^{12,13}. Watermelon also contains different minerals like calciu about 8mg, phosphorus 9mg and iron 0.17 mg vitamins include ascorbic acid 9.6 mg, folate 2mg, niacin 0.2 mg, riboflavin 0.02 mg and thiamine 0.08 mg¹⁴.

Concentration of different amino acids in watermelon juice in mg/l includes: Arginine, 1150; Citrulline, 2014; Glutamine, 172; Phenylalanine, 89; Histidine, 88; Isoleucine, 87; Valine, 78; Cysteine, Above distribution shows that 71% of amino acids in *Citrullus lanatus* juice consist of Arginine and Citrulline¹⁵. Caretnoid is sufficiently present in fruits and vegetables it is bright red in color and play its major role as anti.oxidant. *Citrullus lanatus* yield high amount of caretnoids such as beta cryptoxanthine, lycopene, beta carotene, and vitamin E, these caretnoids are proved to protect body from damage to free radicals¹⁶.

Natural anti-oxidants are sufficiently present in watermelon which includes lycopene citrulline and ascorbic acid. These anti-oxidants protect human body from chronic diseases such as tumor and heart diseases^{17,18,19}. *Citrullus lanatus* can also be used in herbal medicine for prevention of some pathological conditions like erectile dysfunction, as antihypertensive and as an antioxidant. It can be used for the treatment of jaundice, hepatomegaly and act as source of energy²⁰. Based on above beneficial ingredients of *Citrullus lanatus* juice like iron which takes part in hemoglobin synthesis, ascorbic acid which facilitates its absorption study was done to check its effects on blood and liver enzymes.

METHODOLOGY

Citrullus lanatus juice was given orally at 2 different doses i.e. 3ml/kg and 6ml/kg respectively²¹. Watermelon (Citrullus lanatus var. lanatus) brought from local fruit market. Sample was taken when it was present in large amount and available in fresh state for experimental analysis. Fresh watermelon juice prepared on daily basis with the help of muslin cloth.

For long term biochemical effects like hematological and liver function healthy rabbits were used for study. These rabbits were from either gender. Animals were divided into 3 groups their weight ranges from 1200 to 1800 grams.

Group A = control group (Normal saline 6ml/kg).

Group B =Treated group (3 ml/kg).

Group C = Treated group (6ml/kg).

Fresh watermelon juice was administered on two different doses for 60 days. All animals were allowed to acclimatize for period of 1 week under laboratory environment for noticing any lack of activity, edema, hair loss, Diarrhea and ulceration. 7 ml of blood test gathered from rabbits at 7th, 30th and 60th day of study.7 ml sample used for hematological

study and liver enzymes. EDTA K3 tubes were used and filled with 2 ml blood for hematological study. Gel tubes were used for liver enzymes and 5ml of blood were taken in each bottle.

After taking mean of all values they are compared with control group. Significance of mean can be estimated by TUKES POST HOC TEST. P<0.05 estimated as significant, P<0.01 estimated as very significant.

P<0.001 estimated as highly significant.

RESULTS:

The results of one-way ANOVA in complete blood count test showed a significant difference between three groups of rabbits in erythrocyte levels ($F_{2,6}=39.7$, P < 0.0001) (Table 1). Tukey's *post-hoc* test indicates that the erythrocyte count was significantly increased in treated groups (CLJ 3 ml/kg and CLJ 6 ml/kg) in comparison with the saline-treated animals (Figure 1).

Animals after 07, 30 and 60 days dosing of *Citrullus lanatus* showed significant rise in Erythrocyte level as correlated with control group. Pre-test count of erythrocytes is 3.8 M/ULwhile post study count is 5.8 M/UL.

The results of one-way ANOVA, in complete blood count test, showed a significant difference between three groups of rabbits in hemoglobin levels ($F_{2, 6}$ =153.4, P < 0.0001) (Table 2). Tukey's *post-hoc* test indicates that the hemoglobin levels were significantly increased in treated groups (CLJ 3 ml/kg and CLJ 6 ml/kg) in comparison with the saline-treated animals (Figure 2).

Animals after 07, 30 and 60 days dosing of *Citrullus lanatus* showed significant rise in hemoglobin level as correlated with control group. Hb level of pre-test animals was 7.3mg/dl while post study value is 10.8 mg/dl.

The results of one-way ANOVA, in liver function test, show insignificant difference between three groups of rabbits in SGPT levels ($F_{2,6}$ =1.899, P < 0.2296) (Table 3).

Tukey's *post-hoc* test indicates that the SGPT levels were insignificantly decreased in treated groups (CLJ 3 ml/kg and CLJ 6 ml/kg) when correlate with control group (Figure 3). Pre study level of SGPT was 101 U/Land post study level is 95 U/L.

DISCUSSION:

Blood is the part of extracellular fluid, it is a specialized type of connective tissue consist of cellular part and plasma. Cellular part comprises of erythrocytes (RBCs), leucocytes (WBCs) and platelets. Most copious cells are red blood cells which contain iron containing red pigment called as hemoglobin (Hb)^{[22].}

Main function of Hb is to deliver oxygen to tissues from lungs it also maintains pH of blood. Juice of *Citrullus lanatus* contains important nutritional components which can increase level of Hb and erythrocytes. Iron present in its juice can



Figure 1: Impact of Citrullus lanatus juice on erythrocytes count. Total Number of animals per bunch (n) = 10. The perceptions written as mean \pm Standard error of mean. *** P < 0.001, *P < 0.01, *P < 0.05; ANOVA took after by Tukey's test





Total Number of animals per bunch (n) = 10. The perceptions written as mean \pm Standard error of mean. ***P < 0.001, **P < 0.01, *P < 0.05; ANOVA took after by Tukey's test.



Figure 3: Impact of Citrullus lanatus juice on SGPT level

Total Number of animals per bunch (n) = 10. The perceptions written as mean ± Standard error of mean. ***P<0.001, *P<0.05; ANOVA took after by Tukey's test. raise level of Hb and vitamin C which act as anti-oxidant and prevent damage of erythrocytes also facilitate absorption of iron as mentioned above by Shiundu, (2004). It is evident from results that highly significant rise in erythrocytes count and Hb level occur in treated groups compared with control. Pre-test count of erythrocytes is 3.8 M/ULwhile post study count is 5.8 M/UL. Hb level of pre-test animals was 7.3mg/dl while post study value is 10.8 mg/dl.

Liver is the important vital organ, it perform many biochemical functions. Cells of liver i.e hepatocytes contain many enzymes which perform these biochemical reactions. In acute liver injury enzymes present in hepatocytes release into blood and act as marker of hepatic damage. Aminotransferases are widely used markers for hepatocyte injury. There are 2 types of aminotransferases SGPT also called as ALT (serum glutamic pyruvate transaminase or Alanine Aaminotransferase and SGOT or AST (serum Glutamic Oxaloacetic Transaminase or Aspartate Aminotransferase). SGPT enzyme is sufficiently present in liver cells. Its level starts to rise in blood after damage to liver hepatocytes. Rapid rise of SGPT level in blood occur most commonly after acute viral infections²³. Citrullus lanatus juice contains natural anti-oxidants which prevent damage to vital organs from reactive oxygen species. It is evident from results obtained that SGPT level slightly decrease in treated groups as compared to control group. Pre study level of SGPT was 101 U/Land post study level is 95 U/L

Important natural anti-oxidants present in *Citrullus lanatus* are Caretnoids, lycopene, vitamin E and beta carotene. These anti-oxidants act as defending role in body and protect different organs from oxidative stress as reported by Pinto *et al.*, (2011). *Citrullus lanatus* also contains alkaloids, flavonoids, steroids and tannins as reported by ^[24]. These tannins, steroids and alkaloids also help in protecting liver from oxidative stress ^[25]. Considering the importance of all these constituents it can be estimated that long term use of *Citrullus lanatus* juice will produce beneficial effects on liver.

CONCLUSION:

Red blood cells and hemoglobin level markedly increased as compared to control groups, this rise occurs due to its important constituents i.e. iron and ascorbic acid Its juice posses excellent anti-oxidants which have organoprotective role on liver cells evaluated and that liver contains SGPT reduced in healthy animals.

REFERENCES:

- 1. WHO & FAO.(2003). Diet, nutrition & the prevention of chronic diseases: In report of a joint WHO/FAO Expert consultation. Geneva: WHO.
- Shiundu, K, M. Role of African leafy vegetables in alleviating food and nutrition insecurity in Africa. AJFNS. 2004: 2(2);96-97.

- 3. Rhodes B, Zhang X.(2000). Hybrid seed production in watermelon. Journal of new seeds;1(3-4):69-88.
- Edwards AJ, Vinyard BT, Wiley ER, Brown ED, Collins JK, Perkins-Veazie P, Baker RA, Clevidence BA. Consumption of watermelon juice increases plasma concentrations of lycopene and â-carotene in humans. The Journal of nutrition;2003:133(4)1043-50.
- Wasylikowa K, Van der Veen M. An archaeobotanical contribution to the history of watermelon, Citrullus lanatus (Thunb.) Matsum. &Nakai (syn. C. vulgaris Schrad.). Vegetation History and archaeobotany;2004:13(4);213-7.
- Fursa TB. Intraspecific classification of water-melon under cultivation. Genetic Resources and Crop Evolution; 1981:29(1);297-300.
- 7. Maynard, D. N(2001). Watermelons: characteristics, production and marketing. ASHS Press.
- 8. Oyolu, C. A (1977) quantitative and qualitative study of seed types in egusi (Colocynthiscitrullus L.). Tropical science.
- Lucier, G., & Lin, B. H. Factors affecting watermelon consumption in the United States. Washington DC: Department of Agriculture, Economic Research Service. http://www.ers. usda. gov/Briefing/vegetables/ vegpdf/ WatermelonFactors. pdf, 2001:3(14):08.
- Zohary, D., Hopf, M., & Weiss, E. (2012). Domestication of Plants in the Old World: The origin and spread of domesticated plants in Southwest Asia, Europe, and the Mediterranean Basin. Oxford University Press on Demand.
- Naz, A., Butt, M. S., Pasha, I., & Nawaz, H. (2013). Antioxidant indices of watermelon juice and lycopene extract. Pakistan Journal of Nutrition, 2013:12(3);255.
- Leskovar D, Bang H, Crosby K, Maness N, Franco A, Perkins-Veazie P. Lycopene, carbohydrates, ascorbic acid and yield components of diploid and triploid watermelon cultivars are affected by de® cit irrigation. The Journal of Horticultural Science and Biotechnology;2004:79(1);75-81.
- Bruton BD, Fish WW, Roberts W, Popham TW. (2009). The Influence of Rootstock Selection on Fruit Quality CDmB kk. Open food science journal; doi: 10.5154/r.rchsh. 2016.06.019
- USDA, (2002). USDA nutrient database for standard reference, release 15. [Internet] U.S. Department of Agriculture, Beltsville Human Nutrition Research Center, Beltsville Md, United States. http://www.nal.usda. gov/fnic /foodcomp. Accessed June 2003.

- 15. Fu WJ, Haynes TE, Kohli R, Hu J, Shi W, Spencer TE, Carroll RJ, Meininger CJ, Wu G.(2005). Dietary L-arginine supplementation reduces fat mass in Zucker diabetic fatty rats. The Journal of Nutrition. 2005:135(4);714-21.
- Pinto P, Santos C, Henriques C, Lima MG, Quedas MF.(2011). Lycopene content and antioxidant capacity of Portuguese watermelon fruits. Electronic Journal of Environmental, Agricultural and Food Chemistry:2011:10(4);2090-7.
- Omoni AO, Aluko RE.(2005) The anti-carcinogenic and antiatherogenic effects of lycopene: a review. Trends in Food Science & Technology;2005:16(8);344-50.
- Zhang, D., &Hamauzu, Y.(2004). Phenolic compounds and their antioxidant properties in different tissues of carrots (Daucus carota L.). Journal of Food Agriculture and Environment;2004; 2: 95-100.
- 19. Fenko A, Schifferstein HN, Huang TC, Hekkert P.(2009). What makes products fresh: The smell or the colour?. Food Quality and Preference; 2009:20(5);372-9.
- 20. Yativ M, Harary I, Wolf S.(2010). Sucrose accumulation in watermelon fruits: genetic variation and biochemical analysis. Journal of plant physiology;2010:167(8);589-96.
- Oyewo OO, Onyije FM, Akintunde OW, Ashamu EA.(2012). Effects of aqueous extract of Citrullus lanatus on the histology of the kidney of adult Wistar rats. World Applied Sciences Journal.;2012:17(9);1178-81.
- 22. Alberts B .(2012). "Table 22-1 Blood Cells". Molecular Biology of the Cell. NCBI Bookshelf. Archived from the original on 27 March 2018. Retrieved 1 November 2012.
- McClatchey, Kenneth D. (2002). Clinical laboratory medicine. Lippincott Williams & Wilkins. pp. 288–. ISBN 978-0-683-30751-1. Retrieved 5 August 2011.
- Jamuna, K. S., Ramesh, C. K., Srinivasa, T. R., & Raghu, K. L. (2011). In vitro antioxidant studies in some common fruits. Int J Pharm Pharm Sci. 2011:3(1);60-3.
- 25. Alqasoumi SI, Al-Howiriny TA, Abdel-Kader MS.(2008). Evaluation of the hepatoprotective effect of Aloe vera, Clematis hirsute, Cucumis prophetarum and bee propolis against experimentally induced liver injury in rats. International Journal of Pharmacology;2008:4(3);213-7.



Risk Factors Associated With Health And Wellness of Professional Automobile Drivers Of Karachi, Pakistan

Samira Faiz, Farhan Muhammad Qureshi, Sehrish Zahra, Seema Nigah-e- Mumtaz

ABSTRACT:

Objective: To identify the health status and well-being of the professional automobile drivers and associated risk factors that affect their health.

Study Design and Setting: A cross-sectional study was conducted among 350 professional automobile drivers operating on local and long routes in Karachi, Pakistan

Methodology: The study was done at various locations in the city of Karachi from September to November 2017. The subjects were asked for their personal health related complaints and medical illnesses. Further, this research also has the complimentary purpose to measure anxiety and depression among professional drivers. Anxiety was measured using the Generalized Anxiety Disorder-2 Item Scale (GAD-2) and Patient Health Questionnaire2-Item Depression Module (PHQ-2) was used to measure, depression. SPSS version 21.0 was used for data entry and its analysis. A written informed consent about the study was provided to the subjects with questionnaire. This study was approved by the Institutional/Ethical review board of Karachi Institute of Medical Sciences (KIMS).

Results: Amongst the 350 participants 48% were long route and 52% were local route automobile drivers. The result indicate that professional automobile drivers were suffering from backache (56%), Joint pain (36%), Hypertension (44%), Diabetes Mellitus (21%), Anxiety (87%) and Depression (38%). Tobacco addiction was found in (94%) of total respondents.

Conclusion: Health status of the professional drivers and their well-being was found unsatisfactory. Multiple factors such as working environment and sociodemographic factors are inevitably linked to their health status and wellbeing.

Keywords: automobile drivers, professional drivers, joint & backache, anxiety, depression, tobacco addiction

I

INTRODUCTION:

Professional automobile driving, undoubtedly, a very complex and demanding task. A professional automobile driver is a term used for the drivers who are skilled and qualified to drive vehicles and earns their income from driving. Transportation industry which requires healthy and skilled drivers, plays a vital role not only in the daily human life but, also contributes largely to the state's economic development. Millions of people are linked to the commercial transport business across the globe by adding their contribution to this industry, hence sharing economic growth.¹ Most of the developed countries have a highly competitive transport system and the governments invest a lot in every sector for its advancement. ² Continuous monitoring and

Samira Faiz

I

I

I

Senior Lecturer, Department of Community Health Sciences Karachi Institute of Medical Sciences (KIMS) Malir Cantt

Farhan Muhammad Qureshi

Assistant Professor, Department of Community Health Sciences Karachi Institute of Medical Sciences (KIMS) Malir Cantt Email: drfarhanqureshi@hotmail.com

Sehrish Zehra

Lecturer, Department of Community Health Sciences Karachi Institute of Medical Sciences (KIMS) Malir Cantt

Seema Nigah-e-Mumtaz

Professor & HOD, Department of Community Health Sciences Karachi Institute of Medical Sciences (KIMS) Malir Cantt

Received: 02-04-2019 Accepted: 23-07-2019 evaluation help to make better policies and a continuous data is always available. Unfortunately, many developing countries are still struggling to establish a stable transportation system. However, the most common problem being observed in this profession, throughout the world, is the poor health status (physical and mental) of drivers. ^{3,4,5} Multiple factors that contribute in deteriorating the mental and physical health are continuous driving (for more than 8 hours), long waiting for passengers or for refilling or reloading, difficult and stressful driving conditions, monotonous and repetitive work, lack of education and low socio-economic status.⁶ Moreover, transport of hazardous materials and wastes (the nature of which is often not known to workers), exposure to noise, vibration and pollution are some very important health risk factors.⁷ In addition to the above, irregular timings and unavailability of proper and quality meal lead to malnourishment and frailty in professional drivers.⁸ There is also a huge burden of ergonomic hazards especially musculoskeletal disorders among these drivers like back and joint pain, cervical problems and other injuries caused by lifting weights. Poorly designed driving seats that cannot be adjusted according to comfort, often result in chronic backaches or other musculoskeletal problems that worsen with time.⁹

Since long, numerous studies are being carried out throughout the world to observe the health status of drivers. ^{10, 11} Mental illnesses among professional drivers are found highly prevalent, out of which the most common are job related stress, anxiety and mild to moderate depression. ⁵ However, these problems get worse when either, they are not taken seriously as health issues or, if primary health care centers lack the facilities to cater mental health problems. Compromised physical health is itself a contributing factor towards deteriorating mental health. ¹² All these issues not only lead to miserable life of such families but also contribute a lot to the increased incidence of road traffic accidents. ¹³ Hence, the current study aimed to identify the health issues among professional automobile drivers and their health status in the metropolitan city of Karachi. The findings of this study may be helpful to reduce the sufferings and upgrade the life style of drivers which ultimately will contribute to the state's economic growth.

METHODOLOGY:

This cross sectional survey was performed among professional automobile drivers working on a transportation industry from September 2017 to November 2017. Sample size was calculated using Epi Info - 7 for cross sectional studies. A total of 350 drivers were recruited through nonprobability, purposive sampling technique randomly without consideration of their health status from various location of commercial areas of Karachi, Pakistan. Data was collected from drivers from loading trucks stands, passengers buses points (inter or intra city both) and taxi stands of different areas of Karachi, irrespective of the drivers city of residence. Only male and adult drivers between 18 -60 years of age with valid national identity cards and driving license were included in the study. Respondents were explained about the purpose of the study and asked to sign a consent form to participate in the study. Keeping in view the aims of the study a specially designed detailed questionnaire was prepared. The first section comprised demographic information such as age, gender, area of residence, education, income and driving experience etc. The second section consisted of variety of open and closed ended questions regarding their health issues such as hypertension, diabetes, heart disease, lower back pain, joint pain or generalized body aches and disturbed sleep. Severity of pain was assessed by WHO criteria. ¹⁴ The drivers were also screened for anxiety and depression. For this purpose Generalized Anxiety Disorder-2 Item Scale (GAD-2) and Patient Health Questionnaire2-Item Depression Module (PHQ-2) were used to screen out anxiety and depression respectively. GAD-2^{15,16} and PHO-2^{17,18} are well validated measures to screen out and monitor depression and anxiety. Due to construct and criterion validity, PHQ-2 is a proven attractive measure for depression screening. Each ranges from a score of 0-6. The operating characteristics of these ultra-brief measures are quite good; the recommended cut points for each when used as screeners is a score of 3 or greater. Higher the score, the more likely there is an underlying anxiety or depression. Therefore, those who scored high were counseled

about their condition and were advised to consult psychiatric outpatient department for further evaluation. The data was collected by health workers and essential instruction were directed to the subjects. The questionnaire of each and every driver were thoroughly seen and checked by the investigators for missing data/information. The study was carried out after approval of Institutional and Ethical Review Board of Karachi Institute of Medical Sciences, Karachi. SPSS-21 was used for data entry and analysis of data collection. The traits of study population were observed through frequencies and percentages, as assessed descriptively.

RESULTS:

Sociodemographic characteristics of the participants (350) are shown in Table 1.

Table 2 depicts the types of vehicles used by the drivers and their regular routes of driving. Almost comparable numbers of the vehicles in the sample were running on long and local routes i.e. 48% and 52% respectively. Amongst both of these groups, buses were most common.

The physical and mental health status of the study participants is shown in table 3. More than half (56%) of the drivers suffered from lower back pain with varying degrees of severity and 36% mentioned joint pain. 44% of them had hypertension whereas known diabetics were 21%. Majority of the sample population (94%) was cigarette smokers while 40% chewed naswaar among which mostly were Pathans (Pashto speaking). Regarding the mental health status, Anxiety was found to be most prevalent in the sample population (87%).

DISCUSSION:

Professional driving has been shown widely a challenging in terms of health outcomes and its associated risk especially in urban cities of the world. Health status and wellbeing of the drivers has a significant impact on the safety of the drivers ¹⁹ as well as the passengers. Driver's health status plays an important role in the occurrence of the accidents that makes professional driving a potentially high risk activity.²⁰ Various researchers have found the relationship between physical, mental and social stressors with the wellbeing and professional performance of the drivers.^{19,20,21,22,23} The analysis of the gathered information of this study revealed that lower back pain, joint pain and other posture related musculoskeletal disorders are common among professional automobile drivers. Results of National Health survey of Iran highlighted musculoskeletal disorders as the most prevalent in professional automobile drivers.²¹ The findings were consistent with previous work in other countries and found symptoms related to lower back and joints are common in drivers. ^{20 22,23} The space of the driver's cabin might be the reason which usually does not have enough space for the movements of his limbs and body and they must restrict to driving cabin throughout the journey.

Characteristics	Descriptive
Age, years, mean (SD)	38.0 (9.2)
Marital status, n (%)	
Married	315 (90.0)
Unmarried	21 (6.0)
Divorced/widower	14 (4.0)
Education, n (%)	
Not able to read/write	74 (21.14)
Primary, = 5 years	98 (28.0)
Secondary, 6-10 years	126 (36.0)
High school up to 14 years	52 (14.85)
Religion, n (%)	
Muslims	311 (88.85)
Hindus	18 (5.14)
Christians	21 (6.0)
Ethnicity, n (%)	
Urdu speaking	45 (12.85)
Sindhi	21 (6.0)
Punjabi	91 (26.0)
Pathan	126 (36.0)
Sariki	39 (11.14)
Others	28 (8.0)
Monthly income in PKR n (9	%)
< 20,000,	224 (64.0)
20,000-40,000	84 (24.0)
40,000-80,000	29 (8.28)
> 80,000	13 (3.71)
Years of driving, n (%)	
1-5 years	46 (13.14)
6-10 years	68 (19.42)
11-20 years	140 (40.0)
>20 years	96 (27.42)
BML (kg/m ²) mean (SD)	22.8(5.3)

Table 1	Sociodemographic Characteristics	of the	participants
	n = 350		

Table 2: Types of vehicles regarding local and long routes (n=350)

Types of vehicles	Descriptive
Long route vehicles	n=168(48.0%)
Bus, n (%)	81 (23.14)
Truck, n (%)	52 (14.85)
Trailer, n (%)	35 (10.0)
Local route vehicles	n=182(52.0%)
Bus (mini/coach), n (%)	63 (18.0)
Taxi, n (%),	56 (16.0)
Mini trucks, n (%)	35 (10.0)
Rickshaw, n (%),	28 (8.0)
Total, n (%)	350 (100.0)

This immobile position causes joints and muscles stiffness that further aggravates and worsens from spending long duration behind the wheels.

Strain due to working environment can be related to engaging

Table 3.	Physical	and	mental	health	status	(n=350)	
	1 Hysical	anu	memai	ncann	status	(II-330)	

Health	Frequencies	Health	Frequencies
Problems	n (%)	Problems	n (%)
Lower Back Pain		Tobacco Addiction	
Mild	14 (4.0)	Smoker	329 (94.0)
Moderate	49 (14.0)	Non-Smoker	21 (6.0)
Severe	91 (26.0)	Naswar*Addiction	
Very severe	42 (12.0)	Yes	141 (40.28)
No pain	154 (44.0)	No	209(59.71)
Joint pain		Difficulty in sleep	
Yes	126 (36.0)	Yes	105(30.0)
No	224 (64.0)	No	245 (70.0)
Hypertension		Anxiety	
Yes	154 (44.0)	Yes	305 (87.14)
No	196 (56.0)	No	45 (12.85)
Diabetes		Depression	
Yes	74 (21.14)	Yes	133 (38.0)
No	276 (78.85)	No	217 (62.0)

*Naswar: Naswar is a moist,	smokeless powdered tobacco
snuff. Usually, it is stuffed in	the floor of mouth under the
lower lip or inside the cheek	for extended period of time.

in harmful health behaviors that leads to developing diabetes mellitus and hypertension. Unavailability of healthy meals with disturbed pattern of timings and duration are common among drivers. As a result poor food choices that are low in nutrition value but high in calories, fat and sugar along with sedentary environment lead to excessive energy intake and nutrition related morbidities such as hypertension and type-2 diabetes mellitus.^{24,25} The results of the foregoing study also indicates 44% and 21% drivers suffer from hypertension and diabetes mellitus. Evidence supported that unhealthy eating patterns, life style and stressful environment are the common risk factors in developing hypercholesterolemia, cardiovascular diseases and type-2 diabetes mellitus among professional automobile drivers.^{24, 25, 26}

According to the World Health Organization (WHO) cigarette smoking has been identified as an epidemic worldwide ²⁷ and were described a stress relieving devices. ²⁸ Despite the growing awareness regarding association of tobacco consumption with a range of adverse health effects tobacco consumption has been considered as a stress reliever either in the form of cigarette smoking or in chewable form. Results of this study showed that 95 and 39 percent of participants were addicted to tobacco and Naswar. The main reasons that may explain why higher number of drivers smoke are; stress caused by the working environment, peer and social influence and socioeconomic status and education. The socioeconomic status and education of the study participants was unsatisfactory as more than half of them (57%) earned less than 20 thousands/month and majority (85%) have education below secondary. Use of tobacco might be a way of stress management and a mode of taking out and coping with the stressful environment due to above mentioned circumstances.

Consumption of tobacco either in the form of smoking or in chewable form, is known to be harmful to brain. ²⁹ Many epidemiological studies have demonstrated smoking as being prospectively associated with increased rates of anxiety disorders ^{29,30} Similar results were reported in this research, as 78 and 39 percent of the participants were suffer from anxiety and depression, respectively. Moreover, the findings support the epidemiological evidences regarding increase risk of developing anxiety due to tobacco consumption, although confirmation of this causality is yet to be confirmed.

This study compels all the stakeholders of the transportation industry to take relevant measures and the health authorities to enforce road transport workers ordinance, 1961, (amended in 1974), the West Pakistan Industrial and Commercial Employment (standing orders) Ordinance 1968. The ILO (International Labor Organization) suggest hours of work and rest periods (road transport) Convention (no. 153), 1979, that requires a break after 4 hours of driving, limits total driving time to 9 hours per day and 48 hours per week and recommends at last 10 hours of rest in each 24- hour period, need to be followed which is not yet ratified by Pakistan.

The cross sectional design and survey was used to measure parameters of this research. Scientifically, the cross sectional design does not clarify the cause and effect. However, the outcomes of the study complies with the data of the existing literature. The results of this research will explain and clearly interpreted with use of longitudinal methods and is recommended for future research.

CONCLUSION:

This study aimed to ascertain health issues experienced by drivers related to their profession. The findings provides further support to the existing researches from other countries. Multiple factors such as working environment and sociodemographic factors are inevitably linked to their health status and wellbeing of the drivers.

REFERENCES:

- 2002., N.R.C., Key Transportation Indicators: Summary of a Workshop. "4 Transportation Indicators of Economic Growth.". Washington, DC: The National Academies Press.
- 2. USA, F., Logistics And Transportation Spotlight. The Logistics and Transportation Industry in the United States. 2018.
- 3. Yang Y. Fan XS. Tian CH. Zhang W. et al., Health status, intention to seek health examination, and participation in health education among taxi drivers in jinan, china. Iran Red Crescent Med J, 2014; 16(4): p. e13355.
- Wang, P.C. and L. Delp, Health status, job stress and workrelated injury among Los Angeles taxi drivers. Work, 2014; 49(4): 705-12.
- Merecz-Kot, D., M. Waszkowska, and A. Wezyk, [Mental health status of drivers--Motor vehicle accidents perpetrators]. Med Pr, 2015; 66(4): 525-38.

- Faiz, S., Zehra, S., Qureshi, F., Mumtaz, S., Colour Blindness Among Male Professional Drivers And The Nature Of Difficulties They Experience While Driving. JBUMDC 2019; 9(2):124-127
- 7. Greenfield R. Busink E. Wong CP., et al., Truck drivers' perceptions on wearable devices and health promotion: a qualitative study. BMC Public Health, 2016: 16; 677.
- Dube L. Labban A. Moubarac JC, et al., A nutrition/health mindset on commercial Big Data and drivers of food demand in modern and traditional systems. Ann N Y Acad Sci, 2014;1331:278-295. doi: 10.1111/ nyas.12595.
- Sastry, S., Long Distance Truck Drivers and the Structural Context of Health: A Culture-Centered Investigation of Indian Truckers' Health Narratives. Health Commun, 2016; 31(2): 230-41.
- Krishnan P. Hashim N. Rani U. Lung JK et al., Survey on health status of heavy vehicle drivers in Klang valley. Med J Malaysia, 1998; 53(4); 449-51.
- Anderson S.W. Aksan N. Dawson JD. Uc EY, et al., Neuropsychological assessment of driving safety risk in older adults with and without neurologic disease. Journal of Clinical and Experimental Neurop-sychology, 2012; 34(9): 895-905.
- McManus MC. Cramer RJ. Boshier M., et al., Mental Health and Drivers of Need in Emergent and Non-Emergent Emergency Department (ED) Use: Do Living Location and Non-Emergent Care Sources Matter? Int J Environ Res Public Health, 2018;15(1): pii: E129. doi: 10.3390/ijerph15010129
- 13. World Health Organisation, w.h.o, in the top 10 causes of death. 2017.
- 14. Health, R.o.R.M.o., Pain Management Guidelines. 2012.
- 15. Kroenke K. Spitzer RL. Williams JB, et al., Anxiety disorders in primary care: prevalence, impairment, comorbidity, and detection. Ann Intern Med, 2007; 146(5): 317-25.
- Katon, W., E.H. Lin, and K. Kroenke, The association of depression and anxiety with medical symptom burden in patients with chronic medical illness. Gen Hosp Psychiatry, 2007; 29(2): 147-55.
- 17. Kroenke, K. Spitzer RL. Williams JB. et al., The Patient Health Questionnaire Somatic, Anxiety, and Depressive Symptom Scales: a systematic review. Gen Hosp Psychiatry, 2010; 32(4): 345-59.
- Kroenke, K., R.L. Spitzer, and J.B. Williams, The Patient Health Questionnaire-2: validity of a two-item depression screener. Med Care, 2003; 41(11): 1284-92.
- Hakkanen H, Summala H. Driver sleepiness related problems, health status and prolonged driving among professional heavy vehicle drivers. Transp. Hum. Fact. 2000;2:151–71
- Jahangiri M, Karimi A, Slamizad S, Olyaei M, MOOSAVI S, Amiri F. 0BOccupational risk factors in Iranian professional drivers and their impacts on traffic accidents. International Journal of Occupational Hygiene. 2013;5(4):184-90.
- 21. Choobineh A, Tabatabaei SH, Mokhtarzadeh A. et al. Musculoskeletal problems among workers of an Iranian rubber factory. J Occup Health 2007; 49; 418-423.
- 22. John LM, Flin R, Mearns K. Bus-ting a gut–the strains of an urban bus driver. InInternational Conference of Traffic & Transport Psychology (ICTTP), Nottingham, England 2004 Sep (pp. 1-11).

- 23. Chen JC, Chang WR, Chang W, Christiani D. Occupational factors associated with low back pain in urban taxi drivers. Occupational medicine. 2005;55(7):535-40.
- 24. Krueger GP. Health and wellness programs for commercial drivers. Transportation Research Board; 2007.
- 25. Martin BC, Church TS, Bonnell R, Ben-Joseph R, Borgstadt T. The impact of overweight and obesity on the direct medical costs of truck drivers. Journal of Occupational and Environmental Medicine. 2009;51(2):180-4.
- 26. Apostolopoulos, Yorghos, Sönmez, Sevil, Shattell, Mona, Haldeman, Lauren, Strack, Robert and Jones, Victoria(2011) 'Barriers to Truck Drivers' Healthy Eating: Environmental Influences and Health Promotion Strategies', Journal of Workplace Behavioral Health, 2011;26(2): 122-143
- World Health Organization. The World Health Report 2003; WHO: Geneva, Switzerland, 2003

- Sarna, L., Bialous, S.A.; Wewers, M.E.; Froelicher, E.S.; Danao, L. Nurses, smoking and the workplace. Res. Nurs. Health 2005; 28: 79-90.
- 29. Moylan S, Jacka FN, Pasco JA, Berk M. How cigarette smoking may increase the risk of anxiety symptoms and anxiety disorders: a critical review of biological pathways. Brain and behavior. 2013; 3(3):302-26.
- Chou, K. L., C. S. Mackenzie, K. Liang, and J. Sareen. 2011. Three - year incidence and predictors of first-onset of DSMIV mood, anxiety, and substance use disorders in older adults: results from Wave 2 of the National Epidemiologic Survey on Alcohol and Related Conditions. J. Clin. Psychiatry 2011;72:144–155



Original Article

Perception Regarding Oral Health Among Patients Visiting Dental Outpatient Department

Saima Asim, Syed Muhammad Zulfiqar Hyder Naqvi, Syed Imtiaz Ahmed Jafry, Shikoh Naz

ABSTRACT:

Objective: To assess knowledge, attitude and practice regarding oral health among patients visiting dental OPD in hospitals of district Malir, Karachi.

Study Design and Setting: A cross-sectional study was conducted at dental outpatient departments of two hospitals of district Malir, Karachi.

Methodology: A total of 393 participants were randomly interviewed by the principal investigator with the help of structured questionnaire developed specifically for the study after obtaining written informed consent over the study of 6 months. Data was entered and analyzed in SPSS version 21. Inferential analysis was performed using chi-square test whereas binary logistic regression was used to develop a risk assessment model for the study outcome. The significance level was set at 0.05.

Results: Overall 31.8% of the study participants had adequate knowledge, 25.2% had adequate attitude whereas 32.2% had adequate practices with regards to oral health. Furthermore, multivariable analysis revealed that higher qualification of the study participants had significant positive associations with adequateness of all of the knowledge, attitude and practices of the study participants regarding oral health at p-value of <0.05.

Conclusion: The level of knowledge and appropriateness of attitude and practices of the study participants was less than satisfactory. The higher education level had a positive impact over the oral health of the participants. It is recommended that healthcare providers and government, in their respective capacities, educate and persuade people to take better care of their oral health.

I

I

Key words: Attitude, Knowledge, Oral Health, Outpatients

INTRODUCTION:

Oral health is essential to general health and quality of life. According to World Health Organization "it is a state of being free from mouth and facial pain, oral and throat cancer, oral infections and sores, periodontal disease, tooth decay, tooth loss and other diseases and disorders that limit an individual capacity in biting, chewing, smiling, speaking, and psychosocial well-being."¹

Oral health is considered a fundamental to general health, but it is often taken for granted. Mouth is like a window into the health of body. Oral health can reveal signs of nutritional deficiencies or general infections and many systemic diseases show oral manifestations. Oral diseases

Saima Asim

L

Lecturer Hamdard University Dental Hospital Email: saimaasim966@gmail.com

Syed Muhammad Zulfiqar Hyder Naqvi Assistant Professor Bagai Medical University Karachi

Syed Imtiaz Ahmed Jafry Associate Professor Baqai Medical University Karachi

Shikoh Naz Lecturer Hamdard University Dental Hospital

Received: 12-03-2019 Accepted: 04-09-2019 and non-communicable diseases are found to be closely interlinked by sharing common risk factors such as excess sugar intake and tobacco use and underlying inflammatory pathways.^{2,3}

The most common oral diseases are dental caries, periodontal diseases, oral cancer, oral infectious disease, trauma from injuries and hereditary lesions. Dental caries involves the softening of hard tooth tissues and proceeding to the formation of a cavity, nearly 100% of adults have dental cavities.¹It is a disease with considerable economic and quality-of-life burdens⁴, and can be arrested and prevented by using constant low level fluoride in mouth.⁵

Tooth loss can be due to caries, eruption problems, and periodontal diseases.⁶ Due to poor oral hygiene, plaque can build up along gum lines which lead to many diseases like gingivitis, periodontitis. Long term gum infections and periodontitis leads to detachment of supporting structures from the teeth and eventual tooth loss. Diseases commonly related to tooth loss include cardiovascular disease⁷ cancer,⁸ osteoporosis,⁹ and diabetes mellitus.¹⁰ Therefore it is important to not only maintain good oral hygiene but also overall good health.⁷

The burden of oral diseases is higher among poor and disadvantaged population group and is also dependent upon the geographical area and services provided to community.¹ Globally about 30% of persons aged 60-74 have no natural teeth.¹In 2010, it was estimated that untreated caries in

permanent teeth was the most prevalent condition globally, with 2.4 billion people affected, while untreated caries in deciduous teeth was the 10th-most prevalent condition globally, with 621 million children affected.¹¹It has also been estimated that severe periodontitis affects approximately 10% of the global population.¹²Moreover, oral cancers are more common in people over 40, particularly men. It has been estimated that half a million cases of oral cancer are currently present around the globe with the trends rising in the young individuals particularly.13, 14 Traditional habits in some cultures for instance, chewing tobacco, betel quid, gutka and paan are significantly dangerous. Dental trauma is another major health problem in children and adolescents and its incidence has been reported to peak at 9 years of age.¹⁵It is more frequently observed in males as compared to females with falling, fight, sports, accidents, and hitting objects are among common causative factors.¹⁶

Due to lack of public health programs and shortage of dentists in low and middle income countries, oral diseases are dramatically increasing; though they are on the rise even in high income countries but the causes and risk factors are different. In developing societies people are not aware of the importance of regular dental check-ups and believes that they need to see a dentist only if they are in pain. One can practice good oral hygiene by brushing teeth twice a day with fluoride tooth paste, cleaning between teeth once a day with floss or another interdental cleaner, replacing your tooth brush every 3 or 4 months and by eating a balance diet and limiting between snacks.

Therefore it is imperative that dental patients should have adequate awareness, attitude and practices regarding oral health, but to the best of authors' knowledge, the available local data is scarce.¹⁷⁻¹⁹This study was therefore conducted to assess knowledge, attitude and practice regarding oral health among patients visiting dental OPD in hospitals of district Malir, Karachi.

METHODOLOGY:

This cross sectional study was conducted after getting ethical approval of Bagai Institute of Health Sciences. The study was conducted among 393 conveniently sampled patients from two randomly selected hospitals of District Malir, Karachi for the period of six months. Using 50% prevalence of related knowledge, attitude and practices with 95% confidence interval and 5% precision the calculated sample size was 385 patients. The study population consisted of dental patients of either gender aged 18 years and above visiting government and private hospitals in District Malir, Karachi. Patients with serious illness and disabled patients were excluded from the study. After getting written informed consent patients were interviewed by the principal investigator with the help of a structured questionnaire developed specifically for the study. The questionnaire was pre-tested on 5% of the sample size to check for face validity and

internal reliability and was modified accordingly to yield a Cronbach's alpha value of 0.755. The questionnaire contained questions about demographic characteristics, knowledge, attitude and practice regarding oral health of the participants. Once the data were collected and entered in SPSS version 21, knowledge, attitude and practice scores of the study participants were calculated separately by giving a score of 1 to a correct response and 0 to an incorrect response. These scores were then used to classify knowledge, attitude and practice of each participant as either adequate if they were above the selected cut off 70% or inadequate if they were not.Multivariable analysis using binary logistic regression was done to develop risk assessment models for the outcome variables while controlling for the potential effects of confounding variables. The significance level was set at 0.05. Those participants who were found to have inadequate knowledge, attitude or practice regarding oral health were given necessary awareness at the completion of the interview.

RESULTS:

A total of 393 participants were included in the study with the response rate of 100%. The study results revealed that the mean age of the study participants was 38.29 ± 13.20 years, n=230 (58.5%) of them were males, n=261 (66.4%) were married, n=238 (60.6%) lived in joint family system, n=233 (59.3%) were urdu speaking, only n=112 (28.5%) were graduates or had higher education whereas n=244 (62.1%) had monthly income between 15000 to 75000 rupees.

The study results showed that overall 31.8% participants had adequate knowledge, 25.2% had adequate attitude whereas 32.2% of them had adequate practices with regard to oral health (Figure 1).

The logistic regression model revealed that after controlling for all other demographic variables only family system, qualification and monthly household income had significant associations with adequateness of knowledge where those who lived in joint family system had lesser odds of having adequate knowledge than those who lived in nuclear family system (AOR=0.578, p=0.024); those who were able to read and write, were intermediate or graduate or above had greater odds of having adequate knowledge than those who were illiterate (AOR=10.867, p=0.033, AOR=8.195, p=0.044 and AOR=19.791, p=0.005 respectively) and those who had monthly household income between 15000-75000 or 76000 and above had greater odds of having adequate knowledge than those who had monthly household income of less than 15000 (AOR=2.013, p=0.014 and AOR=4.911, p=0.007 respectively)-Table 1.

The logistic regression model revealed that after controlling for all other demographic variables only mother tongue and qualification had significant associations with adequateness of attitude where those who were Sindhi speaking had greater odds of having adequate attitude than those who were Urdu



Figure 1: Adequateness of knowledge, attitude and practice

speaking (AOR=2.284, p=0.022) and those who were graduate or above had greater odds of having adequate attitude than those who were illiterate (AOR=15.901, p=0.008)-Table 2.

The logistic regression model revealed that after controlling for all other demographic variables only gender, qualification and monthly household income had significant associations with adequateness of practice where females had greater odds of having adequate practice than males (AOR=2.515, p<0.001); those who had secondary education and were intermediate or graduate had greater odds of having adequate practice than those who were illiterate (AOR=5.262, p=0.037, AOR=8.36, p=0.006, AOR=8.837, p=0.006, respectively); than those who had monthly household income 76000 and above had greater odds of having adequate practice than

Table 1: Adjusted Associations between demographic Characteristics and Adequateness of Knowledge

Variables (n= 393)			95% C.I.		D
		AUK	Lower	Upper	P
Family System	Joint	0.578	0.359	0.93	0.024
Educational Status	Able to read and write	10.867	1.219	96.894	0.033
	Primary	1.817	0.153	21.581	0.636
	Secondary	4.421	0.534	36.627	0.168
	Intermediate	8.195	1.054	63.718	0.044
	Graduate and above	19.791	2.514	155.812	0.005
Monthly Household Income	15000-75000	2.013	1.029	3.939	0.014
	76000 and above	4.911	1.552	15.536	0.007

Table 2: Adjusted Associations between Demographic Characteristics and Adequateness of Attitude

Variables (n= 393)		AOR	95% C.I.		р
			Lower	Upper	Г
Mother Tongue	Sindhi	2.284	1.127	4.628	0.022
	Punjabi	1.806	0.942	3.462	0.075
	Seraiki/Balochi	2.09	0.989	4.417	0.054
	Able to read and write	8.111	0.926	71.063	0.059
	Primary	1.44	0.121	17.112	0.773
Educational Status	Secondary	7.27	0.902	58.595	0.062
	Intermediate	6.998	0.899	54.5	0.063
	Graduation and above	15.901	2.053	123.165	0.008

Table 3: Adjusted Associations between Demographic Characteristics and Adequateness of Practice

Variables (n= 393)			95% C.I.		D
		AUK	Lower	Upper	P
Gender	Female	2.515	1.576	4.015	< 0.001
	Able to read and write	1.529	0.229	10.191	0.661
	Primary	3.283	0.563	19.156	0.186
Educational Status	Secondary	5.262	1.107	25.016	0.037
	Intermediate	8.36	1.836	38.069	0.006
	Graduate and above	8.837	1.871	41.737	0.006
Monthly Household Income	15000-75000	1.227	0.679	2.22	0.498
	76000 and above	3.624	1.241	10.581	0.018

those who had monthly household income of less than 15000 (AOR=3.624, p=0.018) -Table 3.

DISCUSSION:

The study findings revealed that 72.2% of the study participants correctly knew about the relationship between oral health and systemic well-being. Similarly, Nagarajappa R et al., in 2015 reported that 64.5% of the participants correctly knew about the relationship between oral health with systemic illness.²⁰ Likewise, Singh A et al., in 2014 also reported that 68% subjects were aware that dental health has an effect on general health.²¹

Regarding impact of regular tooth brushing on teeth 87% of the participants were found to have accurate knowledge in our study whereas Khan F et al., in 2013 reported that 58% of the participants correctly knew about the significance of tooth brushing.¹⁷ This difference in findings could be due to difference in study populations and to the smaller sample size of the later study.

With regards to using different types of cleaning methods, 60.3% of the participants correctly knew about other oral cleaning aids than brushing whereas Kaira LS et al., in 2012 reported that only 30% of the participants had accurate knowledge regarding other oral hygiene aids.²² This difference in finding can be attributed to different characteristics of the study populations as the later study was conducted on nurses.

In our Study; 86.2% of the study participants correctly knew that smoking, betal nut chewing, paan and gutka cause oral cancer. Similarly Kaira LS et al., in 2012 reported 95% of the participants were known about harmful effects of tobacco and its products.²²Interestingly, this repeated finding shows a good level of awareness among the study participants about the harmful effects of commonly used addictive substances on oral health.

Our study revealed that 78.6% of the participants were found to have correct knowledge that consumption of sugary foods and drinks causes tooth decay. Khan F et al., in 2013 reported that 90% of the study participants correctly knew that sugar promotes tooth decay¹⁷ whereas Dawani N et al., in 2013 reported that 74% of the subjects were interviewed and identified sugar as an etiological factor for caries.²³

In our study 57% of the participants knew that bleeding gums is a disease and needs consultation of a dentist. But contrary to these findings, Dawani N et al., in 2013 reported that only 7% of participants were aware of gum diseases.²³This difference in finding can be attributed to different study populations as the later study was conducted in school teachers. The 45.3% of the study participants thought that it was necessary to visit dentist every 6 months for regular dental checkup. Kapoor D et al., in 2014 reported that only 9.3% of patients interviewed felt the need to visit the dentist on regular basis i.e. once in 6 months.⁴³ This difference in finding in study can be attributed to the

difference in population characteristics as the later study was conducted in India.

Regarding frequency of brushing teeth, 42.8% of study participants were found to brush their teeth more than once a day. Similarly another study reported that 51.3% and 50% of the study participants respectively brushed their teeth twice a day.^{17, 18} But literature reports contrary findings as well. Nagarajappa R et al., in 2015 and Kapoor D et al., in 2014 reported that only 23% and 18.5% of the study participants respectively brushed their teeth twice a day.^{20,24} These mix findings might be due to different methodological approaches of the aforementioned studies. Nevertheless, it is intriguing to observe such differences in reported findings.

Only 13.2% of the study participants were found to have correct practice regarding time spent on brushing teeth whereas Nagarajappa R et al., in 2015 reported that 41.5% of study participants had correct practice regarding time spent on brushing teeth.²⁰ This difference in finding could be due to the difference in population characteristics because both studies were conducted in different countries.

Moreover, 67.2% of the respondents replied that they never smoke. Likewise Khan F et al., in 2013 reported that 70% of respondents were not smoking.¹⁷

In our study; 80.9% of the study participants used tooth paste to clean their teeth and these results were analogous with another study in which 90% of the respondents used tooth paste and tooth brush as tooth cleaning aid.¹⁸Kapoor D et al., in 2014 were reported that 92.2% of the male while 87.6% of the female respondents preferred tooth brushing with tooth paste.²⁴ Likewise Kaira LS et al., in 2012 reported 70% whereas Verma S et al., in 2019 found almost 60% of the participants were using tooth paste with tooth brush, a recommended oral hygiene practice.^{22, 25}Goryawala SN et al., in 2016 also reported 92.2% of the patients were using some type of tooth paste for oral hygiene maintenance.²⁶

In the following study; 49.9% of the participants were changed the tooth brush within 3 months and these results were corresponding with the results of Younus A & Qureshi A in 2016 in which 65.5% of participants change their tooth brush every 3 months.¹⁷ Unlike these results, Ahmed ZUet al., in 2016 reported that 4.5% of the male while 6.31% of the female participants changed their tooth brush within 3 months.¹⁸ These different finding of the later study can be attributed to lower socioeconomic status of that study's population.

Furthermore, with regard to the study findings about standard brushing technique, whether professional cleaning of teeth weaken tooth structure, harmful effects of boring water on teeth, importance of brushing teeth after every meal, significance of fillings of decayed teeth, frequency of consuming paan and visiting dentist in case of dental pain, a comparison could not be made with the published literature as a thorough search did not reveal any relevant published data. It is acknowledged that being a cross-sectional study, the study results might have suffered from limitation in recall. Moreover, the use of convenience sampling technique might have affected the generalizability of the study results.

It is recommended that people should be made aware of oral health related adequate knowledge, attitude and practices by all stakeholders, especially by healthcare providers, that will help them to lead a healthy and longer life. Furthermore, more efforts are required for the awareness campaign in public and private sectors to take better care of oral health of masses.

CONCLUSION:

The level of knowledge and appropriateness of attitude and practices of the study participants with regard to oral health was less than satisfactory. Furthermore, higher qualification of the study participants was positively associated with adequateness of all of their knowledge, attitude and practices regarding oral health

REFERENCES:

- 1. Oral Health. WHO; 2012 [cited 2018 20th February]; Available from: www.who.int/mediacentre/factsheets/fs318/en/.
- Jin LJ, Lamster IB, Greenspan JS, Pitts NB, Scully C, Warnakulasuriya S. Global burden of oral diseases: emerging concepts, management and interplay with systemic health. Oral Dis. 2016; 22(7):609
- Bana KM, Ahmad F, Danish SH, Bana NF, Kazmi AR. Non communicable diseases and oral health: Introspection. Pak J Med Dent. 2016;5(2):38-44
- Pitts NB, Zero DT, Marsh PD, Ekstrand K, Weintraub JA, Ramos-Gomez F, Tagami J, Twetman S, Tsakos G, Ismail A. Dental caries. Nat Rev Dis Primers. 2017;3:17030.
- 5. Chu CH, Mei ML, Lo EC. Use of fluorides in dental caries management. Gen Dent. 2010; 58(1):37-43.
- Hamasha AA, Al Qudah MA, Bataineh AB, Safadi RA. Reasons for third molar teeth extraction in Jordanian adults. J Contemp Dent Pract. 2006; 7(5):88.
- Desvarieux M, Demmer RT, Rundek T, Boden-Albala B, Jacobs Jr DR, Papapanou PN, Sacco RL. Relationship between periodontal disease, tooth loss, and carotid artery plaque: the Oral Infections and Vascular Disease Epidemiology Study (INVEST). Stroke. 2003; 34(9):2120-5.
- Meyer MS, Joshipura K, Giovannucci E, Michaud DS. A review of the relationship between tooth loss, periodontal disease, and cancer. Cancer Causes Control. 2008; 19(9):895-907.
- Anil S, Preethanath RS, AlMoharib HS, Kamath KP, Anand PS. Impact of osteoporosis and its treatment on oral health. Am J Med Sci. 2013; 346(5):396-401.
- Mealey BL, Oates TW. Diabetes mellitus and periodontal diseases. J Periodontol. 2006; 77(8):1289.
- Kassebaum NJ, Bernabé E, Dahiya M, Bhandari B, Murray CJ, Marcenes W. Global burden of untreated caries: a systematic review and metaregression. J Dent Res. 2015; 94(5):650.

- Frencken JE, Sharma P, Stenhouse L, Green D, Laverty D, Dietrich T. Global epidemiology of dental caries and severe periodontitis-a comprehensive review. J Clin Periodontol. 2017; 44:S94.
- 13. Warnakulasuriya S. Global epidemiology of oral and oropharyngeal cancer. Oral Oncol. 2009; 45(4-5):309.
- Hussein AA, Helder MN, de Visscher JG, Leemans CR, Braakhuis BJ, de Vet HC, Forouzanfar T. Global incidence of oral and oropharynx cancer in patients younger than 45 years versus older patients: A systematic review. Eur J Cancer (Oxford, England: 1990). 2017; 82:115.
- Alhaddad B, Rózsa NK, Tarján I. Dental trauma in children in Budapest. A retrospective study. Eur J Paediatr Dent. 2019; 20(2):111.
- Azami-Aghdash S, Azar FE, Azar FP, Rezapour A, Moradi-Joo M, Moosavi A, Oskouei SG. Prevalence, etiology, and types of dental trauma in children and adolescents: systematic review and meta-analysis. Med JIslam Repub Iran. 2015; 29(4):234.
- Khan F, Ayub A, Kibria Z. Knowledge, Attitude and practice about oral health among general population of Peshawar. J Dow Univ Health Sci. 2013;7(3)117-21.
- Younus A, Qureshi A. Tooth brush changing frequency and associated socio-demographic and oral hygiene factors among residents of Karachi. J Dent Oral Hyg. 2016;8(2):4-11.
- Ahmed ZU, Shafiq K, Wali A, Siddiqui TM, Usman A. Knowledge, attitude and practices of oral health amongst low socioeconomic strata of Sindh. Pak Oral Dent J. 2016;36(4):628
- 20. Nagarajappa R, Sahare P, Shukla N, Tuteja J, Bhalla A. Knowledge, attitude and practices regarding oral health among out patients at Rama Dental College, Kanpur. Rama Univ J Dent Sci. 2015;2(1):8-14.
- 21. Singh A, Gambhir RS, Singh S, Kapoor V, Singh J. Oral health: How much do you know?–A study on knowledge, attitude and practices of patients visiting a North Indian dental school. Eur J Dent. 2014;8(1):63.
- 22. Kaira LS, Srivastava V, Giri P, Chopra D. Oral Health-Related Knowledge, Attitude and Practice among Nursing Students of Rohilkhand Medical College and Hospital. J Orofac Res. 2012;2(1):20-3.
- 23. Dawani N, Afaq A, Bilal S. Oral health knowledge, attitude and practices amongst teachers of public school set-up of Karachi, Pakistan. J Dow Univ Health Sci. 2013;7(1):15-9.
- 24. Kapoor D, Gill S, Singh A, Kaur I, Kapoor P. Oral hygiene awareness and practice amongst patients visiting the department of periodontology at a dental college and hospital in North India. Indian J Dent. 2014;5(2):64.
- Verma S, Deepak U, Misra N, Saran G, Banerjee A, Jaiswal S. Cleaning Aids in Dentistry: A Cognizant Survey. J Adv Med Dent Sci Res. 2019;7(1):14-6.
- 26. Goryawala SN, Chavda P, Udhani S, Pathak NV, Pathak S, Ojha R. A survey on oral hygiene methods practiced by patients attending Dentistry Department at a Tertiary Care Hospital from Central Gujarat. J Int Soc Prev Community Dent. 2016;6(2):115.



Neonatal Outcomes In Cord Clamping And Its Association With Hematological Parameters.

Zara Jamali, Shazia Naseeb, Saba Khan, Khadija Bano

Objective: To compare the neonatal outcomes in early and delayed cord clamping and to find Its association with hematological parameters in neonates of Jinnah Postgraduate Medical Centre, Karachi.

Study Design and Setting: It was a cross sectional study conducted from 1st July 2016 to 31st December 2016 at Department of Obstetrics & Gynaecology, Jinnah Postgraduate Medical Centre, Karachi.

Methodology: 342 pregnant women were selected through convenient sampling technique meeting inclusion criteria after obtaining ethical approval all pimigravida with age range of 25 to 45 years with singleton term pregnancy delivered through normal vaginal delivery, in 3rd stages of labour were included in the study. Multi-gravid women or any women with a Systemic disease such as hypertension, diabetes mellitus thyroid disorder, and cardiac disease were excluded. Demographic variables, blood parameters, were recorded. SPSS version 20.0 was used for data analysis. Neonatal outcomes were assessed in terms of neonatal haemoglobin, haematocrit, platelet count and bilirubin level with respect to early and delayed cord clamping. Descriptive statistics were calculated. P-value = 0.05 was taken as significant.

Results: the total of 342 pregnant women selected for this study, divided into 2 groups depending upon early (gp-1) or late clamping(gp-2). The mean haemoglobin in group 1 was 13.2 mg/dl and in group 2 was 13.4 mg/dl. Mean haematocrit in group 1 was 40.8 % and in group 2 were 41.3 %. (P-value=0.03). Polycythemia in group 1 was found to be present in 5 (2.92%) neonates while in group 2, 19 (11.11 %) neonates had polycythemia (p-value=0.003). High bilirubin in group 1 was present in 7 (4.09 %) of neonates while 33 (19.30 %) neonates in group 2 had high bilirubin.(p-value=0.001)

Conclusion: Our study showed that neonates with late clamping had lower incidence of anaemia, higher haematocrit as compared to early clamping but were prone to a higher levels of bilirubin as well as polycythemia. Significant variations for haematocrit, polycythemia and bilirubin were found.

L

L

L

1

I

|

I

L

Key Word: neonatal outcome, cord clamping, haematological parameters

INTRODUCTION:

Umbilical cord clamping is one of the oldest interventions that humans have done. Timing of Cord clamping is still controversial and debatable. It may be early cord clamping (ECC) (clamp Of cord <60 seconds after delivery) or delayed cord clamping (DCC) (Clamp of cord 60-180 Seconds after delivery)¹. Nowadays DCC is thought to be a new intervention. Through placental Transfusion new born can achieve 30% rise in blood volume and 60% rise in red blood cells².

Several theories about the potential benefits and risks of delaying cord clamping of the umbilical Cord have been

Zara Jamali Postgraduate Student Jinnah Postgraduate Medical Center, Karachi
Shazia Naseeb Associate Professor, Department of OBS/GYNAE Jinnah Postgraduate Medical Center, Karachi Email: snkhan1975@yahoo.com
Saba Khan Assistant Professor Jinnah Postgraduate Medical Center, Karachi
Khadija Bano Professor Jinnah Postgraduate Medical Center, Karachi
Received: 12-06-2019 Accepted: 12-09-2019

postulated and studied in recent years. Chief advantages of DCC are Increased haemoglobin and haematocrit level not only for neonatal period but there is ultimate Reduction of iron deficiency anaemia and its consequences like impaired cognitive. Functions and low immunity with resultant increased risk of infections in Infancy³.

Prior physiological studies have demonstrated that about 25-60% of total fetoplacental blood Volume found in placental circulation which is equivalent to 54-160ml or 60% of fetal red cells⁴.And blood is a well known source of hematopoietic stem cells⁵. Many studies conducted in past have proved that by delayed cord clamping newborn can get 20-40ml of extra blood which is About 30-35 mg of Iron^{6,7} so hypovolemic damage, Iron loss and, as well as of several blood Disorders and type 2 diabetes, as a consequence of loss of hematopoietic stem cells8. Early cord Clamping has been supposed as a prime origin of anemia in infancy. So some of Researchers are in favour of DCC and endorse that delayed cord clamping as a low-cost. Intervention to reduce anaemia during first six months of life9. Others realize that blood overload from delayed cord clamping can produce respiratory distress, polycythemia and jaundice^{10,11}. while with early cord clamping maternal blood loss following birth can be reduced significantly¹².

Several reviews have studied the potential benefits and risks of late vs early clamping of he umbilical cord. In a recent study of cord clamping in the preterm population, late lamping showed some potential benefit in terms of decreased need for blood transfusion nd lower risk of intra-ventricular haemorrhage¹³. Reviews to date of studies in term infants provided no strong evidence for the superiority of either clamping strategy¹⁴.

The objective of this study was to compare the neonatal outcomes in early and delayed cord clamping and to find their association with different haematological parameters in neonates of Jinnah Postgraduate Medical Centre, Karachi.

METODOLOGY:

This is cross sectional observational study . three hundred forty two patients were selected through non- probability Convenient sampling. Sample size was calculated on the prevalence of 50 % This study was conducted in department of obstetrics and gynaecology Jinnah postgraduate medical center Karachi. All primigravdas with age range of 24-45 with Singleton pregnancy present in 3rd stage of labour at 37 or more weeks of gestational age were included in the study. Women with history of medical disorders like hypertension, diabetes, thyroids dysfunctions and hematological disorders were excluded from the study. Pregnant women were divided in two groups in group cord was clamped within 1 minute after the birth while in group 2 cord was clamped between 1-3 minutes. All other aspects of obstetric care was managed according to standard practice in the hospital. Data was entered and analyzed in SPSS version 20. Descriptive analysis was performed. Mean and standard deviation were calculated for quantitative variables such as maternal age, gestational age, haemoglobin level, hematocrit, serum bilirubin level, and cord clamping time. Frequencies an percentages were calculated for quantitative variables i-e polycythemia, low Hematocrit, high serum bilirubin and anaemia. Chi square and t- Test were applied and p-value of less than and equal was taken as significant.

RESULTS:

Total 342 patients were selected for this study. Patients were divided equally in two Groups each group comprises of 171 patients. early cord clamping was done in group 1. Patients while delayed cord clamping in group 2 patients. The mean maternal age in group 1. Was 35.63=+5.99 years and in group 2 was 34.80+5.98 years. The mean gestational age in group 1 was 38.54+0.95 and in group 2 was 38.46+0.95. The mean cord clamp time in group 1 Was 45.32+1.07 seconds while in group 2 was 118.63+33.18 seconds. Mean hemoglobin level in group 1 was 13.11+1.33mg/dl and in group 2 was13.44+1.07mgdl. Mean hematocrit in group 1 was 40.89+3.77% and in group 2 was41.39+3.02%. The mean bilirubin in group 1 was9.15+5.76 mg/dl while in group 2 was13.11+10.13mg/dl mentioned in (Table 1). In group1

12(7%) neonates were anemic while 159(92.98%) of neonates were normal. In group2 only 5(2.92%) neonates were

anemic while 166 (97.08) had no anemia(p-value0.08). in group 1 there were 19(11.11%) neonates having low hematocrit while 152(88.89%) of neonates were anaemic.in group 2 only 8(4.68%) neonates had low hematocrit while163(95.32.%) did not (pvalue0.03). Polycythemia in group 1 was found to be present in 5(2.92%) of neonates while 166(97.18%) did not. In group 2 19(11.11%) neonates had polycythemia while 152(88.89%) did not (p-value 0.003). High bilirubin in group 1 was found to be present 7(4.09%) of neonates While 164(95.91%) did not. In Group 2 33(19.3%) neonates had high bilirubin while 138(80.70%) did not. (P-value 0.001) Table2.

DISCUSSION:

The impact of Iron deficiency anaemia has serious implication on newborn health like impaired neurodevelopment, which can affect individual's cognitive, motor and behavioral abilities¹⁵. Many studies proved that with delayed cord clamping, Anaemia and its detrimental effects can be avoided in the period of infancy¹⁶ and it is accepted generally as low cost effective intervention¹⁷.By delaying cord clamping the amount of total Iron reaches in newborn circulation is enough for the period of three months of life¹⁸. We noticed in our study that in DCC group there is slight decrease in anaemia

Table 1: Baseline characteristics of the two groups and their mean difference

Variable	Groups	n	Mean	Standard deviation	P-value	
Age of Mothers	Group 1	171	35.63	5.99	0.96	
(Years)	Group 2	171	34.80	5.98	0.86	
Gestational Age	Group 1	171	38.54	0.95	0.04	
(weeks)	Group 2	171	38.46	0.94	0.94	
Cord clamping Time (seconds)	Group 1	171	45.32	7.94	0.001	
	Group 2	171	118.63	33.18	0.001	
Hemoglobin level (mg/dl)	Group 1	171	13.29	1.33	0.12	
	Group 2	171	13.44	1.07	0.12	
Hematocrit (%)	Group 1	171	40.89	3.77	0.02	
	Group 2	171	41.39	3.02	0.02	
Bilirubin	Group 1	171	9.15	5.76	0.001	
(mg/dl)	Group 2	171	13.11	10.13	0.001	

 Table 2: Frequency of different hematological variation in each group.

Variable	Group 1 n=171		Group	P_valua	
variable	Yes (%)	No (%)	Yes (%)	No (%)	I -value
Anaemia	12(7%)	159(93%	05 (3%)	166(97%)	0.08
Low hematocrit	19(11%)	152(89%)	08(5%)	163(95%)	0.03
Polycythemia	05(3%)	166(97%)	19(11%)	152(89%)	0.003
High bilirubin	07(4%)	164(96%)	33(19%)	138(81%)	0.001

that is 5 out of 171 babies had anaemia while in group of ECC 12 Newborn had anaemia while increased hyperbilirubin(33 out of 171), hematocrit (41 out of 171) and polycythemia (19out of 171) were found in group 2. Similar finding was noted in study by Nesheli HM¹⁹, it was reported the mean hemoglobin in early cord clamping group of 30 neonates to be 10.68 mg/dl while in delayed cord clamping group of 30 neonates to be 11.56 mg/dl. Mean hematocrit in early cord clamping group was 31.36and in delayed cord clamping was 34.26 was noted in, Another study supports the same finding by Cernadas JM et al²⁰, anemia in early clamping group of 90 neonates was reported to be present in 8 (8.9%) of neonates while none of the neonates in delayed clamping group reported anemia. Polycythemia was found in 5 (4.4%) of neonates in early clamping group and 13 (14%) neonates with delayed clamping was found to have polycythemia. Early clamping group had a mean hematocrit of 51.1 % while in late clamping group it was 56.4 % and the mean hematocrit in early clamping to be 53.50% among 92 neonates while in the late clamping group it was 59.40 % among 90 neonates.

Another study by Chaparro CM et al recorded the mean hematocrit among 155 neonates of early clamping to be 59.50 % while in 166 neonates of late clamping it was 62 %. No neonates were reported to have polycythemia²¹. In a study byNelle M et al mean hematocrit of 15 neonates with early clamping was 43% and 15 neonates with late camping was 59%. No neonates were reported to have polycythemia in both early and late clamping group²². Mean bilirubin in early clamping group was 6.1 mg/dl while in late clamping it was 5.8 mg/dl. No neonates were reported to have polycythemia in the early clamping group while only 3 neonates were found to have polycythemia in the late clamping group²³.

Aziz SF et al recorded a mean hematocrit of 43% among 15 neonates with early clamping while in 15 neonates with late clamping it was reported as 59%²⁴. In a study by Linderkamp O et al the mean hematocrit in early clamping group was reported to be 44 % among 15 neonates while in the late clamping group it was 59 % among 15 neonates. None of the neonates were reported to have polycythemia in both groups²⁵. This finding is not consistent with our finding. ACOG acknowledge the risk of excessive placental transfusion with DCC where other risk factors for fetal polycythemia exist, such as maternal Diabetes, IUGR and high altitude²⁶.

Previously it was thought that with the help of ECC Postpartum Hemorrhage can be avoided but recent studies shows no clear benefit²⁷. We also did not observed this finding for the reason of DCC. Contraindication for DCC are APH/abruption placenta vasa previa, p. previa, umbilical cord avulsion, cord prolapsed, fetal compromise in multiple pregnancy.

These studies show a more or less similar finding to our study with regards to anemia, bilirubin, hematocrit, polycythemia. The quantitative approach of our study has assured that we have assessed the difference of blood parameters in the early vs. late clamping groups, However, the study might not be immune from selection and observer bias. Considering the views of our observations and to what extent they are consistent with the demographic variables would be revealing to discover more facts about neonatal outcomes which will help clinicians in reducing the burden of anemia at the preliminary level

CONCLUSION:

Neonates with late clamping had lower incidence of anemia, higher haematocrit as compared to early clamping but were prone to a higher levels of bilirubin as well as polycythemia. Significant variations for haematocrit, polycythemia and bilirubin were found.

REFERENCES:

- Andersson O, Domellöf M, Andersson D, Hellström-Westas L. Effect of delayed vs early umbilical cord clamping on iron status and neurodevelopment at age 12 months: a randomized clinical trial. JAMA pediatrics. 2014;168(6):547-54.
- 2. McDonald SJ, Middleton P, Dowswell T, Morris PS. Effect of timing of umbilical cord clamping of term infants on maternal and neonatal outcomes. Evidence Based Child Health: A Cochrane Review Journal. 2014;9(2):303-97.
- 3. Pawar MN, Mohanty N, Mathews M. Effect of Stripping of the Umbilical Cord Blood Towards the Baby at Birth on Immediate Neonatal and Developmental Outcome. International Journal of Nursing Education. 2017;9(1):77-81.
- Díaz-Castro J, Florido J, Kajarabille N, Garrido-Sánchez M, Padilla C, de Paco C, et al. The timing of cord clamping and oxidative stress in term newborns. Pediatrics. 2014;134(2):257-64.
- 5. Holvey N. The imperative of implementing delayed cord clamping to improve maternal and neonatal outcomes. British Journal of Midwifery. 2014;22(9):651-6.
- 6. Mercer JS. Current best evidence: a review of the literature on umbilical cord clamping. Journal of midwifery & women's health. 2001;46(6):402- 12.
- Jain M, Mathur M, Gupta PP, Acharya U, Malhotra AK. Relationship of timing of cord clamp to the neonatal haematological status of newborn-A comparison in term babies born via normal vaginal delivery & caesarean delivery Journal of Evolution of Medical and Dental Sciences. 2014;3(7):1596-605.
- Yigit MB, Kowalski WJ, Hutchon DJ, Pekkan K. Transition from fetal to neonatal circulation: modeling the effect of umbilical cord clamping. Journal of biomechanics. 2015;48(9):1662-70.
- 9. Ersdal HL, Linde J, Mduma E, Auestad B, Perlman J. Neonatal outcome following cord clamping after onset of spontaneous respiration. Pediatrics. 2014;134(2):265-72.
- 10. Ishtiaq A, Bano I. Effect of timing of cord clamping on neonatal venous hematocrit and clinical outcome at term-hospital based randomized control trial. Journal of Medicine and Medical Sciences. 2017;8(1):1-6.

- 11. Boere I, Smit M, Roest AA, Lopriore E, van Lith JM, te Pas AB. Current practice of cord clamping in the Netherlands: a questionnaire study. Neonatology. 2015;107(1):50-5.
- Backes CH, Huang H, Iams JD, Bauer JA, Giannone PJ. Timing of umbilical cord clamping among infants born at 22 through 27 weeks' gestation. Journal of perinatology: official journal of the California Perinatal Association. 2016;36(1):35-40.
- Bartlett L, Cantor D, Lynam P, Kaur G, Rawlins B, Ricca J, et al. Facility- based active management of the third stage of labour: assessment of quality in six countries in sub-Saharan Africa. Bulletin of the World Health Organization. 2015;93:759-67.
- 14. Mathew JL. Timing of umbilical cord clamping in term and preterm deliveries and infant and maternal outcomes: a systematic review of randomized controlled trials. Indian pediatrics. 2011; 48(2):123-9.
- 15. Radlowski ECjohnson RW.Perinatal iron deficiency and num Neurosci.2013;7:585.
- KE A,, Rana N, Malwiqvist M, Jarawka Ranneberg L, Subedi K Anderson O. Effectsarly of delayed umbilical cord vs early clamping on anemia in infant at 8 and 12 months: a randomized clinical trial. JPMA Pediatr. 2017;171(3):264-270.
- Bhutta ZA, AhmedT, Black REens S, Dewey K, Giugliani E, Haider BA, Kirkwood B, Morris SS, Sachdev HP<et al. What works? Interventions for Maternal and child undernutrtion and survival.Lancet. 2008; 371(9610):417-440.
- Lalonde A, International Federation of G, Obstetrics Prevention and treatment of postpartum hemorrhage in low-resource settings. Int J Gynaecol Obstet. 2012;117(2):108–118 doi:10.1016/j.ijgo.2012.03.001.
- Nesheli HM, Esmailzadeh S, Haghshenas M, Bijani A, Moghaddams TG. Effect of late vs early clamping of the umbilical cord (on haemoglobin level) in full-term neonates. J Pak Med Assoc. 2014;64(11):1303-5.

- Cernadas JM, Carroli G, Pellegrini L, Otaño L, Ferreira M, Ricci C, et al. The effect of timing of cord clamping on neonatal venous hematocrit values and clinical outcome at term: a randomized, controlled trial. Pediatrics. 2006;117 (4):779-86.
- 21. Chaparro CM, Neufeld LM, Alavez GT, Cedillo RE, Dewey KG. Effect of timing of umbilical cord clamping on iron status in Mexican infants: a randomised controlled trial. The Lancet. 2006;367(9527):1997-2004
- 22. Nelle M, Zilow EP, Kraus M, Bastert G, Linderkamp O. The effect of Leboyer delivery on blood viscosity and other hemorheologic parameters in term neonates. American Journal of Obstetrics & Gynecology. 1993;169(1):189-93.
- 23. Emhamed MO, van Rheenen P, Brabin BJ. The Early Effects of Delayed Corde Clamping in Term Infants Born to Libyan Mothers. Tropical doctor. 2004;34(4):218-22.
- 24. Aziz SF, Shaheen MY, Hussein S, Soliman MS. Early cord clamping and its effect on some hematological determinants of blood viscosity in neonates. Diunduhdari: OBGYN. net. Diakses Desember. 2007.
- 25. Lindercamp O.Nelle M, Krause M, Zilow EP The effects of early and late cord clamping on blood viscosity and other hematological parameters in full term neonates. Acta paediatrics. 1992;81(10):745-50.
- American college of Obstetician and Gynaecologist, Committee opinion no.543: Timing of umbilical cord clamping after birth 2012;120(6):1522-6. doi: 10.1097/01. AOG.0000423817. 47165.48
- 27. Mc Adams RM, Bakes CH, Hutcon DJ. Steps of implementing Delayed cord clamping in a Hospital setting. Matern Health Neonatol prinatol.2015;1:10.



Awareness Of Medical Students Regarding Periodontal Disease In Diabetic Patients In A Private Dental College of Karachi

Natasha Fatima, Saima Mazhar, Mushtaq Ahmed, Umair Aslam

ABSTRACT:

Objective: The aim of this study was to evaluate the awareness and knowledge of periodontal disease among medical students of Bahria University Medical and Dental College (BUMDC) while treating diabetic patients.

Study design and Setting: It was a cross sectional study conducted in Bahria University Medical and Dental College (BUMDC) Karachi.

Methodology: This study included participants currently studying in 3rd, 4th and final year Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery (MBBS) in BUMDC Karachi. Questionnaire was divided into two parts, in the first part, demographic details and year of study were asked, in the second part, questions regarding diabetes mellitus and its complications were included. Total of 384 participants participated in the study and the data was statistically analyzed using responses SPSS version 23.

Results: All the participants successfully completed the questionnaire so the response rate was 100% in this study. From 384 participants, 37% were male and 63% were female. The majority of the students were aged between 22-23 years. About 64.1% of respondents thought that they were aware of periodontal disease in diabetic patients whereas only 19.5% individual had knowledge of periodontitis. Also around 44% of medical students could not specify clinical manifestations in periodontitis and only 48.4% participants could state the periodontal manifestations present in diabetic mellitus.

Conclusion: It is concluded from the study that medical students have very limited knowledge regarding periodontal disease and its association with diabetes mellitus. Very few medical students were informed about referring the diabetic patients to the dental surgeon.

Т

L

L

Т

Keywords: Diabetes Mellitus, Medical Students, Periodontitis, Periodontal Disease.

INTRODUCTION:

Diabetes is a metabolic disorder in which glucose level increases, with functional disorders of metabolism of protein, fat and carbohydrate, which results from defects in insulin secretion, insulin action, or both.¹ Diabetes has been graded into multiple categories including. Type 1 diabetes (caused by autoimmune â-cell destruction, which leads to complete deficiency of insulin). Type 2 diabetes (caused by loss of â-cell insulin secretion progressively which eventually causes insulin resistance), Gestational diabetes mellitus (GDM) (occurs in pregnancy mainly 2nd and 3rd trimester), Specific types of diabetes due to other causes, e.g., monogenic

Natasha Fatima Registrar Bahria University Medical and Dental College, Karachi Email: natashafatima93@yahoo.com
Saima Mazhar Sr. Lecturer Bahria University Medical and Dental College, Karachi
Mushtaq Ahmed Sr. Associate Professor Bahria University Medical and Dental College, Karachi
Umair Aslam Lecturer Bahria University Medical and Dental College, Karachi
Received: 23-05-2019 Accepted: 11-09-2019

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

diabetes syndromes (neonatal diabetes and maturity-onset diabetes of the young (MODY), diseases of the exocrine pancreas (cystic fibrosis), and drug- or chemical-induced diabetes (with glucocorticoid use, in the treatment of HIV/AIDS, or after organ transplantation).² Diabetes mellitus can cause multiple complications e.g. cardiac arrest, brain stroke, renal failure, leg amputation, loss of vision and nerve damage. In pregnancy, poorly controlled diabetes increases the risk of fetal death and other complications.³

In 2017 International Diabetes Federation (IDF) reported that around 451 million (age 18-99?years) people are affected with diabetes worldwide, which may increase up to 693 million by 2045. It was estimated that 49.7% diabetic individuals are never diagnosed. Around 5 million people, in the age range of 20-99 years, died because of diabetes worldwide.⁴ The demographical studies showed that the prevalence of Diabetes in Pakistan is ranging from 7.6% to 11%.5 The prevalence of DM in Pakistan was reported to be 5.2 million in the year 2000 and by the year 2030, it may reach up to 13.9 million.⁶

Among other systemic complication, diabetes played an important role in oral diseases. Individuals with poorly controlled diabetes are more vulnerable to oral infections. Periodontitis is a sixth complication of diabetes.⁷ Periodontitis is a condition which causes inflammatory changes in the supporting structures of the teeth including gingival fibers, bone and periodontal fibers, which can eventually lead to loss of teeth and may cause systemic inflammation. Chronic periodontitis mostly occurs in adults whereas aggressive periodontitis affects children only.⁸According to American Dental Association (ADA), individuals with fasting blood glucose levels higher than 125 mg/dL or 7 mmol/L are considered as diabetic.⁸

Diagnosis is made on the basis of systemic and oral signs and symptoms. Systemic signs and Symptoms include hyperglycemia include polyuria, polydipsia, weight loss, sometimes with polyphagia, and blurred vision whereas oral symptoms include gingivitis and periodontitis, recurrent oral fungal infections and impaired wound healing with reduced salivary flow.⁹ Diabetes attack all periodontal factors, including bleeding on probing, probing depths, attachment loss and tooth loss.¹⁰ Diabetes may cause changes in the collagen metabolism, gingival crevicular fluid, host response and the tissue micro flora. Inflammatory mediators like interleukin (IL)-1, IL-6 and tumor necrosis factor (TNF) alpha are formed by inflamed periodontal tissues which change the glycemic control thus affecting the glucose and lipid metabolism.¹⁰

Numerous studies have been conducted which show that very few patients with diabetes visit dentists for regular check-ups to evaluate their periodontal health status and are not aware of the knowledge of the oral health maintenance. There were few studies conducted on the assessment of the behavior and attitude of doctors towards the treatment of patients having diabetes. It was found out that very few physicians convey with the patient's dentists regarding their diabetes status and oral condition.¹¹

Allen conducted a study in which he assessed the knowledge of diabetic patients about periodontal diseases and found that they had a very low awareness of this relationship, as compared to increased knowledge for the increased risk of eye diseases, heart disease, kidney disease and circulatory problems.¹² Despite the role of oral health care in systemic health, it is an aspect that is often neglected.¹³ It is recommended that physicians should integrate education into the management regimen of their diabetic patients about periodontal disease and its risk factors. There should be a focus on referral of diabetic patients to dental care professionals for thorough dental evaluation.¹⁴

Thus, it is necessary for medical practitioners to have basic dental education to evaluate symptoms and diagnose dental diseases among patients, to deliver emergency dental treatment when needed or to recommend these patients to maintain good oral hygiene.¹⁵ Dental students have adequate knowledge about periodontal disease but limited studies are available which reveal the knowledge of medical students about periodontal disease as a complication of diabetes mellitus in Pakistan. Therefore; the rationale of this study was to find out the knowledge regarding the relationship

between diabetes mellitus and oral health among medical students. This study would be beneficial in enlightening the medical students about periodontal disease and its serious short term and long term complications. The aim of this study was to evaluate the awareness and knowledge of periodontal disease among medical students of Bahria University Medical and Dental College (BUMDC) while treating diabetic patients.

METHODOLOGY:

A cross sectional questionnaire based study was conducted in Bahria University Medical and Dental College (BUMDC) Karachi from august 2018 to December 2018.Sample size was calculated as 384 on the prevalence of 50%. A selfadministered questionnaire was distributed among the subjects through convenience sample technique and written consent was obtained from each participant before filling the forms. This study included participants who are currently studying in 3rd, 4th and final year bachelor of medicine and bachelor of surgery (MBBS) in BUMDC Karachi. Students who failed to give consent were excluded. Ethical clearance certificate was obtained from ethical review committee of Bahria University Medical and Dental College (BUMDC) Karachi Pakistan numbered ERC 63/2018.

A survey comprising of 15 questions was used to assess the knowledge among medical students regarding periodontal disease in diabetic patients. Questionnaire was divided into two parts, in the first part, demographic details and year of study were asked, in the second part, questions regarding diabetes mellitus and its complications were included. The questionnaire assessed the knowledge of medical students regarding periodontal disease in diabetic patients through following questions (1) ADA approved fasting blood glucose test level (2) most common oral micro vascular complications of diabetes(3) knowledge of Periodontitis(4) clinical manifestations in Periodontitis(5) most commonly found periodontal manifestation among uncontrolled diabetic individuals(6) estimate your knowledge about periodontitis and its relationship with systemic disease.Data analysis was done using SPSS Version 23.

RESULTS:

Among 384 participants, 142 were males and 242 females. 128 participants were from 3rd year, 129 from 4th and 127 from final year. All the participants successfully completed the questionnaire so the response rate was 100% in this study. According to the results shown in table 2, this study depicts that only 13.3% of medical students always ask diabetic patients if they have ever been diagnosed with periodontal disease.

A majority of respondents i.e. 64.1% were aware of periodontal disease in diabetic patients whereas only 19.5% individual had knowledge of periodontitis.

Among the entire population of medical students; 44% could



Natasha Fatima, Saima Mazhar, Mushtaq Ahmed, Umair Aslam

not specify clinical manifestations in periodontitis and only 48.4% participants could state the periodontal manifestations present in diabetic mellitus.

About 33.6% of the participants thought that they have moderate to good knowledge about periodontitis and its relationship with systemic diseases like diabetes mellitus. 34.1% of the individuals never referred while 19.3% of the individuals always refer their patients for evaluation to a dentist.



Table 1. Knowledge Parameters of Periodontal Disease in D	iabetic patients among 3rd	¹ ,4 th and 5 th year MBBS Students
---	----------------------------	--

Parameters	Options	3rd Year	4th Year	5th Year	P-value	
Normal range of fasting blood	50-69 mg/dl	2(1.6%)	8(6.2%)	1(0.8%)		
	70-99 mg/dl	95(74.2%)	79(61.2%)	60(47.2%)	0.000	
glucose level	100-125 mg/dl	26(20.3%)	35(27.1%)	60(47.2%)		
	>126 mg/dl	5(3.9%)	7(5.4%)	6(4.7%)		
	50-69 mg/dl	1(0.8%)	9(7.0%)	3(2.4%)		
Fasting blood glucose test level	70-99 mg/dl	8(6.3%)	10(7.8%)	5(3.9%)	0.005	
in diabetes	100-125 mg/dl	28(21.9%)	36(27.9%)	19(13%)		
	>126 mg/dl	91(71.1%)	74(57.4%)	100(78.7%)		
Martin	Xerostomia	38(29.7%)	64(49.6%)	50(39.4%)		
complications in diabetes	Gingivitis	72(56.3%)	42(32.6%)	55(43.3%)	0.014	
mellitus	Leukoplakia	8(6.3%)	11(8.5%)	8(6.3%)	0.014	
	Gingival enlargement	10(7.8%)	12(9.3%)	14(11.0%)	1	
	Inflammation of Enamel	22(17.2%)	47(36.4%)	31(24.4%)	(0) (0)	
	Inflammation of Dentin	39(30.5%)	21(16.3%)	30(23.6%)		
What is Periodontitis?	Inflammation of gingiva 55(43.0%) 37(28.7%) 27(21		27(21.3%)	0.000		
	Inflammation of PDL,	12(9.4%)	24(18.6%)	39(30.7%)]	
	Cementum & Bone					
Rank of Periodontitis in	1st	26(20.3%)	23(17.8%)	15(11.8%)		
complication of diabetes	2nd	27(21.1%)	26(20.2%)	26(20.2%)	0.003	
mellitus.	3rd	40(31.3%)	38(29.5%)	21(16.5%)		
include.	6th	35(27.3%)	42(32.6%)	65(512%)		
	Increased collagenase activity	19(14.8%)	20(15.5%)	21(16.5%)		
structures in poorly controlled	Decreased collagen synthesis	35(27.3%)	36(27.9%)	28(22.0%)	0.263	
diabetic	Decreased collagenase activity 13(10.2%) 16(12.4%) 6(4.7%)		6(4.7%)	0.203		
	Both a & b	61(47.7%)	57(44.2%)	72(56.7%)		
Most common periodontal manifestation in diabetes	Periodontal abscess	31(24.2%)	26(20.2%)	28(22.0%)		
	Bleeding gums 72(56.2%) 58(44.9%) 56(44.0%)		56(44.0%)	0.024		
	Ulcers	25(19.5%)	45(34.9%)	43(33.85%)		

Parameters	OPTIONS	3 RD YEAR	4 TH YEAR	5 th YEAR	P-value	
Awareness of complications	Yes	118(92.2%)	117(90.7%)	118(92.9%)	0.000	
of diabetes	No	10(7.8%)	12(9.3%)	9(7.1%)	0.090	
Awareness of periodontal	Yes	77(60.2%)	90(69.8%)	79(62.2%)	0.007	
disease in diabetics?	No	51(39.8%)	39(30.2%)	48(37.7%)	0.005	
	Never	69(53.9%)	62(48.1%)	82(64.6%)		
Ask patients about periodontal disease	Often	37(28.9%)	52(40.3%)	31(24.4%)	0.020	
periodonical disease	Always	22(17.2%)	15(11.6%)	14(11.0%)]	
	Bleeding gums	53(41.4%)	46(35.7%)	24(18.9%)		
Clinical manifestations in	Mobile teeth	3(2.3%)	5(3.9%)	10(7.9%)	0.002	
Periodontitis	Gingival recession	6(4.7%)	13(10.1%)	9(7.1%)	- 0.002	
	All of the above	66(51.6%)	65(50.4%)	84(66.1%)		
Advise to diabetic patients who have or are at risk for periodontal disease	Encouraged to visit a dentist at	73(57.0%)	76(58.9%)	81(63.8%)		
	least once a year					
	Advised to follow a strict a diet	36(28.1%)	30(23.3%)	33(26.0%)	1	
	regimen			0.4		
	Advised to increase the drug	9(7.0%)	15(11.6%)	9(7.1%)]	
	dosage					
	Advised to reduce weight	10(7.8%)	8(6.2%)	4(3.1%)		
Knowledge about periodontal	Limited	86(67.2%)	90(69.8%)	79(62.2%)		
disease and its relationship	Moderate	35(27.3%) 18(14.0%) 36(28.3%)		36(28.3%)	0.004	
with systemic disease	Good	7(5.5%)	21(16.3%)	12(9.4%)	1	
	Strongly disagree	10(7.8%)	30(23.3%)	10(7.9%)		
Role as a physician for	Disagree 16(12.5%) 22(17.1%) 26(20.5%)		26(20.5%)	0 000		
evaluation of periodontal	Agree	86(67.2%)	73(56.6%)	82(64.6%)		
	Strongly agree	16(12.5%)	4(3.1%)	9(7.1%)]	

Table 2. Awareness Parameters of periodontal disease in diabetic patients among 3rd, 4th and 5th year MBBS Students.

DISCUSSION:

This study was conducted to evaluate the knowledge and awareness of periodontal disease commonly present in diabetic patients among medical students. Diabetes has been linked to chronic periodontitis. In an epidemiologic study conducted in the United States, Periodontitis is 2.9 times more common in individuals with poorly controlled diabetes as compared to non-diabetic individuals.¹⁶ A study reported that it's a bidirectional relationship between DM and periodontal disease (PD). It's a relationship in which Periodontal Disease can effect glycemic control levels and uncontrolled Diabetes can aggravate Periodontal Disease.¹⁷ Generally only dental hygienists and Dentists have been educated regarding the oral disease and its systemic association.¹⁸However there are quite less studies about education of medical practitioners regarding oral-systemic connection related to periodontal disease and its systemic complication.19

In our study only 19.5% of the participants had a knowledge about periodontitis which was significantly lower than the study conducted by Roshni Jaiswal which was found to be 43.33%.²⁰According to our study 64.1% of the participants were aware that diabetic individuals are prone to periodontal disease which was comparable to 68% of Indian population.²⁰So overall medical students have limited knowledge of diabetes and its oral manifestations. A study by al Khabbaz et al, showed that only half of all study participants believed that diabetic patients were more vulnerable to tooth loss whereas in our study almost 60.7% individuals believed that diabetic patients were more vulnerable to tooth loss because of periodontal diseases than non-diabetic individuals.¹¹

There are various studies which highlight the association of systemic disease with periodontal condition. These studies recommended that controlling periodontal and gingival disease may be significant in reducing other systemic inflammatory conditions, thus preventing or controlling diabetes mellitus, cardiovascular diseases and other systemic diseases.^{21,22} A study conducted in North Carolina concluded that majority of the endocrinologists and internists have very limited knowledge about the association of diabetes mellitus with periodontal disease.²³ A study conducted by Bahammam MA, showed that the patients with diabetes

lack basic knowledge about the association between oral health and diabetes. ²⁴As the number of patients having oral complications of diabetes mellitus and other systemic diseases is increasing with time so it is important to incorporate medical-dental collaboration and inter-professional education to manage the rising number of patients. Physicians need to show more interest and get more involved in promotion of oral health. Moreover, incorporation of oral health education in the curriculum of medical students is necessary.²⁵General physicians should get a proper education and knowledge before they can take up a broader role in the early diagnosis of oral diseases.²⁶

Failure of examination of the oral cavity which includes teeth and its supporting structures by physician has been reported.²⁷So it should be encouraged to do routine oral examination of patients with uncontrolled diabetes who are at higher risk for developing periodontal disease. When physicians are examining a diabetic patients, it is vitally important to include examination of oral cavity as it is important for the treatment of Periodontal disease and diabetes mellitis.²⁸Medical practitioners should take certain regulatory steps which includes: inquiring diabetic individuals about their oral hygiene, specifically bad breath, any sign of inflammation, altered taste sensation(Dysgeusia) or any other oral symptoms; also questioning regarding last visit to a dentist and reminding diabetic individuals that they need to have dental examination every 6 months as recommended by American Dental Association (ADA).Diabetic patients should be presented with a personalized dental plan which can be used to inhibit and control periodontitis.29

A study conducted among medical students in Australia revealed that there's generally positive approach towards the significance of oral health trainings. But they had overall less understanding of dental caries, oral-systemic connections, and oral health inconsistency during undergraduate years.¹⁹ The strength of this study was the huge sample size and the intended topic of the study. Among the limitations the single centered study but the results can be generalized to the entire population due to diabetic prevalence in Pakistan. .It is recommended that during medical school years, students obtain less than two hours of training on oral health. More studies are required to assess the impact of dental health referrals and patient's educational interventions. There should be interdisciplinary approach is required between dental and medical professionals to provide holistic care to the diabetic individuals who are at increased risk for periodontal disease and insure timely treatment of the individuals. It is necessary to implement learning approaches in the curriculum for medical and dental students to extend professional education and their association to educate dentists and physicians for prevention and management of diabetic patients with periodontal disease.

CONCLUSION:

It is concluded from the study that medical students have very limited knowledge regarding periodontal disease and its association with diabetes mellitus. Very few medical students were informed about referring the diabetic patients to the dental surgeon.

REFERENCES

- 1. Kamran S, Moradian H, Bakhsh EY. Comparison of the Mean DMF Index in Type I Diabetic and Healthy Children. Journal of Dentistry. 2019;20(1):61.
- 2. American Diabetes Association. 2. Classification and diagnosis of diabetes. Diabetes care. 2017; 40(Supplement 1): S11-24.
- 3. World Health Organization. Global report on diabetes. World Health Organization; 2016.
- Cho NH, Shaw JE, Karuranga S, Huang Y, da Rocha Fernandes JD, Ohlrogge AW, Malanda B. IDF Diabetes Atlas: global estimates of diabetes prevalence for 2017 and projections for 2045. Diabetes research and clinical practice. 2018;138:271-81.
- 5. Hussain A, Ali I. Diabetes mellitus in Pakistan: A major public health concern. Archives of Pharmacy Practice. 2016;7(1):30.
- Salman S, Khan K, Salman F, Hameed M. Effect of nonsurgical periodontal treatment on glycemic control among type 2 diabetes mellitus patients with periodontitis. Journal of Ayub Medical College Abbottabad. 2016;28(4):742-5.
- Varela-Centelles P, Diz-Iglesias P, Estany-Gestal A, Blanco Hortas A, Bugarín-González R, Seoane-Romero JM, Blanco J. Periodontal awareness and what it actually means: A crosssectional study. Oral diseases. 2019;25(3):831-8.
- Kinane DF, Stathopoulou PG, Papapanou PN. Periodontal diseases. Nature Reviews Disease Primers. 2017; 22(3):17038.
- Verhulst MJ, Loos BG, Gerdes VE, Teeuw WJ. Evaluating all potential oral complications of diabetes mellitus. Front. Endocrinol. 10: 56. https://doi.org/10.3389/fendo.2019.00056
- Baranowski MJ, Wójtowicz A, Wysokiñska-Miszczuk J, Klempka J, Kubiszyn M. Diabetes in dental practice-review of literature. Journal of Education, Health and Sport. 2019;9(2):264-74.
- 11. Al-Khabbaz AK, Al-Shammari KF, Al-Saleh NA. Knowledge about the association between periodontal diseases and diabetes mellitus: contrasting dentists and physicians. Journal of periodontology. 2011; 82(3): 360-6.
- Allen EM, Ziada HM, O'halloran D, Clerehugh V, Allen PF. Attitudes, awareness and oral health-related quality of life in patients with diabetes. Journal of oral rehabilitation. 2008; 35(3): 218-23.
- Oyetola EO, Oyewole T, Adedigba M, Aregbesola ST, Umezudike K, Adewale A. Knowledge and awareness of medical doctors, medical students and nurses about dentistry in Nigeria. Pan African Medical Journal. doi: 10.11604/pamj. 2016.23.172.7696
- 14. Fatima G, Akhtar MJ, Naveed N, Ahmd M, Tariq M, Khawaja AR. Diabetic Patients And Periodontitis: A Study. Pakistan Oral & Dental Journal. 20170;37(2):290-3.
- Ahmad MS, Abuzar MA, Razak IA, Rahman SA, Borromeo GL. Educating medical students in oral health care: current curriculum and future needs of institutions in Malaysia and Australia. European Journal of Dental Education. 2017;21(4) :e29-38.

- Knight ET, Liu J, Seymour GJ, Faggion Jr CM, Cullinan MP. Risk factors that may modify the innate and adaptive immune responses in periodontal diseases. Periodontology 2000. 2016;71(1):22-51.
- Bascones-Martinez A, Gonzalez-Febles J, Sanz-Esporrin J. Diabetes and periodontal disease. Review of the literature. Am J Dent. 2014;27(2):63-7.
- Sede MA, Ehizele AO. Oral diseases and diabetes: Nigerian medical and dental caregivers' perspective. Annals of African medicine. 2015;14(4):193.
- Abbott B, Zybutz C, Scott KM, Eberhard J, Widmer R. A review of the hours dedicated to oral health education in medical programmes across Australia. Internal medicine journal. 2018;48(9):1035-40.
- Jaiswal R, Shenoy N, Thomas B. Extent of awareness regarding periodontal disease in diabetic patients among medical interns. Nitte University Journal of Health Science. 2015;5(4):17.
- Hsu YT, Nair M, Angelov N, Lalla E, Lee CT. Impact of diabetes on clinical periodontal outcomes following nonsurgical periodontal therapy. Journal of clinical periodontology. 2019;46(2):206-17.
- 22. Roy M, Gastaldi G, Courvoisier DS, Mombelli A, Giannopoulou C. Periodontal health in a cohort of subjects with type 1 diabetes mellitus. Clinical and Experimental Dental Research. 201;5(3):243-9.
- Owens JB, Wilder RS, Southerland JH, Buse JB, Malone RM. North Carolina internists' and endocrinologists' knowledge, opinions, and behaviors regarding periodontal disease and diabetes: need and opportunity for interprofessional education. Journal of Dental Education. 2011;75(3):329-38.

- 24. Bahammam MA. Periodontal health and diabetes awareness among Saudi diabetes patients. Patient preference and adherence. 2015;9:225-33.
- 25. Mohebbi SZ, Rabiei S, Yazdani R, Nieminen P, Virtanen JI. Evaluation of an educational intervention in oral health for primary care physicians: a cluster randomized controlled study. BMC oral health. 2018;18(1):218. doi: 10.1186/s12903-018-0676-2
- Dana R, Torneck CD, Iglar K, Lighvan NL, Quiñonez C, Azarpazhooh A. Knowledge and Practices of Family and Emergency Physicians in Managing Nontraumatic Dental Conditions: A Case-based Survey. Journal of endodontics. 2019;45(3):263-71.
- 27. Parker JL. Interdisciplinary Health Professions Faculty's Lived Experiences with Oral Health Curricular Integration: An Interpretative Phenomenological Analysis (Doctoral dissertation, Northeastern University).
- Horikawa Y, Suzuki A, Enya M, Hashimoto KI, Nishida S, Kobayashi R, et. al. Periodontal Disease May be Associated With the Occurrence of Diabetic Retinopathy: A Subgroup Analysis of The Survey of the Diabetes Coordination Notebook in Gifu. Experimental and Clinical Endocrinology & Diabetes. 2019 Apr 11. doi: 10.1055/a-0879-1890.
- 29. Al-Habashneh R, Barghout N, Humbert L, Khader Y, Alwaeli H. Diabetes and oral health: doctors' knowledge, perception and practices. Journal of evaluation in clinical practice. 2010;16(5):976-80.

•••• ★••••

Association of Physical activity levels and BMI Among Doctor of Physical Therapy **Students of a Private College from Karachi**

Khalid Aziz, Ayesha Afridi, Abida Arif, Ghousia Shahid, Muhammad Faisal Fahim, Rabia Khan

ABSTRACT:

Objective: To evaluate the physical activity levels among DPT students of Bahria University College of Physical therapy (BUCPT) by International Physical Activity Questionnaire (IPAQ) and to study the relationship between Body Mass Index (BMI) and Physical activity levels of DPT students of (BUCPT).

Study design and Setting: This cross sectional study was conducted in BUCPT Bahria from March-April 2019 (1 month data collection).

Methodology: Written consent form was obtained from each participant before taking part into study. Individual with cardio-respiratory diseases and fractures in last 12 months or any limb disability were excluded from the study. The study tool was IPAO.

Results: A total of 125 students were enrolled in this study. There were 121 (96.8%) female and 4 (3.2%) male observed. Mean age of students were 19.89±1.14 (18-22) years. In low physical activity level, 2 (28.6%) students were underweight, 8 (17.0%) were normal BMI, 3 (9.7%) were overweight and 6 (15.0%) were obese. In moderate physical activity level, 3 (42.9%) underweight, 22 (46.8%) normal, 19 (61.3%) overweight and 19 (47.5%) fall in obese criteria. High physical activity levels were found to be 2 (28.6%) in underweight group, 17 (36.2%) in normal group, 9 (29.0%) in overweight and 15 (37.5%) were obese.

Conclusion: BUCPT students were moderately physically active and minority of them were low physically active and majority of them were lying the category of normal BMI. There was statistically insignificant relationship found between BMI and physical activities levels. Some students were obese and still have high physical activity level while some are normal in BMI and having low physical activity level.

I.

Т

Т

L

L

I.

Т

L

L

L

L

L

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

Key words: Assessment, BMI, Physical Activity, IPAQ questionnaire, Exercises, Obesity, DPT

INTRODUCTION:

Proper workout of skeletal muscles to produce productive bodily movements by utilizing calories and results in energy expenditure is termed as physical activity or sometimes interchangeably called exercise¹. Opposite to that, physical inactivity results in adverse health conditions like diabetes mellitus, breast cancer, obesity, hypertension and hyperchol-

Khalid Aziz Vice Principal, Bahria University College of Physical Therapy Email: vp.bucpt@bumdc.edu.pk
Ayesha Afridi Lecturer, Bahria University College of Physical Therapy
Abida Arif Senior Lecturer, Bahria University College of Physical Therapy
Ghousia Shahid Senior Lecturer, Bahria University College of Physical Therapy
Muhammad Faisal Fahim Researcher, Bahria University College of Physical Therapy
Rabia Khan Lecturer, Bahria University College of Physical Therapy
Received: 27-05-2019 Accepted: 01-10-2019

esterolemia which ultimately leads to coronary heart disease². The puberty is the transition link for individuals to move from childhood to adulthood and majority of the health habits developed at this transition level, lasts long e.g. exercise and dietary habits³. Many previous researches indicate that today's lifestyle of adults is deprived of health consciousness and total dependency upon technology is diminishing the physical activity levels⁴. Exercise and physical activities are practically ignored in daily routine of adult university students due to different corresponding factors including lack of supervision for proper exercise plan, poor time management and disbelieve about positive effects of physical activity upon body⁵. Overweight and obesity among young adults' leads to low self-esteem and it directly affects the confidence level and academic record of university students. Physical activity/ exertion boosts the metabolic system for young students in their growing age and maintain the hormone balance in female students⁶. The transition from childhood to adolescences decreases the level of physical activities and with further advancing age physical activity level further deteriorated Growing age along with biological changes and psychological maturation and habits developmental stage, the physical activity levels decreases and leading to unhealthy, sedentary life style in university students⁷. Different perceived barriers to physical activity among students are classified as internal and external Association of Physical activity levels and BMI Among Doctor of Physical Therapy Students of a Private College from Karachi

barriers. Daskapan at al reported in their study that score for external barriers like lack of time for exercise was significantly higher than internal barrier which include lack of stamina and energy for exercise³. Health professionals are making efforts to aware the population about the hazardous effects of physical inactivity and sedentary life style by counseling the individuals visiting them for health issues in last decades⁸. Unfortunately the facilities provided by latest technologies are overcoming the manual work outs of adults and physical activity attitude and behaviors are difficult to adopt and inculcate in daily routine9. World health organization has provided the guidelines for adults of age 18 to 64 years for healthy life style. These guidelines recommend that adults should do moderate intensity physical activity for at least 150 minutes and vigorous intensity physical exertion for 75 minutes per week or mixture of both intensities at regular level¹⁰. Previous research reported that high academic stress among university students discourages the will to do physical exertion and exercise, which leads to weight gain and ultimately further decline in the stamina for physical activities¹¹. Worldwide the prevalence of physical inactivity leading to obesity is increasing drastically among university students¹². The prevalence for obesity among university students from 22 different countries has been reported through selfadministered questionnaires and Body Mass Index (BMI) for weight status. Overall in male and female, 22% students were lying in category of overweight or obesity due to physical in activity¹³. Studies in low, middle and high income countries showed drastic results of physical inactive university students, Pakistani students are counted as 80.6% physically inactive due to regularly skipping breakfast and lack of social support for personal and academic workload¹⁴. Previous studies reported that high prevalence of physical inactivity and obesity is linked with poor diet control routine, sleep deprivation and academic stress among university students¹⁵. University students are having more freedom for their dietary and sleeping time choices^{16,17}. According to WHO 2010 guidelines for physical activities in adults which include at least 150 minutes of moderate and minimum 75 minutes of vigorous intensity activities in one week for healthy life style and good quality of life¹⁸. Inadequate exercise or physical activity routine are causing mortality rates even higher each year. In 2010 almost 3.2 million deaths were reported by WHO solely due to inadequate physical activity. Physical inactivity is leading to vicious cycle of cardio respiratory, obesity and hypercholesterolemia issues in young adults which can affect their personal, social and academic life adversely^{19,20}. Maintaining the regular physical activity level can prevent from many chronic diseases and quality of life can also be improved. Quality of life is the perception of individuals towards their positive and negative aspects of life². International Physical Activity Questionnaire (IPAQ) is validated tool used in many researchers for methodological

measurement of physical activity levels among adults²¹ Being a physical therapy student everyone should know the importance of exercise and physical activity for healthy and good quality of life because in future they have to deal with patients of same issues. The rationale of the study was to create awareness about exercise, physical activity and obesity in BUCPT students by using validated IPAQ tool. This study was aimed to evaluate the physical activity levels among DPT students of Bahria University College of Physical therapy (BUCPT) by international physical activity questionnaire (IPAQ) and to study the relationship between Body Mass Index (BMI) and Physical activity levels of DPT students of (BUCPT).

METHODOLOGY:

Ethical approval was obtained from BUMDC numbered: 11/2019. This cross sectional study was conducted in Bahria university college of Physical Therapy (BUCPT) from March-April 2019 (1 month data collection). Written consent form was signed by each participant before taking part into study. Total 125 Doctor of Physical Therapy (DPT) students were enrolled in study by purposive sampling technique with mean age of 19.9±1.4 (18-22 years). Inclusion criteria was individuals should be above age 15 (requirement of international Physical Activity questionnaire IPAQ), from (BUCPT) and willing to be the part of this study. Individual with Cardio-respiratory diseases, fractures in last 12 months and any limb disability were excluded from study. After signing the consent form, participants were assessed for anthropometric measurement such as weight in kg and height in meters by Physical Therapist of BUCPT. Body Mass Index was determined using formula weight (kg)/Height(m). Physical activity of students was assessed using IPAQ International Physical activity questionnaire short version comprising of total 7 questions. This questionnaire has 3 categories of activities, including vigorous, moderate and walking and 4th one was related to sitting hours in weekdays. Through this questionnaire MET minutes were calculated for each activity and then individuals were assigned either low physical active, moderate or high physical active according to MET minutes calculation²². One metabolic equivalent (MET) is defined as the amount of oxygen consumed while sitting at rest and is equal to 3.5 ml O₂ per kg body weight per min. The MET concept represents a simple, practical, and easily understood procedure for expressing the energy cost of physical activities as a multiple of the resting metabolic rate. Individual categorical calculations were done using automatic scoring sheet of excel for International Physical activity Questionnaire designed by Cheng H²³ Scoring was taken and calculated in MET-minutes/week (www.ipaq.ki.se). The subsequent value were used for the investigation of IPAQ data:

- Walking MET = 3.3 x walking minutes x walking days
- Moderate MET = 4.0 x walking minutes x walking days

- Vigorous MET = 8.0 x walking minutes x walking days
- Total Physical Activity MET = sum of Walking + Moderate + Vigorous MET minutes/week scores²⁴.

Statistical analysis was performed on SPSS-23. All variables of International Physical activity questionnaire were evaluated according to their classification. Frequency and percentages and Mean and Standard deviation are presented in results.

RESULTS:

A total of 125 students were enrolled in this study. There were 121 (96.8%) female and 4 (3.2%) male observed. Mean age of students were 19.89±1.14 (18-22) years. Students mean height was found to be 1.48±0.10 (1.27-1.89) meters. Mean Weight of students was found to be 53.73±10.31 (30 - 80) kg. Average BMI in students was found to be 24.65±4.85. Physical activity MET according to IPAQ was asked from students that how many days did you do vigorous physical activities like heavy lifting, digging, aerobics, or fast bicycling in last 7 days mean value found to be 2.37±1.48 days per week. When asking about how much time did you usually spend doing vigorous physical activities on one of those days mean value was found to be 10.37±3.43 minutes per day. When asking about how many days did you do moderate physical activities like carrying light loads, bicycling at a regular pace, or doubles tennis? Mean value of 3.22±1.53 days per week observed. Students were asked that how much time did you usually spend doing moderate physical activities on one of those days. Average value was found to be 23.15±8.36 minutes per week. They were asked that how many days you walked for at least 10 minutes at a time. Mean value was found to be 5.70±1.82 days per week. The question asked was how much time you usually spent walking

on one of those days. Average value was observed to be 50.21 ± 5.10 minutes per day. Students were asked about how much time you spent sitting on a week day. Mean value was found to be 15.49 ± 3.74 minutes per day. Mean total days of activity was 6.63 ± 1.05 . Mean Met-minutes per week vigorous was 704.35 ± 112.36 . Mean Total activity was 83.74 ± 17.36 (min/week). Mean Met-minutes per week was 408.48 ± 78.07 . Mean Met-minutes per week walk was 1019.01 ± 106.36 . Mean Met-minutes per week moderate total was 1806.82 ± 152.40 . (Table 1)

Body Mass Index (BMI) was followed by Asian cut off values as Underweight, Normal, over weight and obese. There were 47 (37.6%) students lying in the normal category whereas 40 (32.0%) found to be obese. Physical activity levels were observed as low 19 (15%), moderate 63 (51%) and high 43 (34%) students. (Figure 1)

There was statistically insignificant relationship found between BMI and physical activities levels. Some students are obese and still have high physical activity level while some are normal in BMI and having low physical activity level. (Table 2)

DISCUSSION:

Current study aim was to identify the physical activity levels in DPT students using IPAQ; any activity that lasts for more than 10 minutes was included. Results showed that 34% students were involved in vigorous physical activity on further elaborating the activities, majority of the students showed more than 100 stairs climbing activity in 1 hour due to construction design of BUMDC (nine floors), 51% with moderate physical activity level and only 15 % were found with low physical activity level. On contrary study by Supa

Question regarding vigorous activity of last 7 days / Interpretation of Total Physical activity	Mean± SD
MET according with IPAQ	
During the last 7 days, on how many days did you do vigorous physical activities like heavy lifting,	2.37±1.48
digging, aerobics, or fast bicycling?	
How much time did you usually spend doing vigorous physical activities on one of those days?	10.37±3.43
During the last 7 days, on how many days did you do moderate physical activities like carrying	3.22±1.53
light loads, bicycling at a regular pace, or doubles tennis? Do not include walking.	
How much time did you usually spend doing moderate physical activities on one of those days?	23.15±8.36
During the last 7 days, on how many days did you walk for at least 10 minutes at a time?	5.70±1.82
How much time did you usually spend walking on one of those days?	50.21±5.10
During the last 7 days, how much time did you spend sitting on a week day?	15.49±3.74
Total days of activity	6.63±1.05
Met-minutes per week vigorous	704.35±112.36
Total activity (min/week)	83.74±17.36
Total Met-minutes per week	408.48±78.07
Met-minutes per week walk	1019.01±106.36
Met-minutes per week moderate total	1806.82±152.40

Table 1: Interpretation of Total Physical activity MET according with IPAQ

		_	-		
	PHYSI				
BMI (kg/m2)	Low (n=19)	Moderate (n=63)	High (n=43)	Total (n=125)	P-value
Under weight	2	3	2	7	
(< 18.5)	28.6%	42.9%	28.6%	100.0%	
Normal	8	22	17	47	
(18.5 - 22.9)	17.0%	46.8%	36.2%	100.0%	0.575
Over Weight	3	19	9	31	0.373
(23 - 26.9)	9.7%	61.3%	29.0%	100.0%	
Obese	6	19	15	40	
(= 27)	15.0%	47.5%	37.5%	100.0%	

Figure 1: Physical Activity Levels Of Students



et al (2015) revealed that physical activity levels among university students using IPAQ, total 813 students were enrolled from Pakistan with 80.6% low, 7.7% moderate and 11.7% with high physical activity levels¹⁴. another study was done in 2016 on Turkish student's physical activity levels using IPAQ and results were near to current study results; 52% students were found to be moderately physical active 37% vigorous and only 11% with low physical activity level²⁵. Ajit et al conducted a study in 2018 on Indian Physical Therapy students using IPAQ, results showed that 49% were moderately physically active , 39% low physically active and 12% with high physical activity level²⁶.

Current study showed the BMI of students which was alarming as 5.6% students were under weight, 37.6% were normal, 24.8% were overweight and 32 % were lying in the category of obese. There was statistically insignificant relationship found between BMI physical activity level. Some students are obese and still have high physical activity level while some are normal in BMI and having low physical activity level. Indian study on physical therapy students showed that 64% were normal, 9% were obese, 14% were overweight and 13% were underweight according to BMI calculations. Out of 289 normal subjects, 39% were low, 51% moderate and 10% were highly physically active. Out of 40 obese subjects 32% were low, 42% moderate, and 26% were high physically active. Out of 59underweight subjects, 53% were low, 39% moderate, and 8% were high physically active. Out of 62 overweight subjects, 27% were low, 56% moderate, and 17% were high physically active²⁶.

The validated questionnaire of IPAQ was the strength of the study and smaller sample size, single centered study were the limitations of the study. It was recommended the physical activity is important for students of all subjects and for this in house gymnasium should be structured for the students. Multiple centered study and students of various students program should be carried out in future for generalizability of the results.

CONCLUSION:

Majority of the Doctor of Physical Therapy (DPT) students were moderately physicaly active and minority of them were low physicaly active and majority of them were lying in the category of normal BMI. There was statistically insignificant relationship found between BMI and physical activities levels. Some students were obese and still have high physical activity level while some are normal in BMI and having low physical activity level.

REFERENCES:

- Caspersen, C.J., K.E. Powell, and G.M. Christenson, Physical activity, exercise, and physical fitness: definitions and distinctions for health-related research. Public health reports, 1985; 100(2): p. 126.
- 2. Joseph, R.P., et al., Physical activity and quality of life among university students: exploring self-efficacy, self-esteem, and affect as potential mediators. Quality of life research, 2014; 23(2): p. 659-667.
- 3. Arzu, D., E.H. Tuzun, and L. Eker, Perceived barriers to physical activity in university students. Journal of sports science & medicine, 2006; 5(4): p. 615.
- 4. Trost, S.G., et al., Age and gender differences in objectively measured physical activity in youth. Medicine & Science in Sports & Exercise, 2002; 34(2): p. 350-355.
- 5. Dishman, R.K., Advances in exercise adherence. 1994: human kinetics publishers.
- 6. Van Dyck, D., et al., International study of objectively measured physical activity and sedentary time with body mass index and obesity: IPEN adult study. International Journal of Obesity, 2015; 39(2): p. 199.
- Arias-Palencia, N.M., et al., Levels and patterns of objectively assessed physical activity and compliance with different public health guidelines in university students. PLoS ONE, 2015; 10(11): p. e0141977.
- Keating, X.D., et al., A meta-analysis of college students' physical activity behaviors. Journal of American college health, 2005; 54(2): p. 116-126.
- 9. Daley, A.J., School based physical activity in the United Kingdom: Can it create physically active adults? Quest, 2002; 54(1): p. 21-33.
- 10. Organization, W.H., Global recommendations on physical activity for health. 2010.
- 11. Romaguera, D., et al., Determinants and patterns of physical activity practice among Spanish university students. Journal of sports sciences, 2011; 29(9): p. 989-997.
- 12. Haidar, Y.M. and B.C. Cosman, Obesity epidemiology. Clinics in colon and rectal surgery, 2011; 24(04): p. 205-210.
- Peltzer, K., et al., Prevalence of overweight/obesity and its associated factors among university students from 22 countries. International journal of environmental research and public health, 2014; 11(7): p. 7425-7441.
- Pengpid, S., et al., Physical inactivity and associated factors among university students in 23 low-, middle-and high-income countries. International journal of public health, 2015; 60(5): p. 539-549.
- Kattelmann, K.K., et al., Development of Young Adults Eating and Active for Health (YEAH) internet-based intervention via a community-based participatory research model. Journal of nutrition education and behavior, 2014; 46(2): p. S10-S25.
- Cavallo, D.N., et al., A social media–based physical activity intervention: a randomized controlled trial. American journal of preventive medicine, 2012; 43(5): p. 527-532.

- 17. Khan, Z.N., et al., High prevalence of preobesity and obesity among medical students of Lahore and its relation with dietary habits and physical activity. Indian journal of endocrinology and metabolism, 2016; 20(2): p. 206.
- 18. Organization, W.H., Global recommendations on physical activity for health. 2010: World Health Organization.
- 19. Wattanapisit, A., et al., Physical activity among medical students in Southern Thailand: a mixed methods study. BMJ Open, 2016; 6(9): p. e013479.
- Bergier, J., et al., Physical activity of Polish adolescents and young adults according to IPAQ: a population based study. Annals of Agricultural and Environmental Medicine, 2012; 19(1):109-115
- 21. Bergier, J., B. Bergier, and T. Anatolii, Variations in physical activity of male and female students from different countries. Iranian journal of public health, 2016; 45(5): p. 705-707.
- 22. Murphy, J.J., et al., Validity and reliability of three self-report instruments for assessing attainment of physical activity guidelines in university students. Measurement in Physical Education and Exercise Science, 2017; 21(3): p. 134-141.
- 23. Cheng, H., A simple, easy-to-use spreadsheet for automatic scoring of the International Physical Activity Questionnaire (IPAQ) Short Form (updated November 2016). 2016, ResearchGate.
- 24. Fagaras, S.-P., L.-E. Radu, and G. Vanvu, The level of physical activity of university students. Procedia-Social and Behavioral Sciences, 2015; 197: p. 1454-1457.
- 25. Bednarek, J., et al., Physical activity of Polish and Turkish university students as assessed by IPAQ. Central European Journal of Sport Sciences and Medicine, 2016; 16(4): p. 13-22.
- Dabholkar, A., N.N. Valanju, and T. Dabholkar, Assessment of Level of Physical Activity in Physiotherapy Students. 2018, 2018; 5(1): p. 4.



Association Of Vitamin D Deficiency With Type 2 Diabetes

Sehrish Shafique, Rana Ansari, Hamidullah Ariff, Sajid Abbas Jafri, Naveed Faraz

ABSTRACT:

Objective: To determine the association of Vitamin D deficiency with peripheral neuropathy in patients of type-2 Diabetes mellitus.

Study Design and Setting: It was a cross sectional study conducted in a private clinic in Karachi, during a period of three months.

Methodology: Total of 70 cases were included according to inclusion and exclusion criteria. Approval was sought from Ethical review committee. Consent was signed from the patients before the data collection. All the patients who were coming to the clinic, 30-75 years of age, had history of type 2 diabetes for more than 5 year with HbA1c of 7% or above and had peripheral neuropathy were included. Data was collected in a pre-designed proforma. For entry of data and its statistical analysis SPSS version 20 was used.

Results: From the total 70 cases n=41(58.5%) were vit D deficient. Most of the patients with type 2 diabetes with neuropathy were in the age group of 61-75yrs (57%) followed by 46- 60yrs age group (30%). This study also showed that 30 females (73%) and 11 males (26.8%) were deficient in vitamin D.

Conclusion: Type 2 diabetic patients with vitamin D deficiency were more at risk of developing diabetic peripheral neuropathy (DPN) earlier. It is required to supply vitamin D appropriately for preventing DPN in type 2 diabetes. Key words: Diabetic, Neuropathy, Vitamin D, Peripheral Neuropathy

INTRODUCTION:

Type 2 DM is among the commonly prevailing noncommunicable diseases which occurs worldwide and is of high concerns as it can cause many health-related problems. However, because of its increasing number of cases and its high burden; evidence based novel innovative approaches should be made to prevent the occurrence and risk of the disease. Recent studies showed that vitamin D is a potential diabetes risk modifier¹. Diabetes is among those health care syndrome which is associated with hyperglycemia due to pathology in insulin secretion and its action on its target cell. Similarly, vitamin D deficiency has also been recognized for its global concern². The similarity between Vitamin D

Sehrish Shafique I Assistant Professor Department of Medicine Bahria University Medical and Dental College, Karachi Email: drsehrish80@yahoo.com Rana Ansari Assistant Professor Department of Medicine Baqai Medical University I I Hamidullah Ariff Benior Lecturer, Department of Community Health Sciences Bahria University Medical and Dental College, Karachi Sajid Abbas Jafri I Professor Department of Medicine I I Bahria University Medical and Dental College, Karachi I Naveed Faraz Professor Department of Pathology I Bahria University Medical and Dental College, Karachi Received: 17-07-2019 Accepted: 12-09-2019 I

deficiency and diabetes is that both are pervasive and prevalent. According to the World Health Organization (WHO); it is estimate that by 2030; prevalence of DM rises above 366 million and the epidemic of diabetes will continue³. Vitamin D deficiency is also a commonly occurring problem in our country due to various social issues; such as lack of exposure in sunlight. About 30% to 50% of the population in the world suffers from Vitamin D deficiency. In UK, about 91% of T2DM had a Vitamin D deficiency with severe deficiency seen in 32% of patients⁴ Like many countries, the prevalence of vitamin D deficiency in Pakistan is affecting 53.5% of population irrespective of the age groups^{5,6,7,8} Studies showed that 50-90% of Pakistani population especially females are vitamin D deficient.

Vitamin D has three vital sources. The first and the most essential source of vit D is sunlight. Apart from sunlight there are also dietary sources like dairy products, cereals, milk etc. which can provide us the dietary source of vitamin D. Nutritional Supplements that contain vitamin D are considered as the third major source of vit D. So, it is extremely essential that in a human body its normal levels should be maintained for the proper functioning of the body and also for normal regulation of different body systems. Its deficiency can lead to bone pains, osteomalacia, proximal myopathies and to the extent of osteoporosis and fractures due to increase parathyroid hormone level^{9,10,11}. According to various studies; it is suggested Vit D has an important role as an immunological suppressor of tumors, although others are less certain about it¹².

Decrease Vit D level is also one of the contributing factors in people for the development of both type 1 and type 2 diabetes. Beta cells which are present in the pancreas that secretes insulin also contain vitamin D receptors (VDRs) as well as the one á hydroxylase enzyme Through its effect which is regulated by calcium it has an indirect effect on causing insulin secretion. Vitamin D contributes to normalization of extracellular calcium, ensuring normal calcium flux through cell membranes and whenever there are low vitamin D levels in the body there is diminished calcium's ability to secrete insulin. If there is sufficient amount of vitamin D in the body glucose hemostasis can also be maintained in the body and thus minimizing the risk of developing diabetes. (10,11,12) It plays a vital role in the plasma calcium metabolism via effects on intestinal absorption and bone metabolism.In people who have mild to moderate vitamin D insufficiency there is a risk for developing type 2 diabetes¹³. Not only it is associated with the occurrence of diabetes but it is also related to its complications especially with diabetic peripheral neuropathy¹⁴ as it helps in regulation and production of the neutrophic factors like neuron growth factor, neutrophin 3 and 4 and glial cell derived neutrophic factors so if it is deficient in the body there can be damaged to the neurons, and also effect on the production of neurotrophic factors which have a neuroprotective effect. Vitamin D is related to skeletal stability¹⁵ normal level of plasma vitamin D minimize the chances for the diabetes mellitus and also the progression and severity of neuropathy in high risk patients^{16,17} Vitamin D deficiency has been seen among the patients with syndrome due to specific vitamin D receptor gene polymorphisms¹⁸. Therefore the rationale of this study was to ascertain the frequency of 25-hydroxy vitamin D₃ [25(OH)D₃] deficiency and to determine their association with peripheral neuropathy in Pakistani population with type 2 diabetics.

METHODOLOGY:

All the patients who were coming to the clinic, with 30 -75 years of age, diagnosed with type 2 diabetes mellitus for more than 5 year with HbA1c of 7% or above with positive peripheral neuropathy which was checked through Semmes Weinstein monofilament test were included. Pregnant women, patients with history or clinical features suggesting chronic liver diseases, chronic renal disease, osteoporosis, history of any malignancies, thyroid disorders and patients already taking vitamin D or calcium supplements were excluded from the study. Data was collected in a pre-designed proforma.

The study was commenced after the ethical approval obtained from the ethical committee. Consent was taken from the patients prior to data collection after explaining the details of procedure. Those patients fulfilling the inclusion criteria and attending the OPD were selected. After taking their history of peripheral neuropathy Semmes Weinstein monofilament test with 5.0/10g was performed, three times at each site (dorsal between the base of digits 1–2; ventral digits 1, 3, 5; metatarsal heads 1, 3, 5; medial and lateral midfoot; and heel). If the patient missed perceiving the filament more than once at one site, the test was considered abnormal at that site. If a subject did not perceive the filament at two or more of the 10 sites, the test was reported as abnormal. (19). Then all those patients with positive monofilament test, were advised to have their vitamin D levels checked in blood. Patients were labelled deficient if serum 25(OH)D concentration levels are <20 ng/ml. (19-20). For data analysis SPSS version 20 were used.

RESULTS:

During the study period, a total of 70 were found to have diabetic and peripheral neuropathy among which 41 (58.5%) were vit D deficient. The youngest being 30 years and oldest being 75 years of age. Most of the patients with type 2 diabetes with neuropathy were in the age group of 61-75yrs (57%) followed by 46- 60yrs age group (30%). Out of 41 total vit D deficiency patient ,30 were females (73%) and 11were males (26.8%). (FIG.1)

Figure 1: Frequency of Vitamin D Deficiency with Neuropathy according to gender



Figure 2: Distribution of vitamin D deficiency & neuropathy patient according to age group



Table 1: Frequency of Vitamin D Deficiency in patients with Neuropathy

Total No of Diabetics with Neuropathy	Vitamin D Deficiency in Diabetics with Neuropathy	Percentage %
70	41	58.5%

DISCUSSION:

Diabetes is one of those diseases if it is not controlled, can lead to devastating microvascular complications such as eye, kidneys and brain which can compromise the quality of life and can also lead to high morbidity and mortality. This study determine the levels of 25-hydroxy vitamin D₃ among patient with neuropathy especially in diabetic patient, and to determine the correlation between low 25 (OH)D₃ levels with peripheral neuropathy, because vitamin D has a neuroprotective effect and it can prevent the progression and severity of neuropathy. There are numerous factors that can cause the development of peripheral neuropathy in diabetes like inflammation ,oxidative stress causes damage to blood vessels and further can lead to nerve ischemia, enhance advanced glycation end products all can lead to the development of neuropathy in the peripheral nerves²¹. Past studies have been shown that diabetic patients are almost twice more prone to have vitamin D deficiency as compared to normal healthy patient. So, in diabetics sufficient levels of vit D has a therapeutic role in the prevention but also in decreasing the severity and progression of illnesss²². In our study also, it was observed that out of total 70 type 2 diabetes mellitus with peripheral neuropathy among which 41 (58.5%) were found to have vitamin D deficiency(table 1) In this study the association seen between peripheral neuropathy and vitamin D deficiency, and these results were in agreement also with the results of the studies in which 67% of patients with diabetes have diabetic peripheral neuropathy with vit D deficiency levels, <20 ng,. Multiple studies have also found that serum vitamin D level in patients with diabetic peripheral neuropathy is significantly lower than those in healthy persons^{23,24}. previous studies also showed that symptoms of nerves dysfunction can be prevented by correcting VIT D deficiency. Prevalence of Vit D deficiency is mostly associated with distal symmetric polyneuropathy. Neurological pain minimized by doing vit D deficiency corrected²⁴. There are multiple factors which can lead to vitamin D deficiency like poor socioeconomic status, lack of proper care on diet, poor exposure to sunlight due to traditional dress all can be the contributing factors for deficiency in our country. The results shown in our study were also consistent with the other studies which have been done in Pakistan and Saudi Arabia to determine the frequency of vitamin D deficiency in diabetics^{24,25}. Although, the studies which were conducted in western population have showed high prevalence of vit D deficiency that was 76% in diabetics. Previous studies shows incidence rate of vit D deficiency equal to 60.5%⁶ in Switzerland, Australia (43%), Italy(25%), and North America(15%). Our finding were consistent with previous studies as well. Also past studies revealed that the level of vitamin D in diabetics are lower than non- diabetic individuals^{26,27,28} in one of study done in our country shows that 53.5% had deficient levels.

In this study the patients were categorized into three age groups Relative frequency of decrease Vit D was found to be higher in old age group 57% (figure 2) which were also consistent with the previous studies²⁵. Patients with increasing age were more at risk to develops vitamin D deficiency as a result of many reasons: like decreased in the number of vitamin D receptor, decrease calcium absorption in response to circulating1,25(OH)2D, decreased dermatological metabolism of vitamin D, and above all as with age so many organ compromise their function so as a result less production of active form of vit D (1,25(OH)2D) by the kidneys²⁹.

In our study there were more females (73%) as compared to males (27%) (fig 1) and this result consistent with the past studies which shows high incidence of vit D deficiency correlated with gender differences with deficiency more in females then males²⁵. Our study finding of diabetic female with neuropathy had significantly lowered 25(OH) level were seen in past studies as well but one of the study in Iran shows no significant association between vitamin D levels and gender differences³⁰. Therefore, it was recommended that vitamin D level of diabetic monitored regularly to prevent the complications of neuropathy like foot infections, ulcerations that can lead to foot amputation can be minimized and hence can reduce their morbidity and mortality.

Smaller sample crossectional nature of the study design were the limitation of the study

CONCLUSION:

Type 2 diabetic patients with vit d deficiency were at more risk of developing earlier peripheral neuropathy. Diabetic female were more susceptible of having peripheral neuropathy due to vit D deficiency as compare to male.

- Miñambres I, Sánchez-Quesada JL, Vinagre I, Sánchez-Hernández J, Urgell E, de Leiva A, et al. Hypovitaminosis D in type 2 diabetes: relation with features of the metabolic syndrome and glycemic control. Endocrine Research. 2015; 40(3): 160-5.
- Kostoglou-Athanassiou I, Athanassiou P, Gkountouvas A, Kaldrymides P. Vitamin D and glycemic control in diabetes mellitus type 2. Therapeutic Advances in Endocrinology and Metabolism. 2013; 4: 122-8.
- 3. Teresa Martin, RD, CDE, LD, and R. Keith Campbell, RPh, CDE, FASHP. Vitamin D and Diabetes. Diabetes Spectrum 2011;24(2):113-18.
- 4. Rahman S, Majumder AA. Links between Vitamin D deficiency and diabetes associated macro vasculopathy. South East Asia Journal of Public Health 2015;5(2):4-6.
- 5. Sheikh A, Saeed Z, Jafri SA, Yazdani I, Hussain SA. Vitamin D levels in asymptomatic adults- a population survey in Karachi, Pakistan. PloS One 2012;7(3):e33452.
- 6. Akhtar S. The prevalence and correlates of vitamin D deficiency-perspectives from Pakistan. Pakistan Journal Pharmaceutical Sciences 2016;29(4):1325–30.

- Akhtar S. Vitamin D status in South Asian populations risks and opportunities. Journal of Critical Review in Food Science and Nutrition 2016;56(11):1925–40.
- Masood SH, Iqbal MP. Prevalence of vitamin D deficiency in South Asia. Pakistan Journal of Medical Sciences. 2008;24(6):891–97.
- Mezza T, Muscogiuri G, Sorice GP, Prioletta A, Salomone E, Pontecorvi A, Giaccari A. Vitamin D Deficiency: A New Risk Factor for Type 2 Diabetes? Annals of Nutrition and Metabolism 2012;61(4):337–48.
- Riaz H, Finlayson AE, Bashir S, Hussain S, Mahmood S, Malik F, Godman B. Prevalence of Vitamin D deficiency in Pakistan; implications for the future. Journal of Expert Review of Clinical Pharmacology 2016;9(2):329-38.
- Khan H, S, OH, Chowdhury R. Vitamin D, type 2 diabetes and other metabolic outcomes: a systematic review and metaanalysis of prospective studies. The Proceedings of the Nutrition Society. 2013;72(1):89-97.
- 12. Afzal S, Bojesen SE, Nordestgaard BG. Low 25-hydroxyvitamin D and risk of type 2 diabetes: a prospective cohort study and metanalysis. Journal of Clinical Chemistry. 2013;59(2): 381–91.
- Tsur A, Feldman BS, Feldhammer I, Hoshen, M.B, Leibowitz, G., Balicer, R.D. Decreased serum concentrations of 25hydroxycholecalciferol are associated with increased risk of progression to impaired fasting glucose and diabetes. Diabetes Care 2013 ;36(5): 1361–67.
- 14. Pittas, AG, Lau J, Hu FB et al. The role of vitamin D and calcium in type 2 diabetes. A systematic review and metaanalysis. Journal of Clinical Endocrinology and Metabolism.2007; 92(6):2017–29.
- Seham E. Abdelsadek, Entesar O. El Saghier and Sabah I. Abdel Raheem.Serum 25(OH) vitamin D level and its relation to diabetic peripheral neuropathy in Egyptian patients with type 2 diabetes mellitus. The Egyptian Journal of Neurology, Psychiatry and Neurosurgery 2018. https://doi.org/10.1186 /s41983-018-0036-9
- Holick MF, Binkley NC, Bischoff-Ferrari HA, Gordon CM , Hanley DA , Heaney RP, Murad MH, Weaver CM. Evaluation, treatment anprevention of vitamin D deficiency: an Endocrine Society clinical practice guideline. Journal of Clinical Endocrinology Metabolism. 2011;96(7):1911-30
- Pittas AG, Nelson J, Mitri J, Hillmann W, Garganta C, Nathan DM, et al. Plasma 25hydroxyvitamin D and progression to diabetes in patients at risk for diabetes: an ancillary analysis in the Diabetes Prevention Program. Diabetes care. 2012;35(3):565-73.
- Guang-Bo Qu , Ling-Ling Wang , Xue Tang , Wei Wu , Ye-Huan Sun GB. Qu et al. The association between vitamin D level and diabetic peripheral neuropathy in patients with type 2 diabetes mellitus: An update systematic review and metaanalysis. The Journal of Clinical & Translational Endocrinology 2017;(9): 25–31.

- Qi Zhang, Na Yi, Siying Liu, Hangping Zheng Xiaona Qiao ,Qian Xiong, Xiaoxia Liu, Shuo Zhang , Jie Wen .Easier operation and similar power of 10 g monofilament test for screening diabetic peripheral neuropathy. Journal of International Medical Research 2018; 46(8): 3278–84.
- 20. Holick MF. Vitamin D deficiency. The New England Journal of Medicine NEJM. 2007;357(3):266-81
- 21. Kayaniyil S, Retnakaran R, Harris SB et al. Prospective associations of vitamin D with â-cell function and glycemia. the Prospective Metabolism and Islet cell Evaluation (PROMISE) cohort study. Diabetes 2011;60(11):2947–53.
- 22. Shehab D, Al-Jarallah K, Mojiminiyi OA, Al Mohamedy H,Abdella NA. Does Vitamin D deficiency play a role in peripheral neuropathy in Type 2 diabetes. 2012; 29(1):43-9.
- 23. Almetwazi SM, Noor AO, Almasri DM, Popovici L, Alhawassi T, Albertian KA, Harrington CA. The association of vitamin D deficiency and glucose control among diabetic patients. Saudi Pharmaceutical Journal 2017;25(8):1179–83.
- Ahmadieh H, Azar ST, Lakkis N, Arabi A. Hypovitaminosis D in patients with type 2 diabetes mellites' relation to disease control and complications. ISRN Endocrinology Oct 2013:641098. doi: 10.1155/2013/641098. eCollection 2013
- 25. Usluogullari CA, Balkan F, Caner S, Ucler R, Cafer Kaya C, Ersoy R and Cakir B. The relationship between microvascular complications and vitamin D deficiency in type 2 diabetes mellitus. BMC Endocrine Disorders 2015 ;9(15):33
- Al-Agha AE, Ahmad IA. Association among Vitamin D Deficiency, Type 1 Diabetes Mellitus and Glycemic Control. Journal of Diabetes and Metabolism 2015; 6:9. DOI: 10.4172/2155-6156.1000594
- 27. Gagnon C, Lu ZX, Magliano DJ, et al. Serum 25 hydroxy vitamin D, calcium intake, and risk of type 2 diabetes after 5 years: results from a national, population based prospective study (the Australian Diabetes, Obesity and Lifestyle study). Diabetes Care 2011; 34 (5): 1133-8.
- Mohammed I. Oraby, Mona Abu Srie, Sanaa Abdelshafy, Eman Elfar Diabetic peripheral neuropathy: the potential role of vitamin D deficiency. The Egyptian journal of Neurology, Psychiatry and Neurosurgery 2019 55:10.
- 29. Sarita Bajaj , raj pratab Singh, NC Dwivedi .Vitamin D levels and microvascular complications in type 2 diabetes .olism. 2014;18(4): 537–41.
- Jadoon SA, Ahmed A, Alam MA. VITAMIN D DEFICIENCY IN PAKISTAN: TIP OF ICEBERG. Journal of Ayub Medical College Abbottabad: JAMC 2018;30(1):78-80.



Risk Factors Associated With Sino-Nasal Polyposis And Its Relationship With The Occupational Inhalants

Qaisar Sajad, Ayub Musani, Faheem Ahmed Khan

ABSTRACT:

Objective: To determine the risk factors associated with sino-nasal polyposis and its relationship with the exposure of occupational inhalants in patients presenting in a tertiary care hospital of Karachi.

Study design and Settings: Cross-sectional study conducted at department of otorhino-laryngology Karachi Medical & Dental College and Abbasi Shaheed Hospital Karachi for a period of two and a half years from October 2015 to April 2018.

Methodology: Total number of patients included for this study were 221 patients with diagnosis of bilateral and multiple nasal polyposis with age greater than 10 years. Specifically, designed proforma was used for data collection specially in relation with occupation and exposure to different occupational inhalants and entered in SPSS version 23 for analysis.

Results: There were 133 male and 88 female patient with a mean age was 36.16 ± 12.33 years. Mostly patients belonged to poor socio-economic status i.e. 133 (60.70%). Allergic rhinitis or nasal allergy was the most common risk factor present in 114 patients (51.6%) while aspirin hypersensitivity was the least common risk factor present in only 19 patients (8.5%). Most of the patients (76 or 34.4%) were related with one or the other form of agriculture and were exposed to different occupational inhalants like mud, pollens, animals and plants.

Conclusions: Nasal allergy is the most common risk factor and occupational inhalant specially related with agriculture, poultry and pets are the common agents responsible for nasal polyposis in our local population.

i

I

Key words: Nasal polyps, nasal obstruction, risk factor

INTRODUCTION:

Nasal polyps are the chronic inflammation of the mucous membrane of para-nasal sinuses and nose¹ and severely affects the normal life of patients causing nasal obstruction and altered sense of smell. These are the benign lesion that develops due to marked extracellular edema of the mucosa of the nose and sinuses² being most commonly arise from the middle meatus or the ethmoid area³. Clinically it presents as rounded or pear shaped soft pedunculated, semi translucent, vellow or pale glistening mass projecting in the nasal cavity, which are insensitive and rarely bleed on touch⁴. Overall it effects 4% of the general population⁵ but in a cadaveric study, prevalence of nasal polyps was reported up to $40\%^6$. It usually descends between the lateral wall of nose and middle turbinate causing nasal obstruction, nasal congestion, hyposmia, rhinorrhea, facial pain⁷, post nasal drip and sleep disturbance⁸

	Qaisar Sajad ENT Consultant Karachi Medical & Dental College and Abbasi Shaheed Hospital, Karachi Email: qaisarsajjad@hotmail.com
	Ayub Musani Professor Department of ENT Karachi Medical & Dental College and Abbasi Shaheed Hospital, Karachi
	Faheem Ahmed Khan Assistant Professor, Department of ENT Karachi Medical & Dental College and Abbasi Shaheed Hospital, Karachi
	Received: 25-09-2018 Accepted: 20-09-2019
-	

The exact etiology is still unknown⁹ but there are some etiological factors associated with it like nasal allergy, chronic inflammation of mucosa of nose or paranasal sinus, genetic predisposition and autonomic nervous dysfunction¹⁰. Up to one third of these patients have history of asthma while polypi are found in 7% of the asthmatic patients⁵. The treatment of the nasal polyps is challenging for the otorhinolaryngoloist, because etiology is not clear and tendency for recurrence is high. Recurrence can be prevented by proper control of the nasal allergy and avoidance from exposure to all allergens responsible for development of nasal polyposis. Nasal polyposis in Western populations is often characterized by type 2 inflammation, with elevated levels of type 2 cytokines, such as IL-5 and IL-13, along with eosinophilia. However, patients of Asian countries, are characterized by a mixed type 1 or type 3 inflammation, with a more neutrophilic inflammation¹¹. The mechanisms that drive these different phenotypes are unclear at this time. The paranasal sinuses of patients with nasal polyposis are often chronically colonized with fungi and bacteria and these microbes may play an important role in pathogenesis of nasal polyp¹². Although there are numerous hypothetical mechanisms that could account for this colonization, it is not yet clear whether this accumulation of microbes is an initial cause of nasal polyposis or a downstream effect of the underlying inflammatory disease mechanism.

This study was done with the intention to find out the risk factors associated with the formation of nasal polyposis along with its relationship with the exposure of occupational inhalants in local population.

METHODOLOGY:

This study was conducted in the department of Otorhinolaryngology of Karachi Medical and Dental college and Abbasi Shaheed Hospital Karachi, over a period of two and half years, from October 2015 to April 2018. A total of 221 cases of nasal polyposis were included in the study. The sample size was calculated with confidence level of 95% and prevalence of 17% in general population. The inclusion criterion was all consecutive patients presenting to the hospital's outpatient department with the diagnosis of nasal polyposis having age greater than 10 years. The exclusion criteria were patients with antro-choanal polyp (single and unilateral), patients younger than 10 years of age and patients on whom surgical intervention had been done previously.

Complete history along with clinical examination of ear, nose, throat and general examination was done in every patient. Eyes and Neurosurgical opinion were taken for any orbital and intracranial involvement. The occupation of the patients and exposure to different occupational inhalants was specifically noted. Routine baseline laboratory investigations and plain CT scan in all three planes were also done in every patient. All the required information was gathered in a specially designed proforma and entered with SPSS version 23.

RESULTS:

A total number of 221 patients were included in this study where male were 133 (60.01%) and female were 88 (39.81%) with male to female ratio of 1.5:1. Figure. 1 shows distribution of patients in different gender and age groups. The highest number of patients were noted between the ages of 21-40 years i.e. 104 patients (47.05%) followed by 41-60 years, 67 patients (30.31%). Only 15 patients (6.78%) were between the age of 11 to 20 years and 35 (15.8%) were above the age of 61 years. Most of the patients belonged to poor socio-economical status i.e. 133 (60.70%) while 64 (28.9%) were middle class and only 24 (10.8%) were of good socio-economic status.

Table 1 shows the different risk factors present in these patients. Out of 221 total patients, 116 patients (52.5%) had only one risk factor present while 95 patients (43.0%) had at least two risk factors and 10 patients (4.5%) had three or more risk factors. Allergic rhinitis or nasal allergy was the most common risk factor present in 114 patients (51.6%) while aspirin hypersensitivity was the least common risk factor present in only 19 patients (8.5%).

Figure.2 depicts the occupations and exposure to different occupational inhalants related with that occupation in these patients. In our study, most of the patients (76 or 34.4%) were related with one or the other form of agriculture and were exposed to different occupational inhalants like mud, pollens, animals and plants. The second common occupation in our series was poultry workers (39 patients, 17.6%) and



Table 1: Risk Factors Associated With Nasal Polyposis (n = 221)

Risk factor	Number of patients	Percentage
Allergic rhinitis	114	51.6%
Asthma	27	12.2%
Aspirin Hypersensitivity	19	8.5%
Nasal allergies in family	60	27.10%
Bronchial asthma in family	63	28.50%
Chronic Rhinosinusitis	57	25.8%

Figure. 2: Occupation of the patients (n = 221)



exposed to chickens and other related items. Another common occupation was related with exposure to pets in 33 patients (17.6%).

DISCUSSION:

Nasal polyposis and other associated diseases like allergic rhinitis and asthma, severely impair the quality of life of the patients, and represent imperative problems to the physician both from diagnostic and therapeutic points of view¹³. Scientific studies have been made to recognize and differentiate the pathophysiology of these conditions, but to date most of the aspects are still unclear and uncertain. Therefore, increasingly complex diagnostic and instrumental

Risk Factors Associated With Sino-Nasal Polyposis And Its Relationship With The Occupational Inhalants

methods are required for diagnosis and management where a detailed diagnosis allows to characterize and optimally treat these nasal diseases.

Nasal polyposis effects more male as compared to female with a male to female ratio varying from 1.3 to 2.2^{14} . In our study also, male were 133 (60.01%) and female were 88 (39.81%) with male female ratio was 1.5:1. Nasal polypi are common in 4th to 7th decade of life¹⁵ with a peak incidence between the ages of 45 and 65¹⁶. The highest numbers of patients in our study were between the ages of 21-40 years of age which was 104 (47.05%) patients and followed by patients between the ages of 41-60 years of age which were 67 (30.31%). Another study shows maximum prevalence of polyps was noted between 31 and 40 years of age¹⁷, fairly similar to ours study. Only 15 patients (6.7%) were below the age of 20 as according to most studies nasal polyps are usually uncommon under the age of 20 years.¹⁸ In this age group, it is frequently associated with cystic fibrosis, asthma and aspirin sensitivity.

Chronic nasal and sinus infection is also a risk factor of nasal polyposis¹⁹. In our study we found 25.8% patients had history of chronic rhino-sinusitis. One of the reasons is that inflammation of one part of respiratory tract may affect the other side of the respiratory tract at a distance¹⁹ because upper and lower airways both are continuous. History of asthma in patient was present in 12.2% cases. According to one study, sinus radiograph findings show that asthmatic patients have high chance of abnormal sinus mucosa²⁰. One study showed that mild to moderate asthmatic patients who are on steroid therapy have abnormal mucosal changes on CT scan²¹. 51.6% cases of this study had positive history of allergic rhinitis in the patients. According to Nanda et al. study, 33% patients found positive history of allergic rhinitis²². According to one study, 7.4% patients had positive family history of allergy or asthma²³. Our study also found history of nasal allergy and bronchial asthma in family members in 27.10% and 28.50% respectively. Genetic predisposition for nasal polyposis has been studied and suggested but still controversies exist and the matter is still unproven.²⁴ Only limited work has been done in relation with nasal polyposis and occupational inhalants and no significant local study was found on literature search. In our study certainly nasal polyposis was found to be related with occupation and occupational inhalants. Agriculture related exposure was present in 76 cases while exposure with birds, chicken and other pets was found in 72 patients. All such occupational exposure are well known associated with nasal allergy and chronic rhino-sinusitis.

The limitations of this study is that it was conducted in only one tertiary care hospital of Karachi and the catchment area of this hospital is limited. Further multicenter studies involving different areas of Pakistan are needed with a greater number of patients.

CONCLUSION:

It was concluded that nasal allergy is the most common risk factor and occupational inhalant specially related with agriculture, poultry and pets are the common agents responsible for nasal polyposis in our local population.

- 1. Edhtedari F, Ghadderi A, Kashef A, Askari M. Role of IgE low-affinity receptor (CD23) in pathogenesis of nasal polyp. Iranian J Med Sci., 2003; 28(1): 29-32
- Maharjan S, Neopane P, Tiwari M, Parajuli R. Nasal polyposis: A review. Global Journal of Otolaryngology, 2017; 8(2): 1-3.
- 3. Dalziel K, Stein K, Round A et al. Systematic review of endoscopic sinus surgery for nasal polyps. Health Techol Assess, 2003; 7(17): 1-159.
- Alam M, Fakir Y, Chowdhury A. A review of nasal polyposis and surgical management. Bangladesh J Otorhinolaryngol., 2008; 14(2): 71-74.
- Hedman J, Kaprio J, Poussa T, et al. Prevalence of asthma, aspirin intolerance, nasal polyposis and chronic obstructive pulmonary disease in a population-based study. Int J Epidemiol, 1999; 28:717-22.
- 6. Newton JR, Ah-See KW. A review of nasal polyposis. Ther Clin Risk Manag. 2008;4(2):507-512.
- Fokkens WJ, Lund V, Bachert C, Clement P, Hellings P et al. European position paper of rhinosinustis and nasal polyp. Rhinol., 2005; Suppl 18: 1-87.
- Osguthorpe JD, Hadley JA. Rhinosinusitis. Current concepts in evaluation and management. Med Clin North Am., 1999; 83 (1): 27-41.
- 9. Soltankhah MS, Majidi MR, Shabani Sh. Medical treatment of nasal polyps: a review. Rev Clin Med, 2015; 2 (1): 24-27.
- Luxenburger W, Posch G, Berghold, et al. HLA patterns in patients with nasal polyposis. Eur Arch Otorhinolaryngol, 2000; 257: 137-9.
- Akdis CA, Bachert C, Cingi C, et al. Endotypes and phenotypes of chronic rhinosinusitis: a PRACTALL document of the European Academy of Allergy and Clinical Immunology and the American Academy of Allergy, Asthma & Immunology. J Allergy Clin Immunol. 2013; 131:1479–90.
- Fokkens WJ, Lund VJ, Mullol J, et al. European Position Paper on Rhinosinusitis and Nasal Polyps. Rhinol 2012; Suppl. 23:1–298.
- 13. Bousquet PJ, Demoly P, Devillier P, et al. Impact of allergic rhinitis symptoms on quality of life in primary care. Int Arch Allergy Immunol 2012; 160: 393-400.
- 14. Larsen K, Tos M. The estimated incidence of symptomatic nasal polyps. Acta Otolaryngol. 2002; 122:179–82.
- 15. Bateman ND, Fahy C, Woolford TJ: Nasal polyps still more questions than answers. J Laryngol Otol 2003; 117(1): 1-9.
- Tan BK, Chandra RK, Pollak J, et al. Incidence and associated premorbid diagnoses of patients with chronic rhinosinusitis. J Allergy Clin Immunol. 2013; 131:1350–60. [PubMed: 23541327]
- 17. Chukuezi AB. Nasal polyposis in Nigerian District Hospital. West Afr J Med. 1994; 13(4): 231-3.

- Cimmino M, Carvaliere M, Mardone M, Plantulli A,Orefice A, Esposito V, et al. Clinical characteristics and genotype analysis of patients with cystic fibrosis and nasal polyposis. Clin Otolaryngol. 2003; 28: 125-32.
- Bosquet J, Van Cauwenberge P, Khaltaev N. Allergic rhinitis and its impact on asthma. J Allergy Clin Immunol, 2001; 108(5 Suppl): S 147-334.
- Salvin RG, Cannon RE, Friedman WH, Palitang E, Sundaram M. Sinusitis and bronchial asthma. J Allergy Clin Immunol 1980; 66(3): 250-7.
- Bresciani M, Paradis L, Roches A, Vernhet H, Vachier I, Godard P, et.al. Rhinosinusitis in severe asthma. J Allergy Clin Immunol 2001; 107(1):73-80.

- 22. Nanda MS, Bhatia S, Gupta V. Epidemiology of nasal polyps in hilly areas and its risk factors. Int J Otorhinolaryngol Head Neck Surg. 2017; 3(1): 77-81.
- 23. Jahromi AM, Pour AS. The Epidemiological and Clinical Aspects of Nasal Polyps that Require Surgery. Iran J Otorhinolaryngol. 2012; 24(67): 75–78.
- Khadim MT, Ahmed S, Akhtar F, Jaffar SR, Mirza IA, Anwar J, Tahir H. Clinicopathological Characteristics of Nasal Polyps with Chronic Sinusitis J Bahria Uni Med Den Coll., 2016; 6(3): 178-181.



Awareness Regarding Minimally Invasive Dentistry among Dentists of Karachi

Sara Ikram Khan, Shama Asghar, Adeena Abid, Farwah Aftab

ABSTRACT:

The objective of this study was to assess awareness of dental practitioners of Karachi regarding minimally invasive dentistry.

Study design and Setting: It was a cross sectional study based on questionnaire, conducted in 6 different dental hospitals of Karachi. The sample included dentists who were actively practicing clinical dentistry in Karachi. Specialists were excluded from the study

Methodology: A study questionnaire was distributed to the participants which comprised of demographic details, professional data and Likert-Scale based questions to asses respondent's agreement level related to caries activity, assessment, detection and treatment.

Results: Out of the 151 questionnaires distributed, 119 were analysed with an overall response rate of 78.8%. From the total 67.2% dentists were received training in MID through some means in which 36% received training in MID by lectures and clinical training both while 32.8% had no training in MID. MID techniques like ART and sandwich technique was found to be effective by 65% and 50.4% respectively. The 58.8% participants were agreed that caries risk assessment (CRA) should be done in every patient and 55.5% dentists were agreed that restoration should be planned according to patient's assessment

Conclusion: General Dental Practioners were not completely aware of the concepts and application of minimally invasive procedures and had little knowledge regarding caries detection methods and lacked in implementation of MID techniques in their daily practice.

I

I

I

I

Keywords: Caries detection, Minimally Invasive Dentistry, Remineralization, Tooth Preservation.

INTRODUCTION:

I

I

I

Minimally invasive dentistry is a modern approach to conserve healthy tooth structure¹. It focuses on prevention of caries, remineralization, and minimal intervention by the dentist². Today with the help of scientific developments and technology, we are better able to understand and manage the caries process³.

In recent years, adhesive dentistry has flourished and has shifted the traditional GV Black's caries management model of "extension for prevention" to "minimally invasive"⁴. The main objective of this approach is early identification and elimination of the causative factors to prevent and treat caries. In contrast to traditional methods, the minimally invasive approach has shown control over dental caries by application of preventive measures, minimal cavity

Sara Ikram Khan Senior Lecturer Bahria University Medical and Dental College, Karachi Email: saraikramkhan90@gmail.com Shama Asghar Associate Professor Bahria University Medical and Dental College, Karachi Adeena Abid Final Year Student Bahria University Medical and Dental College, Karachi Farwah Aftab Final Year Student Bahria University Medical and Dental College, Karachi Received: 07-12-2018 Accepted: 17-09-2019 preparations, use of adhesive materials and evidence-based decision-making.⁵

There are four main principles of the Minimally Invasive Approach. First is "recognition" of potential risk factors at an early stage through lifestyle analysis and caries detection methods. Second is "Reduction" or elimination of caries risk factors by diet modification and lifestyle changes. Third is "Regeneration" by arresting and reversing the demineralization process. Fourth is "Repair" of carious tissue by using conservative approach for caries removal⁶.

The usual visual, tactile and radiographic methods are unable to detect early caries activity but with the advanced caries detection methods like lasers and fluoroscopy, it has become easier for us to detect early carious lesions and decrease proliferation of decay into dentinal tissue^{7,8}. The MID approach utilizes conservative techniques like air abrasion, lasers and hand instrumentation in Atraumatic Restorative Technique (ART) to remove infected layer of dentine and arrest further demineralization^{9,10,11}. MID advocates use of adhesive materials which require less tooth preparation and re-mineralizing topical agents like fluoride varnishes and fluoride tooth pastes for prevention.^{4, 12}

In Pakistan dental caries is the most widespread childhood disease^{13,14,15}. This is due to lack of awareness regarding oral health and excessive consumption of refined carbohydrates. Implementation of Minimally Invasive approach in Pakistan would be helpful in reduction of caries burden by early detection and intervention; In addition, simple preventive procedures are less costly. Indeed the rationale of this study

was to find out the awareness and practice of MID among dental practitioners of Pakistan as to formulate the training in MID according to the outcome of the study; which ultimately decrease the caries burden. Therefore, the objective of this study was to assess the awareness of dental practitioners of Karachi regarding minimally invasive dentistry.

METHODOLOGY:

It was a cross sectional study based on questionnaire, conducted in 6 different dental hospitals of Karachi. Sample size was calculated as 11% of dentists¹⁶ had a great deal of knowledge about minimally invasive dentistry. The calculated sample size was 151. The sample included dentists who are actively practicing clinical dentistry in Karachi. Specialists and dentists working outside Karachi were excluded from the study. Ethical approval was obtained by the ethical review committee of Bahria University Medical and Dental College. Study period was from March 2018 to September 2018. All forms were filled with prior written informed consent was taken. The questions were distributed into three sections which included demographics and awareness and attitude of dentists towards principles of minimally invasive dentistry. It was pilot tested on 15 dental practitioners who were excluded from the sample. No changes were made to the questionnaire after pilot testing. The first part of the questionnaire was about dentist's demographic data. The second and third portion comprised of 5 point Likert-Scale (Strongly Agree=1, Agree=2, Not sure=3, Disagree=4, Strongly Disagree=5) based questions to evaluate respondent's agreement level, their knowledge and attitude related to caries activity in relation to diet, re-mineralization with fluoride and sealants, caries risk assessment, conservative cavities, treatment planning and effectiveness of minimally invasive techniques like Atraumatic Restorative Technique (ART), Sandwich technique, fluoride varnishes and fluoride tooth pastes. Data was collected by the researcher. The responses in Agreement (Always/Mostly) and Disagreement (Sometimes/Rarely/Never) had been analyzed together. The responses of attitude in Agreement (Always/Mostly) and Disagreement (Sometimes/Rarely/Never) have been calculated together. Data entry was done on IBM statistics version 20. Frequency and percentages were used for descriptive data. Pearson Chi Square test with a significance level of p value <0.05 was used to analyze association between training in MID and attitude towards MID principles in diagnosing and treating dental caries.

RESULTS:

From the total 151 distributed questionnaires; 125 returned the filled forms. Out of the collected forms 6 forms were discarded due to incomplete information thereby 119 questionnaires were included for data analysis. Over all response rate was 78.8%. Demographic data of our study showed 53.8% of our sample comprised of males and 46.2% were female general practitioners. Only 7.6% of the participants were of age 35 and above while majority of our participants were between 26-30 years of age. The results showed that 41.2% of the respondents had a professional experience between 5-10 years while only 11% had professional experience above 10 years. There was no significant difference found between GDP's professional experience and training in minimally invasive dentistry (p>0.05). Age and gender did not show any positive association with practice of MID principles (p>0.05). (Table 1). Regarding training of GDPs in minimally invasive dentistry, 67.2% of the respondents received training in Minimally invasive dentistry through some means 32% of the GDPs received no training in MID. (Figure 1).

Regarding awareness of Minimally Invasive Dentistry, 96% of the GDPs were of the agreement that carbohydrates in diet have a direct effect on dental caries and 92% believe that fluoride is vital for remineralization process. 58.8% of the dentists agreed that Caries Risk Assessment (CRA) should be done in every patient and treatment provided should be based on patient's assessment. 32% of the respondents do not practice conservative cavity preparation techniques like box and tunnel-Table 2. In relation to methods preferred by GDPs to diagnose and detect caries, 49.6% of the GDPs use sharp explorer to detect caries which is not in agreement with the concepts of minimally invasive dentistry. Caries detection with blunt instrument and use of magnification were significantly related to MID training with p = 0.00 and p=0.04 respectively. The most widely used method for detection was using radiographs preferred by 91% of the dentists while 42% also use magnification for detection of dental caries. 88% of the GDPs do not use newer methods of caries detection like Electronic Caries Monitor, Fiber-Optic Transillumination or lasers in their practice.

Minimally Invasive techniques like Atraumatic Restorative Technique (ART) and Sandwich Technique was found to be effective by 65% and 50.4% of the respondents respectively in order to preserve remaining tooth structure. Training in MID had significant effect on utilization of ART technique by dentists with p value of 0.03. 96.6% of the GDPs reported fluoride varnishes to be effective in preventing dental caries while 88.2% of GDPs think that fluoride toothpaste is effective for preventing caries. (Table 3).

DISCUSSION:

Minimally invasive dentistry aims to adopt methods of caries prevention and reduction of cariogenic bacteria by dietary modification, early detection and remineralization of initial lesions followed by minimal intervention of cavitated lesions¹⁷. Minimally invasive dentistry is an approach adopted by dental practitioners to maintain long lasting oral health focused primarily on prevention of caries, risk assessment and treatment according to patient's individual requirement. Figure 1. Training in Minimally Invasive Dentistry



Table 1: Demographic Characteristics in correlation with training in MID

A me of Danifict	Received Tra	ining in MID	P-value	
Age of Dentist	Yes (n=80)	No (n=39)	(<0.05)	
21-25 years	30%	28.21%		
26-30 years	45%	53.85%	0.700	
31-35 years	16.25%	12.82%		
>35 years	8.75%	5.13%		
Professional Experience	•		-	
< 5 years	40%	61.54%		
5-10 years	45%	33.33%	0.100	
>10 years	15%	5.13%	1	
Gender				
Male	62.5%	35.90%	0.06	
Female	37.5%	64.10%	0.00	

Patient education and focus on prevention especially in high risk population is vital for caries prevention. This study revealed that more males have received training in MID than female however age and gender did not affect their awareness about minimally invasive dentistry which is in accordance with a study conducted in Saudi Arabia⁴ and India¹⁷. Studies conducted in India^{17,18} show that 84.7% of dentists in Puducherry and 97% dentists in Karnataka had adequate awareness about principles of MID which is greater than 67.2% in our study, 59.4% in Brazil¹⁹ and 40.9% in Saudi Arabia⁴. Implementation of MID can only be effective in our practice if the four principle elements of recognition, reduction, regeneration and repair are integrated into our thought process⁶. It is evident that 96% of our respondents understand the direct relationship of carbohydrates with dental caries which is proven by extensive scientific data evidence on carbohydrates consumption as a necessary factor for development of caries²⁰. WHO strongly recommends sugar control throughout one's life that is less than 10% of total energy intake.²⁰ 92.4% dentists in our study believe in the role of fluoride in replacing lost hydroxyapatite crystals and converting them into fluorapatite which are more resistant to caries.

In our study 98.3% of the dentists agreed that Caries Risk Assessment (CRA) should be performed in every patient. In UK¹⁶ 70% of dentists in carried out CRA on patients which is greater than 26% in Japan²¹. 91% of dentists in UK affirmed that CRA has an influence on their treatment planning which is similar (91.6%) to the result of our study. Caries Risk Assessment is the basis of minimally invasive dentistry as not only it helps in diagnosis and treatment planning but also highlights the probability of developing caries in an individual. CRA if regularly done in patients can help in preventing caries and even arresting the ongoing caries cycle. Visual and tactile examinations were the most common means of diagnosing. Dental explorers over frequently used in diagnosing dental caries as shown in our study where 49.6% of the dentists use sharp explorers for caries detection. It is now an established from different studies that a sharp explorer can cause irreversible damage to the demineralized early lesion and may augment caries progression²². In contrast, a blunt ended explorer as preferred by 63% of the dentists in our study was better as it causes less ultrastructural damage to the tooth^{22,23} and was significantly associated with MID training in our study.

The principles of minimally invasive dentistry also emphasize usage of newer detection methods like laser fluoroscopy, dye staining, electronic caries monitor etc. which can help dentists save tooth from unnecessary destruction by removing unaffected tissues²⁴. In our study 88% of the dentists have either never used these advanced caries detection methods or use it occasionally which is less than a similar study conducted in India¹⁸ where 96.9% of the dentists don't use new detection methods in daily practice. Majority (91%) of the dentists in our study, rely on radiographs for caries detection which over the years have found to be an accurate method in diagnosing proximal lesions and dentinal caries²⁵. Minimally invasive dentistry advocates usage of techniques like Atraumatic Restorative Technique (ART), sandwich technique and fluoride varnishes for preventive care. ART prevents further progression of caries and prevents formation of new lesion. "The latest meta-analysis on ART sealants showed a weighted mean survival percentage of fully and partially retained ART/HVGIC sealants after 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 years by 79%, 69%, 68%, 62%, 63% and 59% respectively"²⁶. Similarly sandwich technique which is a combination of GIC and Composite also provide anticariogenic effect together with strength and esthetics of composite²⁷. In our study 65% of the dentists think that ART is an effective technique to stop caries progression and this opinion was significantly corelated with dentists who had received training in MID. Daily fluoride uses in the form of tooth pastes, rinses or topically applied varnishes have

	0	0	1 1		
Knowledge towards MID principles	Strongly Agree (%)	Agree(%)	Not sure(%)	Disagree (%)	Strongly Disagree (%)
Carious lesions and intake of refined carbohydrates are directly related	58%	38.7%	4%	0%	0%
Fluoride aids in tooth remineralization	57.1%	35.3%	2.5%	5%	0%
Pit and fissure sealants are effective in caries prevention	81.5%	18.5%	0%	0%	0%
All patients should go through Caries Risk Assessment (CRA)	58.8%	39.5%	0.8%	0.8%	0%
Tunnel and box preparations are effective cavity designs.	16%	63%	10.9%	10.1%	0%
Restorations and techniques should be according to patient's caries risk assessment	3.1%	55.5%	7.6%	0.8%	0%

Table:2 Knowledge about MID among the participants. N=119

Table 3: Attitude of participants regarding application of MID principles in detection of caries and clinical practice.

Attitude of participants regarding application of MID princip	Received training in MID		Dyalua	
Application of MID Principles in Diagnosing	dental caries**	YES(n)	NO(n)	r value
Do you use of a sharp explorer for caries detection?	Always/Mostly Sometimes/Rarely/Never	40 40	19 20	0.200
Do you use of a blunt instrument for caries detection?	Always/Mostly Sometimes/Rarely/Never	49 31	26 13	0.00*
Do you use magnification (e.g. loupes) for caries detection?	Always/Mostly Sometimes/Rarely/Never	29 51	21 18	0.04*
Use of radiographs for caries detection.	Always/Mostly Sometimes/Rarely/Never	72 9	34 4	0.500
Do you use newer methods of caries detection like QLF, ECM, IRLF, FOTI	Always/Mostly Sometimes/Rarely/Never	8 72	5 34	0.200
Attitude of participants about various clinical MID procedures	s in Clinical Practice			
How effective is ART (Atraumatic Restorative Treatment)?	Very effective/Effective Ineffective/Very Ineffective	74 06	38 1	0.03*
How effective is Sandwich Technique (Glass Ionomer + Composite) Very effective/E Ineffective/Very		79 01	39 0	0.100
Do you think remineralization with fluoride varnish or any other topical fluoride products is effective?	Very effective/Effective Ineffective/Very Ineffective	76 04	39 0	0.300
Do you think remineralization with high concentration fluoride toothpaste at home Is effective?	Very effective/Effective Ineffective/Very Ineffective	71 11	37 0	0.500

been proven effective in preventing caries by literature²⁸ which agrees with the results of our study where 74.8% and 75.6% of the dentists think that fluoride use in daily routine can arrest caries as well as prevent development of new

lesion. The limitation of the study was a small sample size including dentists of only one city. A more comprehensive sample size would provide more information of overall knowledge and application of MID by practitioners of Pakistan. It is recommended that with the advances in newer caries detection methods, restorative options and better understanding of caries process we can shift the mindset of our clinicians to adopt techniques that preserve natural tooth structure. Concepts of minimally invasive dentistry are based on scientific evidence and needs to be incorporated into the thought process of dentists in our country by making it part of the dental curriculum, conducting educational seminars and workshops for training dentists in MID. In addition, patient education regarding modification of diet, life style and oral health maintenance will play a vital role for the success of minimally invasive dentistry.

CONCLUSION:

It was concluded that GDPs from Karachi had inadequate awareness regarding the concepts and application of minimally invasive procedures, caries detection methods and lacked in implementation of MID techniques in their daily practices.

- Ericson D, Kidd E, McComb D, Mjör I, Noack MJ. Minimally invasive dentistry—concepts and techniques in cariology. Oral Health Prev Dent. 2003;1(1):59-72.
- 2. Ericson D. What is minimally invasive dentistry? Oral Health Prev Dent. 2004;2:287-92.
- 3. Mital P, Mehta N, Saini A, Raisingani D, Sharma M. Recent advances in detection and diagnosis of dental caries. J Evo Med Dent Sci. 2014;3(1):177-92.
- Shah AH, Sheddi FM, Alharqan MS, Khawja SG, Vohra F, Akram Z, Faden AA, Khalil HS. Knowledge and attitude among general dental practitioners towards minimally invasive dentistry in Riyadh and Alkharj. J Clin Diagn Res. 2016;10(7):ZC90.
- Oliveira DC. "Minimally invasive dentistry approach in dental public health." MS (Master of Science) thesis, University of Iowa, 2011. https://doi.org/10.17077/etd.ri6w529b
- 6. Walsh LJ, Brostek AM. Minimum intervention dentistry principles and objectives. Aus Den J. 2013;58:3-16.
- Mohanraj M, Prabhu VR, Senthil R. Diagnostic methods for early detection of dental caries-A review. Int J PedodRehabil. 2016;1(1):29-36.
- 8. Gomez: Detection and diagnosis of the early caries lesion. BMC Oral Health 2015; 15(Suppl 1):S3.
- Jingarwar MM, Bajwa NK, Pathak A. Minimal intervention dentistry–a new frontier in clinical dentistry. J Clin Diagn Res. 2014;8(7):ZE04.
- Leon A, Ungureanu L, Pu^oca^ou C. Air Abrasion: Interdisciplinary Modern Technologies— Approach to Minimally Invasive Treatment of Dental Caries, Proceedings of the International Conference on Interdisciplinary Studies (ICIS 2016) - Interdisciplinarity and Creativity in the Knowledge Society, Valentina Mihaela Pomazan, IntechOpen, DOI: 10.5772/65419.
- 11. Sambashiva RP, Pratap KM, Nanda KK, Sandya PS. " Drillless" dentistry-the new air abrasion technology. Ind J Dent Advanc. 2011;3(3):598-602.
- Guzmán-Armstrong S, Chalmers J, Warren JJ. White spot lesions: Prevention and treatment. Am J OrthodDentofac Orthop. 2010;138(6):690-6.

- Mohiuddin S, Nisar N, Dawani N. Dental caries status among 6 and12 years old school children of Karachi city. J Pak Dent Assoc. 2015;24(1):39-45.
- Umer MF, Farooq U, Shabbir A, Zofeen S, Mujtaba H, Tahir M. Prevalence and associated factors of dental caries, gingivitis, and calculus deposits in school children of Sargodha district, Pakistan. J Ayub Med Coll Abbottabad. 2016;28(1):152-6.
- Mubarak S, Hayat A, Akbar S. Prevalence of Dental Caries of One Grade School Children in Karachi. Pak Oral &Dent J. 2016;36(1):116-8.
- Mirsiaghi F, Leung A, Fine P, Blizard R, Louca C. An investigation of general dental practitioners' understanding and perceptions of minimally invasive dentistry. Br Dent J. 2018;225(5):420-4.
- Rayapudi J, Usha C. Knowledge, attitude and skills of dental practitioners of Puducherry on minimally invasive dentistry concepts: A questionnaire survey. J Conserv Dent. 2018;21(3): 257-62.
- Sushanth V, Bhate P, Imranulla M, Kalra D, Kumar N, Prashant G. Assessment of knowledge, attitude, and practice regarding preventive options in oral care among dentists in Davangere city, Karnataka: A cross-sectional study. Dent Med Res 2015;3:20-5.
- 19. Katz CR, de Andrade MD, Lira SS, Ramos Vieira EL, Heimer MV. The concepts of minimally invasive dentistry and its impact on clinical practice: a survey with a group of Brazilian professionals. Int Dent J. 2013;63(2):85-90
- 20. Sheiham A, James WP. Diet and dental caries: the pivotal role of free sugars reemphasized. J Dent Res. 2015;94(10): 1341-7.
- Kakudate N, Sumida F, Matsumoto Y, Yokoyama Y, Riley III JL, Gilbert GH, Gordan VV. Dentists' decisions to conduct caries risk assessment in a Dental Practice-Based Research Network. Community Dent Oral Epidemiol. 2015;43(2):128-34.
- 22. Mattos-Silveira J, Oliveira MM, Matos R, Moura-Netto C, Mendes FM, Braga MM. Do the ball-ended probe cause less damage than sharp explorers? —An ultrastructural analysis. BMC oral health. 2016;16(1):16-39.
- 23. Ismail AI. Visual and visuo-tactile detection of dental caries. J Dent Res. 2004;83:C56–66.
- 24. Ntovas P, Loubrinis N, Maniatakos P, Rahiotis C. Evaluation of dental explorer and visual inspection for the detection of residual caries among Greek dentists. J Conserv Dent. 2018;21(3):311-18.
- 25. Keenan JR, Keenan AV. Accuracy of dental radiographs for caries detection. Evid Based Dent. 2016;17(2):17-43.
- 26. De Amorim RG, Frencken JE, Raggio DP, Chen X, Hu X, Leal SC. Survival percentages of atraumatic restorative treatment (ART) restorations and sealants in posterior teeth: an updated systematic review and meta-analysis. Clin Oral Investig. 2018;22(8):2703-25.
- 27. Murdoch-Kinch CA, McLEAN ME. Minimally invasive dentistry. The J Am Dent Assoc. 2003;134(1):87-95.
- Marinho VCC, Higgins JPT, Sheiham A, Logan S. One topical fluoride (toothpastes, or mouthrinses, or gels, or varnishes) versus another for preventing dental caries in children and adolescents. Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews 2004, Issue 1. Art. No.: CD002780. DOI: 10.1002/ 14651858. CD002780.pub2



Patterns Of Hysterosalpingographic Findings In Infertile Patients Presenting In A Tertiary Care Hospital Of Quetta

Pari Gul, Shama Jogezai, Fahmida Naheed, Palwasha Gul

ABSTRACT

Objective: To study the different patterns of Hysterosalpingographic findings in women evaluated for infertility in a tertiary care hospital of Ouetta.

Setting and design: A crossectional study conducted at the Radiology Department of Bolan medical complex hospital, Ouetta

Methodology: A two year secondary data based study of hysterosalpingographic films were assessed, data of 338 infertile women investigated for infertility from July' 2016 till June' 2018. Hysterosalpingography examination was done in the preovulatory phase of the menstrual cycle.

Results: Infertility was the main indication for all the hysterosalpingographic examinations with primary infertility the predominant infertility accounting for 186(55%) of all cases while secondary infertility constituted 152(45%) cases. Majority of the patients n=146(43%) were in the age group of 28-33 years as this is the peak age of reproduction. Out of the total 338 patients reviewed, normal hysterosalpingography finding with free peritoneal spill of contrast were seen in n=212(62%)cases. The most common abnormality revealed was tubal blockage among n=81 (24.2%) patients followed by hydrosalpinx n=23(6.5) %. Other abnormalities included loculated contrast spill, fibroids, Asherman syndrome and adenomyosis. Congenital anomalies were also seen of which arcuate uterus was seen commonly followed by bicornuate uterus.

Conclusion: It was concluded that most of the HSG findings were normal, followed by tubal abnormalities in the age range from 28 to 33 years. Tubal occlusion and hydrosalpinx were the most common abnormal findings in this study.

I

KEY WORDS: Hysterosalpingography, Infertility, Fallopian tube, PID

INTRODUCTION:

Infertility affects an estimated 13% to 15% of couples worldwide is a disease of the female reproductive system defined as failure of the couple to conceive 12 months or more of regular unprotected intercourse¹. The most common causes of infertility include male factor(45%), disorders of the ovulation (37%) and tubal damage or blockage $(18\%)^2$.

Hysterosalpingography is a valuable technique and plays an important role in the investigation of infertility to assess the pathologies related to the uterus and fallopian tubes. Although hysterosalpingography (HSG) is an invasive procedure, it remains an important investigation in the infertility management .HSG has been considered to be a vital diagnostic procedure in the gynecology practice for

Pari Gul

Assistant Professor, Department of Radiology Bolan Medical Complex Hospital, Quetta Email: pari.gul01@gmail.com

Shama Jogezai

Т

I

L

Senior Registrar, Department of Gynecology and obstetrics Bolan Medical Complex Hospital, Quetta

Fahmida Naheed

Senior Registrar, Department of Gynecology and obstetrics Bolan Medical Complex Hospital, Quetta

Palwasha Gul

Senior Registrar, Department of Radiology Bolan Medical Complex Hospital, Quetta

Received: 17-09-2018 Accepted: 01-10-2019 decades³. It helps in diagnosing the congenital anomalies, surgical changes, polyps, synechiae, adenomyosis and fibroids. The tubal abnormalities include tubal blockage, hydrosalpinx and peritubular adhesions. However, its primary role is still in the evaluation of fallopian tubes⁴.HSG is known to have 65% sensitivity and specificity in the diagnosis of tubal occlusion5.

Infertility is a worldwide phenomenon that is estimated to affect 60 million to 168 million people globally⁶. Majority of the sufferers are from developing countries⁷. The prevalence of infertility in Pakistan is around 22% where primary infertility constitutes 4% and secondary infertility about 18%8. Primary infertility was more common than secondary in our study, which is in agreement with previous studies^{9, 10, 11}. Some authorities consider that hysteroscopy and laparoscopy can replace HSG. But HSG is still a superior procedure in diagnosing the uterine and tubal pathologies due to its availability and cost effectiveness making it the standard and easy method for the evaluation of women infertility specially in the developing. And low resource countries.^{12,13.}

It is contra-indicated in pelvic inflammatory infection (PID) and pregnancy.¹⁴ The common complications noted with it are severe pain ,pelvic infection, bleeding and vasovagal episodes.¹⁵ The objective of this study was to assess the different patterns of Hysterosalpingographic findings in women evaluated for infertility in a tertiary care hospital of Quetta Pakistan over a period of two years.

Patterns Of Hysterosalpingographic Findings In Infertile Patients Presenting In A Tertiary Care Hospital Of Quetta

METHODOLOGY:

This was a cross sectional study. The data was collected from the archive of the department of radiology of Bolan Medical Complex Hospital Quetta. The patients referred from gynecology department after thorough clinical history and examination were included. Patients with active pelvic inflammatory disease were given antibiotic prophylaxis before the examination. The sample size was 264 which was calculated by considering 22% prevalence of infertility in Pakistan.⁸ This was augmented as 338 reported data was retrieved over the period of two years which met the inclusion criteria, clinical history and examination) of the study. Since it was a retrospective study, therefore no contact with patients or their families was made during the study. In addition, no contact was made with any other physician. Approval from institutional review board was obtained before date collection. A data sheet was made which included age, indications, HSG findings and examination date to generate information. Data has been formulated as simple frequency tables. Data was entered in SPSS version 22. After detailed history and explaining the procedure, a verbal informed consent was taken from the patient according to the protocol of the department before performing HSG. All HSG examinations were performed in the first half of the menstrual cycle. This is because during the proliferative phase the endometrium is thin and helps in proper image interpretation. It was ensured that there was no pre existing pregnancy. Contraindication to the procedure included bleeding, pregnancy, pelvic inflammatory disease(PID) and allergy to iodine containing contrast agents.

About15 to 20 ml of water-soluble contrast material, usually Urograffin, was injected slowly into the uterine cavity after cannulation. Prior antibiotic was given to prevent infection. Several films were taken to visualize fallopian tubes, uterine cavity and peritoneal spillage. All the HSG procedures were supervised, interpreted and reviewed by the radiologists. The most important complaint experienced during the procedure was pain. About 60% of the patient's complaint of pain that even persisted after 24 hours. Two of the patients went into vasovagal shock and were resuscitated. Pain was experienced less in secondary infertility.

RESULTS:

During the study period, 338 HSGs were done with majority of the patients 146 (43%), aged 28-33 years with a mean of 31 years of age-Table-1.Out of them 185(55%) 54.7 cases were of primary infertility while 152 (45%) of secondary infertility. Normal Hysterosalpingographic examination with free spillage of contrast bilaterally were noted in 62% of cases. Tubal blockage was present in 8.2% while unilateral blockage in 16% of patients. Bilateral hydrosalpinx were present in 4.7% of cases while loculated spill present in 1.7%. Congenital anomalies were present in 2% of patients of which arcuate uterus was common. Uterine synechiae and Asherman syndrome were present in 0.5% of patients respectively. Uterine fibroids were seen in 0.8% of patients.-Graph-1

Age Stratifications	Frequency N-338	Percentage
22-27	51	15%
28-33	146	43%
34-39	105	31%
40-45	33	10%
>45%	3	1%

Graph 1: HSG findings in infertile patients



DISCUSSION:

Infertility is considered important not only because of its physical entity but considered as a social stigma in our society as our cultural norms and perceived religious customs consider infertility equal to a personal, interpersonal or social failure. Apart from emotional stress, it can have serious impact on economic, physical and social well-being for both spouses, but affects women more as motherhood is considered as a supreme achievement for a woman.¹⁶

More than 70 million couples are affected from the infertility worldwide. Majority of them belongs to the developing countries. The consequences of childishness are experienced more in the developing countries as compared to the west.¹⁷

Infertility remains the main indication for HSG. The causes of infertility and its incidence (primary or secondary) vary in different regions of the world. In our study, the incidence of primary infertility was higher than that of secondary infertility. This is in contrary to the reports from some other studies where it has been studied that secondary infertility is commoner.¹⁸

Hysterosalpingography (HSG) is considered an important investigation in the evaluation of infertile couple despite the increased advocacy of sonohysterography, laparoscopy and dye test. Its value has not been underestimated in the developing countries, as they are not yet readily available. It can efficiently evaluate fallopian tubes , uterus and cervixin a female presenting with infertility at a lower cost and the benefit being readily available and non-invasive.¹⁹

Preliminary ultrasound was requested as it defines the uterine contour and evaluates for uterine fibroids and other myometrial abnormalities like adenomyosis. HSG was done between 8 to 10 day of cycle as the isthmus of the fallopian tube is most distensible at this time. The second half of menstrual cycle is avoided because of the fear of irradiating a developing embryo and to avoid the risk of venous intravasation.²⁰

Under aseptic measures, the cervical Os was cannulated and contrast medium was injected to outline cervix, uterus and fallopian tubes and serial films were taken. Balloon catheter was used for cannulation as it is associated with less pain and side effects.²¹

HSG is regarded as an uncomfortable and painful procedure. Our study discovered 60% of the sample population felt pain even after 24 hours of HSG procedure and these results were slight lower than the study of Tokmak et al²² pain among 85% of women who underwent HSG. Pain was experienced more in patients with increased pre procedural anxiety levels therefore need for research to deal with fear and anxiety associated with hysterosalpingography must be carried out.²²Pain during HSG was mostly experienced while placement of a cervical tenaculum, inflating the balloon and during contrast media spillage through the fallopian tubes into the peritoneal cavity. Some patients have described the pain experienced during the contrast spillage as severe abdominal cramps similar to a worse form of pain experienced during dysmenorrhea.²³Mild analgesics were usually prescribed for pain relief. One problem encountered during HSG is to differentiate spasm from blockage. Intramuscular antispasmolytic was administered to every patient before the study to minimize cornual spasms.²⁴

HSG has limitations such as exposure of patients to ionizing radiation, invasive nature of the procedure, inability to define uterine contours, attendant complications such as severe pain, hemorrhage, pelvic infection and syncopy.²⁵ Most of the female with primary infertility had Hysterosal-pigographic examination with normal findings; therefore a high number of normal HSG examinations were noted in the primary infertility. This has been reported earlier as well.²⁶Infertile women mostly presented for HSG within the range of ages 28-34 years because this is the peak of reproduction. Mean age encountered in this study was 31 and showed that this is the commonly presenting age as seen in previous studies.²⁷

Tubal blockage was the most common abnormality observed

in our study. This is observed in previous studies as well.²⁸Pelvic inflammatory disease is considered the most common reason of tubal occlusion resulting in infertility. In active pelvic infections, HSG is contraindicated. In chronic PID the complications of previous infections can be seen at the HSG examinations. Tubal blockage is seen as an abrupt cut off contrast material with non-opacification of the fallopian tubes distally. It can be either unilateral or bilateral, and can involve any portion of the fallopian tube.⁴

The high rate of primary infertility and the high rate of tubal related abnormalities points to the high prevalence rate of pelvic inflammatory disease specially pelvic tuberculosis in our environment.²⁹As most of the cases are asymptomatic therefore it is difficult to diagnose genital tuberculosis clinically. Moreover histopathology and mycobacterium culture facilities are limited in high prevalence countries. Therefore, the infection in these circumstances is usually diagnosed during hysterosalpingography procedure for the preliminary investigations of infertile women.³⁰

Second common abnormality detected was hydrosalpinx, which were observed in 18 patients (4.7%) bilaterally, and 4 patients (1.1%) unilaterally. The blockage in the ampullary portion can result in tube dilatation forming a hydrosalpinx. Previous studies have shown increased incidence of hydrosalpinx on right side.³¹This was not seen in our study which is comparable to earlier study.¹⁸ One of the complications of PID is adhesions in the peritoneal cavity adjacent to the fallopian tube. Peritubal adhesions results in prevention of the contrast material from spilling freely into the peritoneal cavity and can be seen as loculation of the contrast material around the of the fallopian tube ampullary region. Loculated spill was noted in 6 cases. Congenital uterine anomalies were demonstrated in 2% of the Hysterosalpingograms in this study. The most common congenital anomaly encountered was arcuate uterus followed by bicornuate uterus. Asherman syndrome was seen in 2 cases. Uterine synechiae was noted in 2 cases and Fibroids in 3 cases.

Other less commonly encountered HSG abnormalities in our study included two cases in which contrast filled irregular branching spicules were seen radiating from the uterine cavity extending from endometrium into the myometrium. The provisional diagnosis of adenomyosis was made which was later confirmed by transvaginal ultrasound.

Continuous advocacy on preventive measures should be implemented by the practice of proper hygienic care and seeking timely consultation as soon the symptoms appear. These measures will bring down the incidence of tubal abnormalities among the women especially in the developing countries. There is need of further studies to investigate the cause of these abnormalities so that appropriate measures to be taken at the earliest to bring down the rate of occurrence of these conditions.

CONCLUSION:

The common patterns as seen in our study were normal findings. Tubal pathologies were the most common abnormal imaging findings on HSG as shown by tubal blockage and hydrosalpinx because of infective and inflammatory processes.

- 1 Pundir, Pundir J, Toukhy TE. Uterine cavity assessment prior to IVF. Women's Health. 2010;6(6):841-8.
- 2 Farhi J, Ben-Haroush A. Distribution of causes of infertility in patients attending primary fertility clinics in Israel. IMAJ-Israel Medical Association Journal. 2011;13(1):51-4.
- 3 Bukar M, Mustapha Z, Takai UI, Tahir A. Hysterosalpingographic findings in infertile women: A seven year review. Nigerian journal of clinical practice. 2011;14(2):168-70.
- 4 Simpson Jr WL, Beitia LG, Mester J. Hysterosalpingography: a reemerging study. Radiographics. 2006; 26(2):419-31.
- 5 Lim CP, Hasafa Z, Bhattacharya S, Maheshwari A. Should a hysterosalpingogram be a first-line investigation to diagnose female tubal subfertility in the modern subfertility workup?. Human reproduction. 2011;26(5):967-71.
- 6 Neelofar S, Tazeen S. The cultural politics of gender for infertile women in Karachi, Pakistan. InGender Studies Conference 2006.
- 7 Rutstein SO, Shah IH. Infecundity infertility and childlessness in developing countries.
- 8 Sami N, Saeed Ali T. Perceptions and experiences of women in Karachi, Pakistan regarding secondary infertility: results from a community-based qualitative study. Obstetrics and gynecology international. 2012. http://dx.doi.org/10.1155 /2012/108756
- 9 Okafor CO, Okafor CI, Okpala OC, Umeh E. The pattern of hysterosalpingographic findings in women being investigated for infertility in Nnewi, Nigeria. Nigerian journal of clinical practice. 2010;13(3):264-7.
- 10 Admassie D, Negatuy Y. Evaluation of the fallopian tubes in infertile women by hysterosalpingography in Tikur Anbessa Hospital, Addis Ababa, Ethiopia. International Journal of Nursing and Midwifery. 2011;3(11):178-81.
- Raymont A, Arronet GH, Arrata WS. Review of 500 cases of infertility. International journal of fertility.1969;14(2):141-53.
- 12 Onwuchekwa CR, Oriji VK. Hysterosalpingographic (HSG) pattern of infertility in women of reproductive age. Journal of human reproductive sciences. 2017;10(3):178-84.
- 13 Heis M, Amarin Z, Ibrahim AY, et. al. Uterine and tubal anatomical abnormalities in infertile women: diagnosis with routine hysterosalpingography prior to selective laparoscopy. SA Journal of Radiology. 2011;15(4).120-22
- Bhoil R, Sood D, Sharma T, Sood S, Sharma J, et. al. Contrast intravasation during hysterosalpingography. Polish journal of radiology. 2016;81:236-9.
- Nunley WC, Jr, Bateman BG, Kitchin JD, III, Pope TL., Jr Intravasation during hysterosalpingography using oil-base contrast medium – a second look. Obstet Gynecol. 1987;70:309–12.
- 16 Sami N, Ali TS. Psycho-social consequences of secondary infertility in Karachi. JPMA. The Journal of the Pakistan Medical Association. 2006;56(1):19-22.

- 17 Abubakar M, Njiti M, Mathew E, Abubakar A, Joseph D, Moi S, Nkubli F, Lunsti G. Evaluation of hysterosalpingographic (HSG) findings among suspected infertile women at Abubbakar Tafawa Balewa University Teaching Hospital (ATBUTH) Bauchi. Int Res Med Sci. 2016;3:55-9.
- 18 Aziz MU, Anwar S, Mahmood S. Hysterosalpingographic evaluation of primary and secondary infertility. Pakistan journal of medical sciences. 2015;31(5):1188-91.
- 19 Onwuchekwa CR, Oriji VK. Hysterosalpingographic (HSG) pattern of infertility in women of reproductive age. Journal of human reproductive sciences. 2017;10(3):178-184.
- 20 Aduayi OS, Akanbi GO, Akintayo AA, Aduayi VA. Hysterosalpingography findings among women presenting for gynaecological imaging in Ado-Ekiti, South Western Nigeria. Int J Reprod Contracept Obstet Gynecol. 2016;5(6):1906-11.
- 21 Kiykac Altinbas S, Dilbaz B, Zengin T, Kilic S, Cakir LA, Sengul O, Dede S. Evaluation of pain during hysterosalpingography with the use of balloon catheter vs metal cannula. Journal of Obstetrics and Gynaecology. 2015;35(2):193-8.
- 22 Tokmak A, Kokanali MK, Güzel AÝ, Taþdemir Ü, Akselim B, Yilmaz N. The effect of preprocedure anxiety levels on postprocedure pain scores in women undergoing hysterosalpingography. Journal of the Chinese Medical Association. 2015;78(8):481-5.
- 23 Szymusik I, Grzechocińska B, Marianowski P, Kaczyński B, Wielgoœ M. Factors influencing the severity of pain during hysterosalpingography. International Journal of Gynecology & Obstetrics. 2015;129(2):118-22.
- 24 Abbas S, Malik A, Ahmed E. Frequency of Tubal Spasm During Hysterosalpingography. Parity. 2015;9(1):259-61.
- 25 Bello TO. Pattern of tubal pathology in infertile women on hysterosalpingography in Ilorin, Nigeria. Annals of African Medicine. 2004;3(2):77-9.
- 26 Dyer SJ, Abrahams N, Mokoena NE, van der Spuy ZM. You are a man because you have children: experiences, reproductive health knowledge and treatment-seeking behaviour among men suffering from couple infertility in South Africa. Hum Reprod. 2004;19(4):960–967.
- 27 Danfulani M, Mohammed MS, Ahmed SS, Haruna YG. Hysterosalphingographic findings in women with infertility in Sokoto North Western Nigeria. African Journal of Medical and Health Sciences. 2014;13(1):19-23.
- 28 Akinola R, Akinola O, Fabamwo A. Infertility in women: Hysterosalpingographic assessment of the fallopian tubes in Lagos, Nigeria. Educational Research and Reviews. 2009;4(3):86-89.
- 29 Banu J, Begum SR, Fatima P. Association of pelvic tuberculosis with tubal factor infertility. Mymensingh medical journal: MMJ. 2009;18(1):52-5.
- 30 Ahmadi F, Zafarani F, Shahrzad G. Hysterosalpingographic appearances of female genital tract tuberculosis: part I. Fallopian tube. International journal of fertility & sterility. 2014;7(4):24552.
- 31 Hussain M, Al Damegh S, Tabish A. Therapeutic efficacy of hysterosalpingography with special reference to application of hydrostatic pressure during the procedure. International journal of health sciences. 2007;1(2):223-7.



Outcome Of Manual Vacuum Aspiration Vs Surgical Evacuation

Fozia Akmal, Sadia Suboohi, Saba Pario, Sugra Abbasi, Shahanaz Hassan Siddiqui

ABSTRACT

Objective: To compare the safety, efficacy and complications of manual vacuum aspiration (MVA) versus surgical evacuation in low resource set up.

Study Design and Setting: This crossectional study conducted at Department of Obstetrics & Gynaecology at Kulsoom Bai Valika Social Security SITE Hospital Karachi from January to June 2017.

Methodology: A total of one hundred patients with less than 12 weeks of gestation and diagnosis of missed miscarriage, incomplete miscarriage, blighted ovum or with retained products of conception (RPOCs) were recruited and randomly allocated to MVA without anesthesia (Group A) and surgical evacuation under general Anesthesia in Operation theatre (Group B).Both groups were compared in terms of demographic and obstetric data, clinical course (need of anaesthesia, operating time, approximate blood loss and stay in hospital), complications (excessive bleeding, uterine perforation, need for re-evacuation/ failed procedure, sepsis and maternal death) and patient satisfaction.

Results: Mean age of patients was 28.68 in Group A and 26.90 in Group B (P value-0.136). Average gestational age in weeks at which procedure was performed in Group A found to be 8.32 and 9.546 for Group B (P value-0.007). Parity was comparable in both groups (P value-0.746). Most of the patients were literate. Mean operating time and amount of blood loss comparison among groups had no statistical difference. Average hospital stay was significantly short in MVA Group (P value-0.001). No maternal death or uterine perforation observed in both the groups, 6% and 8% of patients had excessive bleeding in Group A & Group B respectively, one patient underwent re-evacuation in MVA group and one had sepsis after surgical evacuation. Post procedure satisfaction was comparable in both the groups.

Conclusion: Manual Vacuum Aspiration is comparable to surgical evacuation in terms of safety, efficacy, complications, patient satisfaction and superior in shorter hospital stay, no need of anesthesia and access to operation theater.

I

Keywords: Dilatation & curettage, miscarriage, MVA, Surgical Evacuation.

INTRODUCTION

Miscarriage or spontaneous abortion is the commonest medical complication affecting about 10-20% of clinically recognized pregnancies. The options of management are either expectant, medical or surgical depending on clinical situation and preference of women.¹ Expectant management

Fozia Akmal

I

I

I

I

Assistant Professor Obstetrics & Gynaecology at kulsumbai Valika Social Security SITE Hospital L Hamdard medical university & dental College, Karachi Т Sadia Suboohi Associate Professor, Obstetrics & Gynaecology at Creek General Hospital United Medical & Dental College, Karachi Т I Saba Pario I Assistant Professor, Obstetrics & Gynaecology at Creek L General Hospital United Medical & Dental College, Karachi Т Email: drsabapario@gmail.com I Sughra Abbasi Associate Professor, Obstetrics & Gynaecology Karachi Institute of Medical Sciences CMH Malir Cantt I Karachi L L Shahnaz Hassan Siddiqui Professor, Obstetrics & Gynaecology United Medical & Dental College I I Received: 12-07-2019 Accepted: 30-09-2019 Т ч

generally takes more time, so mostlyin clinical practice medical or surgical options are preferred because of increased psychological issues in the woman and her relatives.²Surgical evacuation is mandatory in case of excessive bleeding, infection or DIC. It is also preferred by most of women because of its immediate effect and it can be planned to their family and work needs.³ Surgical evacuation can be performed by conventional method dilatation and curettage (D&C) or vacuum aspiration, by electric (EVA) or manual vacuum aspiration method (MVA).⁴ During MVA, a 60-ml hand held syringe with a self-locking plunger is used to produce the vacuum for the aspiration of products of conception. It is performed under paracervical block & analgesia in the procedure room.⁵ Among surgical options, D&C is widely practiced despite the fact that it needs general anesthesia, is performed in operation theater and prolong hospitalization leading to higher charges, just for the reason of unawareness and non training of staff to use the alternative and simple procedure, the MVA.6

MVA is a safe, effective method and performed without general anesthesia.⁷ Additionally it is done in shorter time as outpatient procedure and more cost effective in contrast to conventional method.⁸ MVA can be used for any type of miscarriage of < 12 weeks, including missed, incomplete, molar or even retained products of conception.⁵ There are minimal complications seen like excessive blood loss or incomplete evacuation in the hands of a skilled and trained practioner.⁹ MVA should be preferred and given superiority to conventional evacuation methods in low resource health care units and rural clinics because of its lower cost , no need of electricity and general anesthesia.⁷

Incidence of miscarriage in our country is 29/1000 women per year in reproductive age.⁹ According to the Pakistan Demographic and Health Survey, association of maternal death due to miscarriage or abortion was observed to be 5.6 %.¹⁰

MVA is now globally recommended by the international federation of Gynecology and obstetrics and World health organization.^{11, 12} It is therefore a deemed necessity to introduce MVA as a safer option of evacuation in developing countries like Pakistan, especially in low resource areas as it is considered to be effective, simple, inexpensive and easy to perform procedure with almost nil complications and indeed it was the rationale of this study. Therefore this study was aimed to compare the outcomes of manual vacuum aspiration (MVA) and surgical evacuation in low resource set up in Karachi Pakistan.

METHODOLOGY:

A clinical trial was performed in the Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology, at Kulsoom Bai Valika Social Security SITE Hospital, Karachi Pakistan for a period of six months from January to June 2017 to compare the outcomes of manual vacuum aspiration (MVA) and surgical evacuation in low resource set up. Patients who were less than 12 weeks of gestation and diagnosed with missed miscarriage, incomplete miscarriage, blighted ovum or with retained products of conception (RPOCs) were included in the study and gave informed consent. Patients with septic abortion, uterine anomalies, pelvic infection, bleeding disorders, hemodynamically unstable state, psychiatric or neurological disease were excluded.

Diagnosis was confirmed after history/ LMP, physical examination and ultrasonography (USG). Investigations were performed for every patient like complete blood count, blood grouping and Rh factor, Hepatitis B & C screening. One hundred total patients by non-probability convenient sampling technique were allocated to MVA without anesthesia in procedure room (Group A) and surgical evacuation under general anesthesia in operation theatre (Group B), fifty patients in each group. Informed consent was obtained and data was collected using a self-designed proforma. MVA was performed with IPAS cannula, after cervical priming of 6 hours with 400 micrograms of misoprostol, under aseptic techniques in procedure room without anesthesia. Para cervical block was given with 10-20ml of 1% lignocaine, as a local anesthesia. While surgical evacuation procedures were performed in operation theatre under general anesthesia by conventional method of dilatation and curettage. After

procedure either MVA or surgical evacuation, products of conception were sent for histopathological examination. Patients were shifted toward after either procedure, routine care provided and discharged once stable. On discharge they were advised for follow-up visit after a week and report urgently in case of any excessive bleeding, severe abdominal pain and foul discharge.Both groups were compared in terms of demographic and obstetric data, clinical course (need of anaesthesia, operating time, approximate blood loss and stay in hospital), complications (excessive bleeding, uterine perforation, need for re-evacuation/ failed procedure, sepsis and maternal death) and patient satisfaction. SPSS (version 20) was used to organize and analyze data. Data was presented as mean and standard deviation for age of patient, gestational age, operating time duration, amount of blood loss during procedure, stay in hospital and applied independent t-test for comparison. Frequency and percentages were calculated for parity, educational status, need of anesthesia, complications and patient satisfaction and compared using chi square test in both groups.

The significance level was P < 0.05.

RESULTS:

One hundred patients were recruited under study, fifty in each group to compare the outcomes of manual vacuum aspiration (Group A) and surgical evacuation (Group B). Indications of procedure for both groups are expressed in Figure I. Regarding Parity in Group A; 26 % were nulliparous, 52% were between Para 1-3 and 22% were Para 4 or above, while in Group B; 28% were nulliparous, 56% were between Para 1-3 and 16% were Para 4 or above ,with no significant difference in both groups(P value-0.746).All patients in Group A underwent MVA without anesthesia ,while surgical evacuation was done under general anesthesia in all patients except one, which was highly significant (P-value = 0.001). (Table I)Most of the patients under study were literate , 74% and 70% in Group A and Group B respectively.

Mean age of patients undergoing procedure was calculated to be 28.68 in Group A and 26.90 in Group B (P value=0.136). Average gestational age in weeks at which procedure was performed in Group A found to be 8.32 and 9.546 for Group B (P value=0.007). Mean operating time and amount of blood loss during procedure was comparable in both groups with no statistical difference. While average hospital stay was significantly short in Group A (P value=0.001). (Table II) Regarding complications, there was no case of any major complications, maternal death or uterine perforation was observed in both groups, while 6% and 8% of patients had excessive bleeding in Group A & Group B respectively and only one patient underwent re-evacuation in MVA group and one patient had sepsis after surgical evacuation, P value-0.541 (Figure II). Post procedure satisfaction of patients was comparable in both the groups shown in Figure III.

DISCUSSION:

Despite the fact that MVA is an effective, economical and safe choice for management of first trimester miscarriages, it is not widely practiced in our state largely due to lack of trained personnel and non-availability of MVA kits. However, Pakistan collaborated with The International Federation of Gynecology and Obstetrics (FIGO) global initiative for the prevention of Unsafe Abortions and its consequences almost eleven years back.¹² Recommendations were to switch from surgical evacuation followed by curettage to MVA, which was also endorsed by WHO, UNFPA, Society of obstetrician &Gynecologists Pakistan /SOGP and training was provided for same, mainly to doctors at public sector hospitals and ensured the availability of instruments.¹² But still we are far behind to achieve this target.

Regarding the availability and cost of MVA kits, it is slightly more expensive and need to be replaced earlier than conventional instruments used in surgical evacuation which can be used for long term and are cheaper. But overall total expenditure is reduced as it is performed without anesthesia, does not require access to operation theatre associated with early recovery and shorter hospital stay.⁸ In present study, No statistically significant difference was observed between the two groups comparing the maternal age and parity, which was in agreement with ElieNkwabong, et al study.¹³ While comparing the mean gestational age between Group A and Group B, significant difference was observed in the current study which was in disagreement with previous work done by Shonali et al., ¹⁴ Most of the patients under study were literate. Both groups were comparable in the matter of operating time, with mean of 16.46 and 16.24 minutes in Group A and Group B respectively, which is in agreement with previous studies.^{15,16} While study by Pedro et al revealed less operating time in process of MVA.⁸

Mean blood loss in MVA group was slightly less in comparison to other group, but it was not statistically significant, same noted by other author. ¹⁴In contrast Patil T et al, observed blood loss higher in MVA group for more than 10 weeks of gestation as compared to EVA¹⁷ while Pramod Garhwal et al compared the blood loss in MVA and medical method and reported less blood loss in MVA.¹⁸ Duration of hospital stay was significantly limited in MVA group (Group A) which was in accordance with studies conducted previously.^{8,13,19} All cases in Group A were performed under paracervical block without any need of anesthesia in contrast to Group B, which is again related to postoperative recovery, prolonged stay in hospital and high hospital expenditure.¹³ Regarding comparing the post procedure complications, no maternal mortality and any case of uterine perforation was observed in either groups in current study, which was in agreement with study conducted by John M et al.²⁰ In contrast Elie Nkwabong et al reported six uterine perforations and one maternal death in D&C group against none in the MVA group.¹³

Excessive bleeding was the most frequently observed complication in both groups, with 6% and 8% of patients in Group A & Group B respectively. In contrast study performed by Patil T et al, 66.7% had excessive bleeding in MVA as compared to 40 % in EVA group.¹⁷Similar findings were observed by Goldberg AB et al. ²¹Majority of patients had successful evacuation after MVA (98%) and only one patient underwent re-evacuation in MVA group in this study and analogous findings were reported in various









Figure 3: Patients Satisfaction (Post Procedure)



Obstetrical Characteristics		Group A (n=50)		Group B (n=50)		P-Value
		Frequency	Percentage	Frequency	Percentage	
	Nulliparous	13	26	14	28	
	1-3	26	52	28	56	0.746
	≥4	11	22	8	16	
Need of	Yes	0	0	49	98	0.001*
Anesthesia	No	50	100	1	2	0.001

Table-1: Comparison Of Parity And Need Of Anesthesia

*Fischer exact Test

Clinical Outcomes Variables	Group A (n=50)		Group B (n=50)		P-Value
clinical outcomes variables	Mean	±SD	Mean	±SD	1 - value
Age (Years)	28.68	6.482	26.90	5.308	0.136
Gestational Age (Weeks)	8.32	2.51	9.546	1.97	0.007
Operating Time (minutes)	16.46	3.76	16.24	4.87	0.801
Amount of Blood Loss (ml)	124.40	64.49	142.70	61.29	0.149
Hospital Stay (hours)	8.76	4.09	14.44	6.48	0.001

Table 2: Comparison Of Clinical Outcomes

literature.^{22,23} Millingos et al, demonstrated 94.7% efficacy, while 5.3% patients had failed MVA .⁵

In current study one patient had sepsis after surgical evacuation, in contrast one patient ended up in septic shock after MVA in Ellie et al study.¹³No significant difference was observed in satisfaction level in both groups. 92% women who underwent MVA were satisfied, almost comparable results were observed by Haitham Hamoda et. al. ²²

Current study reinforces the evidence of previous researches to compare the clinical outcomes of MVA and conventional surgical evacuation. Provided all the benefits, simplicity of use and positive evidence of literature, MVA is not practiced widely until now. Probably due to non availability of MVA instruments, insufficiency of trained staff and apprehension of patients for undergoing procedure without anesthesia. Therefore it is recommended that practitioners and health policy makers must promote this procedure by providing mass training of procedure and make its access easy and available for the patients.

CONCLUSION:

The clinical outcomes of MVA (manual vacuum aspiration) procedure was comparable to surgical evacuation in terms of complications, patient satisfaction and in shorter hospital stay, no need of anesthesia and access to operation theater.

- 1. Kenny L., Bickerstaff H. Problems of early pregnancy. Ten teacher gynecology book: CRC Press; 2019.
- Karen L. Spontaneous abortions. Jeffcoate's Principles of Gynaecology; 2008
- Edmonds DK, Lees C, Bourne TH, editors. Dewhurst's textbook of obstetrics & gynaecology. Blackwell Pub.; 2007 Sep 20.

- Kamel H, Goswami S, Dutta R. Manual vacuumaspiration and elecrical vacuum aspiration-Acomparative study for first trimester MTP. The Journalof Obstetrics and Gynecology of India. 2011;61(1):53-6.
- Milingos D, Mathur M, Smith N, Ashok P. Manual vacuum aspiration: a safe alternative for the surgical management of early pregnancyloss. BJOG. 2009;116:1268–71.
- 6. Das C, Srichand P, Khursheed F, Shaikh F. Assessmentof efficacy and safety of manual vacuum aspiration(MVA). Journal of Liaquat University of Medical & Health Sciences.2010;9(03):130-3.
- Anjum MU, Yasmin S, Razzaq Q. Manual vacuum aspiration (MVA); safety and effectiveness in the treatment of first trimester pregnancy loss. Professional Med J. 2016;23(11): 1349-53. DOI: 10.17957/TPMJ/16.3540.
- Pereira PP, Oliveira AL, Cabar FR, Armelin AR, Maganha CA, Zugaib M. Comparative study of manual vacuum aspiration and uterine curettage for treatment of abortion. [Article in Portuguese]. Rev Assoc Med Bras. 2006;52:304-7.
- Tasnim N, Mahmud G, Fatima S, Sultana M. Manualvacuum aspiration: a safe and cost-effectivesubstitute of electric vacuum aspiration for thesurgical management of early pregnancy loss. Journalof Pakistan Medical Association. 2011;61(2):149-53.
- National Institute of Population Studies (NIPS), MEASURE DHS Macro International. Pakistan Demographic and Health Survey, 2006-07. Islamabad, Pakistan and Calverton, Maryland: NIPS, MEASURE DHS; 2007.
- 11. International Federation of Gynecology and Obstetrics (FIGO). Uterine evacuation: use vacuum aspiration or medications, not sharp curettage. Consensus Statement on Uterine Evacuation. London: FIGO; 2012.
- Zaidi S, Yasmin H, Hassan L, Khakwani M, Sami S, Abbas T. Replacement of dilation and curettage/evacuation by manual vacuumaspiration and medical abortion, and the introduction of postabortioncontraception in Pakistan. International Journal of Gynecology and Obstetrics. 2014;126:S40–S44

- 13. Nkwabong E, Fomulu JN. Dilatation and curettage versus manual vacuum aspiration for first trimester clandestine abortions. Int J Reprod Contracept Obstet Gynecol 2015;4:716-20.
- Agarwal S, Gupta D.Comparison of Manual Vacuum Aspiration versus Traditional suction evacuation in first trimester medical termination of pregnancy. Int J Res Med. 2013; 2(1);11-14
- Fang AH, Chen QF, Zhou HW, Cheng LN. A clinical study of one-off manual vacuum aspiration MVA) for terminating early pregnancy. Chin J Fam Plann. 2004; 13(4): 292–4.
- Xu YL, Luo L, Bu XF, Hou YH. Clinical observation on rapid and indolent termination of very early pregnancy by combination of micro-tube with peristaltic pump. Guangxi Med J. 2004; 26: 180–181.
- Patil T et al: Manual Vacuum Aspiration Vs. Electric Vacuum Aspirationin first trimester medical termination of pregnancy (MTP). Journal of Research in Medical and Dental Science. 2016;4; 278-82.
- Garhwal P, Rajoria L, Sharma M. A comparison of manual vacuum aspiration with medical method of abortion in termination of pregnancy up to 9 weeks of gestational age. Int J Reprod Contracept Obstet Gynecol 2017;6:3813-7.

- Choobun T, Khanuengkitkong S, Pinjaroen S.A comparative study of cost of care and duration of management for firsttrimester abortion with manual vacuum aspiration (MVA) and sharp curettage. 2012; 286:1161–4.
- 20. Westfall JM, Sophocles A, Burggraf H, Ellis S. Manual Vacuum Aspiration for First-Trimester Abortion. Arch Fam Med. 1998;7:559-62.
- 21. Goldberg AB, Dean G, Kang MS, Youssof S, Darney PD. Manual versus electric vacuum Aspiration for early firsttrimester abortion: a controlled study of complication rates. Obstet & Gynecol. 2004;103:101-7.
- 22. Hamoda H, Flett G, Ashok PW, Templeton A. Surgical abortion using manual vacuum aspiration underlocal anaesthesia: a pilot study of feasibility and women'saccept-ability. J Fam Plann Reprod Health Care 2005; 31(3): 185–8.
- 23. Paul ME, Mitchell CM, Rogers AJ, Fox MC, Lackie EG. Early surgical abortion:Efficacy and safety. Am J obstetrics and gynaecology 2002;187:407-11.



Original Article

Comparison Of Diacerein-Ginger With Diacerein Alone In Treating Knee Osteoarthritis

Mehtab Munir, Shahid Mustafa Memon, Sajid Abbas Jaffri, Khalid Mustafa Memon

ABSTRACT

Objective: To compare clinical efficacy of diacerein-ginger with diacerein alone in treating knee osteoarthritis.

Duration and place of study: It was a randomized clinical trial conducted from 21st September 2018 to 31stMarch 2019, in medical OPD of a private hospital in Karachi.

Methodology: 60 diagnosed patients of knee osteoarthritis were included in this study. Male and female patients \geq 50 years of age, fulfilling the inclusion criteria and after written informed consent experienced a wash-out period of 72 hours. These patients were systematically randomized into 2 groups each having 30 members. Group A received capsule Diacerein 50mg + capsule Ginger 550 mg twice daily and group B received capsule Diacerein 50mg twice daily, for 12 weeks. Parameters checked at 0, 6 and 12 weeks were: Western Ontario and McMaster Universities Osteoarthritis (WOMAC) index, pain at rest and movement (Visual Analogue Scale). Comparison of the two groups was done by independent t-test.

Results: Among 60 patients; 20 (33.33 %) were males and 40 (66.66%) were females. 4 patients in group A and 4 in B, dropped out during the study. Comparison of group A with group B in WOMAC and pain (at rest and movement) scores showed insignificant difference at day 0 before prescription of the drugs. However comparison showed highly significant difference (P-value < 0.001) between the two groups in WOMAC, pain at rest and movement scores at the end of 6th and 12th weeks of intervention.

Conclusion: Diacerein-Ginger is clinically more efficacious for management of knee OA than Diacerein alone.

L

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

Keywords: knee, osteoarthritis, ginger, diacerein, WOMAC score, pain score

INTRODUCTION:

I

I

Т

Osteoarthritis (OA) is an inflammatory, degenerative disease of joints and most commonly affected age is above 50 years¹. This disease affects hands and weight-bearing joints however knee joint OA is the most common amongst all. Globally 3.8% of people are affected from knee osteoarthritis as compared to 0.85% prevalence of hip osteoarthritis. In South East Asia prevalence of knee OA is 2.2% in males and 3.8% in females².

OA can be divided into 'age related OA' that is related to advanced age and 'premature OA' which can be associated with a strong risk factor³. The bone shows sclerotic changes, formation of osteophytes but synovitis is also eminent⁴.

Mehtab Munir Senior lecturer, Pharmacology department, Bahria University Medical and Dental College, Karachi Email: drmehtabmunir@hotmail.com Shahid Mustafa Memon Senior pathologist, Sindh Government Lyari General Hospital Sajid Abbas Jaffri Professor and Head, Medicine department, Bahria University Medical and Dental College, Karachi Khalid Mustafa Memon Professor, Pharmacology department, Bahria University Medical and Dental College, Karachi Received: 12-06-2019 Accepted: 01-10-2019 Pro-inflammatory mediators found to be commonly involved in OA are interleukin-1 α (IL-1 α), IL-1 β , IL-15, IL-17, IL-18, prostaglandins, tumor necrosis factor- α (TNF- α), nitric oxide (NO), matrix metalloproteinases (MMPs) and Creactive protein⁵. These all are elevated in OA cartilage, sub-chondral bone, synovial membrane and fluid, thus produce a synergistic effect on pathways leading to enhancement of inflammation and cartilage degradation⁶.

Examination of the joint may reveal swelling and tenderness, limitation in range of movements and crepitus⁷. X-ray shows decrease in joint space narrowing that is predictive of articular cartilage loss; bone density is often maintained in this disease. Severity on radiograph can be graded according to Kallgren Lawrence scale. According to this scale osteoarthritis is categorized into 5 levels, these are 0: None, 1: Doubtful, 2: Minimal, 3: Moderate, 4:Severe⁸. In early disease X-ray can be normal, diagnosis is done clinically using American College of Rheumatology criteria for knee OA^{9,10}.

Among treatment modalities of knee OA, pharmacological treatment is the main stay. NSAIDs are the most common drugs used for knee OA, but are associated with number of adverse effects¹¹. According to European Society for Clinical and Economic Aspects of Osteoarthritis (ESCEO) improvement and control of symptoms can be achieved by symptomatic slow-acting drugs for OA (SYSADOAs) including diacerein¹². It is an anthraquinone derivative, and its active metabolite is rhein. The key mechanism of action of diacerein is to inhibit the interleukin-1^β (IL-1^β) system

and subsequent signaling. Diacerein not only has antiinflammatory effect but also has some anti-catabolic and pro-anabolic effects on synovial membrane and cartilage. Moreover Diacerein has lesser adverse effects when compared with NSAIDs¹³.

Osteoarthritis Research Society International (OARSI) and some authors suggest more research, as efficacy of Diacerein as a single agent is still undecided¹⁴.Research has shown the trend of people suffering from osteoarthritis to use alternative medicine more than any other chronic disease¹⁵.These reasons compelled addition of a herbal agent that is ginger to the available agents for management of osteoarthritis. In this study ginger was chosen to be used with diacerein for knee OA as it is easily available and economical food spice in South East Asia.

Zingerber officinale is scientific name of ginger. Besides its use as a spice it is also a folk medicine in South East Asia. It is used for gingivitis, rheumatoid arthritis, cold, emesis and as expectorant. Active ingredients of ginger include shagoal, gingerol, paradol, zingerol and zerurnborne¹⁶. Underlying mechanism is cyclo-oxygenase inhibition resulting in prostaglandin synthesis inhibition but Lipoxygenase pathway is also inhibited by ginger. Nitrous oxide, protein C, IL-1^B, TNF-^a levels are also found to be reduced. Ginger has also found to have chondroprotective role in OA¹⁷. As ginger has a proved ant-inflammatory effect; it can be used alone or in addition to present pharmacological options for effective symptomatic treatment of knee OA. This study was conducted to compare clinical efficacy of diacerein with ginger-diacerein alone in treating knee OA.

METHODOLOGY:

The study was conducted in medical OPD of a private hospital in Karachi from 21st September 2018 till 31stMarch 2019. Faculty Research Committee (FRC) and Ethical Review Committee (ERC) of Bahria University Medical and Dental College approved this study. After informed written consent 60 patients of knee OA were included in the study.

Inclusion criteria were; males and females ≥ 50 years of age suffering from knee osteoarthritis requiring regular medical treatment. Clinical and X-ray findings of the patients were according to the American College of Rheumatology criteria for knee osteoarthritis⁹ and radiographic evidence of knee OA in concordance with Kallgren-Lawrence grade of 1 to 3¹⁸. Patients having known history of hypersensitivity to the study drugs, Kallgren-Lawrence grade of 0 or 4, concurrent other inflammatory or traumatic joint disease, recent or concurrent major illness of hepatic, renal, cardiovascular, gastrointestinal, hematopoietic or endocrine systems, terminal illness or cancer, overweight defined as a BMI >30, pregnancy or lactation (women) and intra-articular or systemic corticosteroid therapy in 3 months preceding enrolment for the study were excluded from the study.

After fulfilling the inclusion criteria 60 patients were selected. Before giving any intervention these patients were given wash out period of 72 hours for any drug. The patients were divided through simple systematic randomization into two groups: Group A (n=30) were prescribed with capsule Diacerein 50 mg + capsule Ginger 550 mg orally twice daily for 12 weeks. Group B (n=30) patients were given with capsule Diacerein 50 mg orally twice daily for 12 weeks.

For recording demographic profile and study parameters a pre-designed evaluation form was used. Four patients in group A (n=26) and 4 patients in group B (n=26) dropped out during the study. Composite Western Ontario and McMaster Universities Osteoarthritis (WOMAC) index and Visual Analogue Scale (VAS) were used to compare the clinical efficacy of the two groups at beginning and end of 6th and 12th week of intervention. WOMAC index is a 24 item questionnaire and evaluates pain, stiffness and difficulty in physical activity in knee OA. Higher scores show worsening of the disease and a decline in the score is depictive of improvement. VAS was used to assess pain at rest and movement. A 10 cm scale numbered from 0 to 10 was used as VAS; 10 being the worst pain and 0 showing no pain. Hence decrease in VAS showed improvement. Statistical analysis was done using SPSS version 23.0. Normality of the data was assessed by plotting histogram. Independent t-test was applied to check difference between the two groups. $P \le 0.05$ was considered to be statistically significant.

RESULTS:

In this study out of 60 patients of knee OA; females were more (66.66%) than males (33.33%), as shown in table 1. In group A mean age was 57.70 ± 4.37 and in group B was 57.69 ± 4.55 . Mean BMI of the patients in group A was 28.28 ± 1.19 whereas 28.08 ± 1.53 in group B.

Parameter wise comparison of the two groups (independent t-test) was conducted at the beginning of the study (Day 0) before giving any intervention and also at the end of 6th and 12th weeks of intervention. Table 2 demonstrates comparison of WOMAC scores of the two groups. At day 0 mean of WOMAC score of group A was 36.27 ± 8.57 and group B was 36.20 ± 8.07 showing no significant difference (P-value = 0.975). At the end of 6th week of intervention means of WOMAC score in group A and B patients were 20.04 ± 5.95 and 32.85 ± 7.78 (P-value < 0.001) showing more improvement in group A. WOMAC score's mean at the end of 12^{th} week of intervention in group A (9.96 ± 2.25) showed marked improvement than group B (29.62 ± 7.03) with P-value< 0.001.

Means of pain at rest (measured by VAS) before intervention were 2.53 ± 0.90 and 2.57 ± 0.77 for group A and B respectively as demonstrated in table 3. After 6weeks of intervention

mean for group A was 1.37 ± 0.69 and group B was 2.12 ± 0.43 (P-value < 0.001). Pain at rest for group A (0.50\pm0.51) and for group B (1.62\pm0.57) showed highly significant difference at the end of 12^{th} week (P-value < 0.001).

Comparison of pain at movement (VAS) between the two groups is shown in table 4. It is clearly shown that no

Table 1: Distribution of the Patients Included in the Study Suffering from knee Osteoarthritis

Groups	Total no. Of patients	Males	Females	Drop out
Α	30	9	21	4
В	30	11	19	4
TOTAL	60	20 (33.33%)	40 (66.66%)	8

Table 2: Comparison of WOMAC scores of Diacerein + ginger (group A) and Diacerein alone (group B)

	Mean ± Stand	D VALUES	
	Group A	Group B	I-VALUE®
Day 0	36.27±8.57	36.20±8.07	0.975*
6 th week	20.04±5.95	32.85±7.78	< 0.001**
12 th week	9.96 ± 2.25	29.62 ± 7.03	< 0.001**

8 independent t-test

*insignificant P-value > 0.05

**highly significant P-value < 0.01

Table 3: Comparison of Pain at rest of Diacerein +	ginger
(group A) and Diacerein alone (group B)	

	Mean ± Standard Deviation		P_VALUE®
	Group A	Group B	I-VALUE*
Day 0	2.53±0.90	2.57±0.77	0.878*
6 th week	1.37±0.69	2.12±0.43	< 0.001**
12 th week	0.50±0.51	1.62±0.57	< 0.001**

§independent t-test

*insignificant P-value > 0.05

**highly significant P-value < 0.01

Table 4 Comparison of Pain at movement of Diacerein + ginger (group A) and Diacerein alone (group B)

	Mean ± Stand	D VALUES	
	Group A	Group B	r-value®
Day 0	5.33±0.99	5.40±0.77	0.773*
6 th week	3.56±0.85	4.42±0.81	< 0.001**
12 th week	2.27 ± 0.45	3.38 ± 0.75	< 0.001**

δ independent t-test

*insignificant P-value > 0.05**highly significant P-value < 0.05

**highly significant P-value < 0.01

significant difference was there at day 0 between group A (5.33 ± 0.99) and group B (5.40 ± 0.77) with P-value = 0.773. However at the end of 6th and 12th weeks of intervention; marked difference between the groups was observed (P-value<0.001).

DISCUSSION:

Primary OA is the most common type of arthritis especially at age more than 50 years. This has been shown in a study conducted in India where people having age more than 50 years had OA more than those having age between 40-45 years. In our study 69.8% of the participants were females as compared to 30.8% males. The Indian study showed similar results where prevalence of knee OA was more in females (31.6%) than males (28.1%)¹⁹. Another study conducted in Sri Lanka also showed knee OA prevalence to be 20.1% in female population above 50 years of age. Exact underlying cause of knee OA being more prevalent in females is still unknown²⁰.

In this study mean BMI of the participant was 28.18, hence most of the patients were overweight. This is in compatible with the Indian study in which prevalence of knee OA was found to be significantly high in overweight / obese as compared to under or normal weight patients. Moreover obesity is a known risk factor for knee OA¹⁹.

Limited studies are available regarding effect of ginger, alone or in combination with other pharmacological options, on knee OA especially with diacerein. In our study diacerein combination with ginger has produced highly significant difference (P-value < 0.001) in all parameters, as compared to diacerein alone.

Another study was conducted on 90 knee OA patients, with the objective to evaluate effect of ginger on pain of the patients. The patients were randomized to ginger and control groups for 12 weeks. The ginger group (n=45) was taking conventional osteoarthritis treatment prescribed by orthopedic specialist and 1000mg of ginger per day in two divided doses. The control group (n=45) was only taking the conventional treatment given by the orthopedic specialist. Pain of the patients was assessed using visual analogue score (VAS) at the beginning and end of the study. The pain scores declined in both groups but more in the ginger group (Pvalue = 0.001). Hence the results are in accord with our study²¹.

Another trial showing similar results was conducted in India on 60 patients of knee OA, which were randomly divided into 3 groups. Group I was given Tab. Diclofenac 50 mg and Cap. Placebo, group II received Cap. Ginger 750 mg and Cap. Placebo and group III was given Cap. Ginger 750 mg and Tab. Diclofenac 50 mg. The patients were assessed every 2 weeks till 12 weeks of study. A statistically significant improvement in WOMAC index and Visual Analogue Score was seen in group III (P-value <0.001).Thus ginger powder had an add-on effect with NSAIDs in treating osteoarthritis²². Another study was conducted on 120 patients of knee OA; it was a double blinded randomized trial. The participants were randomly divided into two groups; one group received capsule ginger 500mg per day and the other received capsule placebo (containing starch) for 12 weeks. Pain scores (noted on VAS) were significantly reduced in ginger group (P-value < 0.001), hence showing concordance with our study²³.

A meta-analysis was conducted by OARSI regarding efficacy and safety of ginger in osteoarthritis. 5 randomized placebo controlled trials were included in this meta-analysis. Range of average age of participants was 47 to 66 years with more percentage of women. The daily dose of ginger ranged from 500mg to 1000mg per day and the trials duration ranged from 3 to 12 weeks. The analysis showed that ginger caused statistically significant decline in pain (p=0.005) and disability (p=0.01). The author concluded that ginger was efficacious and safe for reducing pain and inflammation of OA. The results of the meta-analysis are in agreement with our study showing improvement in ginger groups²⁴.

The present study and other mentioned studies demonstrated better symptomatic relief with ginger combinations, in patients with knee OA. Hence physicians should consider use of ginger in this regard. However long term and multicenter studies should be conducted with larger sample size; considering ginger alone group as well.

CONCLUSION:

Diacerein with ginger is clinically more effective in treating knee osteoarthritis as compare to diacerein alone.

- 1. Maly MR, Robbins SM. Osteoarthritis year in review 2015: Rehabilitation and outcomes. Osteoarthr Cartil. 2016; 24(12): 58–70.
- 2. Cross M, Smith E, Hoy D, Nolte S, Ackerman I, Fransen M, et al. The global burden of hip and knee osteoarthritis: Estimates from the Global Burden of Disease 2010 study. Ann Rheum Dis. 2014; 73(7): 1323–30.
- 3. Vincent TL, Watt FE. Osteoarthritis. Medicine. 2018; 46(3): 187-195. doi: 10.1016/j.mpmed.2017.12.009.
- 4. Vina ER, Kwoh CK. Epidemiology of Osteoarthritis: Literature Update. Curr Opin Rheumatol. 2018; 30(2): 160–167. doi: 10.1097/BOR.00000000000479.
- Rahmati M, Mobasheri A, Mozafari M. Inflammatory mediators in osteoarthritis: A critical review of the state-ofthe-art, current prospects, and future challenges. Bone. 2016; 85: 81–90. doi: 10.1016/j.bone.2016.01.019.
- 6. Wojdasiewicz P, Poniatowskim LA, Szukiewicz D. The role of inflammatory an anti-inflammatory cytokines in the pathogenesis of osteoarthritis. Mediators Inflamm. 2014; Article ID 561459. doi: 10.1155/2014/561459.
- 7. Sharma L. Osteoarthritis year in review 2015: clinical. Osteoarthritis Cartilage. 2016; 24(1): 36–48.
- Alshami AM. Knee osteoarthritis related pain: a narrative review of diagnosis and treatment. Intern J Health Sci. 2014; 8(1): 85-104.

- 9. Altman R, Alarcon G, Appelrouth D, Bloch D, Borenstein D, Brown C, et al. Development of criteria for the classification and reporting of osteoarthritis. Classification of osteoarthritis of the knee. Diagnostic and Therapeutic Criteria Committee of the American Rheumatism Association. Arthritis Rheum.1986; 29 (8): 1039-49.
- Pereira D, Ramos E, Branco J. Osteoarthritis. Acta Med Port, 2015; 28(1): 99–106.
- 11. Nakata K, Hanai T, Take Y, Osada T, Tsuchiya T, Shima D, et al. Disease-modifying effects of COX-2 selective inhibitors and non-selective NSAIDs in osteoarthritis: a systematic review. Osteoarthritis Cartilage. 2018; 26(10): 1263-73. doi: 10.1016/j.joca.2018.05.021.
- 12. Pavelka K, Bruyère O, Cooper C, Kanis JA, Leeb BF, Maheu E, et al. Diacerein: Benefits, Risks and Place in the Management of Osteoarthritis. An Opinion-Based Report from the ESCEO. Drugs Aging. 2016; 33(2): 75-85.
- Fidelix TS, Macedo CR, Maxwell LJ, Fernandes Moça Trevisani V. Diacerein for osteoarthritis. Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews. 2014; 10 (2). Art. No.: CD005117. doi: 10.1002/14651858.CD005117.pub3
- McAlindon TE, Bannuru RR, Sullivan MC, Arden NK, Berenbaum, F, Bierma-Zeinstra SM, et al. OARSI guidelines for the non-surgical management of knee osteoarthritis. Osteoarthritis Cartilage. 2014; 22(3): 363–88.
- Therkleson T. Topical ginger treatment with a compress or patch for osteoarthritis symptoms. J Holist Nurs. 2014; 32(3): 173–82. doi: 10.1177/0898010113512182.
- Haniadka R, Saldanha E, Sunita V, Palatty PL, Fayad R, Baliga MS. A review of the gastroprotective effects of ginger (Zingiber officinale Roscoe). Food Funct. 2013; 4(6): 845–55.
- 17. Vaishya R, Agarwal A K, Shah A, Vijay V, Vaish A. Current status of top 10 nutraceuticals used for Knee Osteoarthritis in India. J Clin Orthop Trauma. 2018; 9 (4): 338-48.
- Kallgren JH, & Lawrence JS. Radiological assessment of osteoarthritis. Ann Rheum Dis, 1956; 16(3): 494–503.
- Pal CP, Singh P, Chaturvedi S, Pruthi KK, Vij A. Epidemiology of knee osteoarthritis in India and related factors. Ind J Orthop. 2016; 50(5): 518–22.
- 20. Prashansanie Hettihewa A, Gunawardena NS, Atukorala I, Hassan F, Lekamge IN, Hunt DJ. Prevalence of knee osteoarthritis in a suburban, Srilankan, adult female population: a population-based study. Int J Rheum Dis. 2018; 21(2): 394-401.
- Alipour Z, Asadizaker M, Fayazi S, Yegane N, Kochak M, Hossein M. The Effect of Ginger on Pain and Satisfaction of Patients with Knee Osteoarthritis. JJ Chron Dis Care. 2017; 6(1): e34798. doi: 10.17795/jjcdc-34798.
- 22. Naderi Z, Mozaffari-Khosravi H, Dehghan A, FallahHosseini H, Nadjarzadeh A. The Effect of Ginger (Zingiber Officinale) Powder Supplement on Pain in Patients with Knee Osteoarthritis: a Double-Blind Randomized Clinical Trial. J Shahid Sadoughi Un Med Sci. 2013; 20 (5): 657-67.
- 23. Paramdeep G. Efficacy and tolerability of ginger (Zingiber Officinale) in patients of osteoarthritis of knee. Ind J PhysPharmacol. 2013; 57(2): 177–83.
- Bartels EM, Folmer VN, Bliddal H, Altman RD, Juhl C, Tarp S, et al. Efficacy and safety of ginger in osteoarthritis patients: A meta-analysis of randomized placebo-controlled trials. Osteoarthritis Cartilage. 2015; 23(1): 13–21.



Assessment of Teaching Strategy among Undergraduate Medical Students of **Clinical Sciences**

Sadaf Jabeen, Asad Raza Jiskani, Hina Khan, Fouzia Kirmani, Nighat Seema, Devi Kumari

ABSTRACT

Objective: To assess the preferred teaching strategies for undergraduate medical students of clinical sciences.

Study Design and Setting: - This cross-sectional study was conducted among the 4th and 5th year students of clinical sciences at Al-Tibri Medical College and Hospital Isra University. Karachi campus.

Methodology: All medical students of 4th and 5th year were enrolled and included for this study from May 2018 to June 2018 and absentees were excluded. A questionnaire was given to students in which they opted for the best teaching aid and strategy. Data was collected and analysed by principle Investigator. Demographic variables included were gender and year of M.B.B.S. Descriptive statistics was carried out via frequency and percentages.

Results: A total of 166 Students, 82 from 4th year and 84 from 5th year were reviewed. Among 4th year students; preference in academic teaching aids were white boards and multimedia and were equally preferred and for clinical teaching the most preferred aid was Out Patient Department (OPD)/clinical rotation. Among 5th year medical students' multimedia was most preferred for academic teaching and for clinical teaching the most preferred teaching aid was clinical based learning, i.e. 32 (38.1%).

Conclusion: White board, multimedia, were the most preferred teaching methods for academic teaching and bed side teaching and clinical based learning were highly preferred teaching method for clinical teaching among both cohorts of 4th and 5th year medical students. Therefore, approaches for improvement of the preferred teaching methods and establishing better facilities for students can be improve both knowledge and skills among clinical students.

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

Key words: Academic Teaching, Clinical Sciences, Learning Styles, Preferences, Teaching Aid.

INTRODUCTION:

The purpose of diversified teaching aids is to facilitate learning and to encourage the learners to learn more effectively¹. The learning styles can be described as an individual's consistent way of perceiving, processing and retaining new information. Educational researchers have

Sadaf	Iaheen	

I

L

I

L

L

I

I

I

I

I

I

Assistant Professor, Department of General Surgery Al-Tibri Medical College and Hospital, Karachi

Asad Raza Jiskani

Associate Professor, Department of Community Medicine, Director Academics Clinical & In charge Medical Education Al-Tibri Medical College and Hospital, Karachi

Hina Khan

Associate Professor, Department of Anatomy, Deputy Director Research & Coordinator Medical Education Al-Tibri Medical College and Hospital, Karachi Email: drhinasalman@gmail.com

Fouzia Kirmani

Lecturer, Department of Anatomy Al-Tibri Medical College and Hospital, Karachi

Nighat Seema

Assistant Professor, Department of Pediatrics Al-Tibri Medical College and Hospital, Karachi

Devi Kumari

Senior Lecturer, Department of Anatomy Al-Tibri Medical College and Hospital, Karachi

Received: 12-03-2019 Accepted: 04-09-2019

shown an increasing interest in the learning styles, the related instructional methods and teaching techniques¹. This interest is spurred by aiming to help the students by making them more capable and successful learners. In the complex setting of a medical school; it is essential to incorporate various learning approaches in teaching and learning that is best suited with the student's needs. In developing countries, there is an exponential increase of medical institutions catering huge number of medical students and it becomes a challenge to teach large number of students per class². Therefore, research is needed to identify the need assessment of students in relation to their day to day learning activities³. Therefore, it is fundamental for educators to realize that every student have different learning style and for that they should tailor instructions accordingly to facilitate learning.⁴ Various instructional strategies used for academic teaching of fourth and fifth year medical students include lectures (board and multimedia), tutorials, practical, assignment, problem based learning, and team based learning etc.⁵. For clinical teaching; the methods used are bed side teaching, OPD, examination of patient etc. Now from past few years electronic learning or e-learning is very famous among students which comprised of lectures, videos on internet, animated description of topic which helps student to understand the theme and retain for long⁶. Having knowledge on the learners' learning styles is a vastly underutilized theory to improve the classroom instructions. The learning style information can also benefit the students as it would help them in formulating the appropriate learning strategies for enhancing their learning⁷. To the best of our knowledge, none of the studies have correlated the preferences of the instructional methods with the learning styles of the medical students 8. The quality of medical education depends upon various factors like curriculum, college administration, infrastructure, patient exposure, faculty expertise in the subject and their knowledge, exposure and training in teaching-learning methodology. Moreover medical education in the past decade is witnessing a paradigm shifted from teacher centric to student centered mode.9 Therefore, student opinion and preferences matter the most before introduction of any additions, deletions or modifications in the way the course is conducted. At the same time students differs in age, place, ethnicity, level of preparedness, learning styles and preferences etc.¹⁰. Therefore it becomes a responsibility of every medical institute and teacher to meet the individual's educational need about the knowledge, attitude, and skills of the subject. One of the most important ways to strengthen the medical education at content delivery level is to assess student perception about teaching- learning methodology. Numerous teaching-learning strategies are practiced throughout MBBS course, to promote participation and interest of students and facilitate learning. These methods include didactic lectures, role plays, seminars, case studies, demonstrations through videotapes, problem based learning (PBL), tutorials etc.¹¹. The aim of the present study was to find out the most preferred instructional methods in clinical and academic teaching among medical students of clinical years (4th and 5th year).

METHODOLOGY:

A cross sectional study using convenient sampling was done among fourth and fifth year M.B.B.S student of Al-Tibri Medical College Karachi, Pakistan for a period of one month from 15th May 2018 to 15th June 2018. Ethical approval was obtained from the IRB. All the students of the respective clinical year were selected, therefore a total of 166 students were included among which 82 student from 4th year and 84 students from 5th year. Students present at the time of data collection were selected for the study and those who are absent were excluded.

A questionnaire was distributed amongst the students, asking them about preferred teaching strategy for academic and clinical teaching. Questions such as the current method of teaching present, better option for learning a topic, method of teaching which helps to retain a topic and lastly the preferred method of teaching by the students was asked. Questions were asked in serial order and students had to select their preferred teaching option. Data was analysed using SPSS version 20.0. Data was collected, analysed and kept confidential. Descriptive statistics included gender and year of M.B.B.S. Frequency and percentages were calculated and presented.

RESULTS:

A total of 166 of students, 82 from 4th year and 84 from 5th year MBBS were reviewed. The preferred method of academic teaching by 4th year medical students was white board and multimedia, 26 (31.7%) each. Least preferred method was assignments by n=03 (3.7%) of students. Among 5th year medical students; the preferred academic teaching was multimedia, by n=32 (38.1%) students followed by group discussion by n=22 (26.2%) while least preferred methods were tutorial and assignments, by n=01 (1.2%) student. The preferred method for clinical teaching among 4th year medical students was O.P.D n=27 (32.9%); followed by wards n=19 (23.2%) while least preferred methods were history taking and multimedia as n = 03 (3.7%) students for each. The preferred strategy for clinical teaching among 5th year medical students was clinical based learning at n=29 (34.5%) followed wards as n=25 (29.8%); while least preferred method in this cohort was clinical examination n=03 (3.7%). Figure 1-2

Figure 1- The Preferred Academic Teaching Methods among 4 and 5^{th} Year MBBS Students



Figure 2- The Preferred Clinical Teaching Methods among 4 and 5^{th} Year MBBS Students



DISCUSSION:

The preferred method of academic teaching by 4th year medical students was white board and multimedia, 26 (31.7%) each. Least preferred method was assignments by n=03 (3.7%) of students. Among 5th year medical students; the preferred academic teaching was multimedia, by n=32 (38.1%) students followed by group discussion by n=22 (26.2%) while least preferred methods were tutorial and assignments, by n=01 (1.2%) student. These results were incongruent with the study of Gupta et al; in which from 130 students, n = 59(45.4%) preferred lectures followed by group discussion n=26 (27.7%) students while tutorial was preferred by only n=28 (21.5%) students. Another study declared that the best teaching-learning mode was blackboard teaching chosen by n=58 (44.6%) students followed by multimedia n=47 (36.1%) students¹². A similar study by Privadarshini et al. revealed that 31 % of students preferred blackboard teaching over multimedia¹³. In another study by Papanna et al., the preferred mode of teaching was blackboard, by (51.4%) of students followed by multimedia, by (40.9%) students.¹⁴ A study by Mohan et al, reported in their study that both white board and multimedia were equally preferred among the students, similar to the finding of our study of 4th year students¹⁵. Another study by Atif et al. showed that the preferred method of academic teaching among the students was multimedia¹⁶. In a study by Kharbet al. 39.5% of students preferred group discussion while 27.8% students preferred lectures including both white board and multimedia¹⁷. In another study byNaqvi SH et al, this was similar to our study, where black board teaching was preferred over other teaching aid¹⁸.

In our study; the preferred method for clinical teaching among 4th year medical students was O.P.D n=27 (32.9%); followed by wards n=19 (23.2%) while least preferred methods were history taking and multimedia as n= 03 (3.7%) students for each. The preferred strategy for clinical teaching among 5th year medical students was clinical based learning at n=29 (34.5%) followed wards as n=25 (29.8%); while least preferred method in this cohort was clinical examination n=03 (3.7%). The preferred clinical strategy were similar with the study of Papanna et al; in which 81.5% students preferred bed side teaching whether in wards or O.P.D. to develop clinical skills¹⁴. Mahmood A et al reported that problem based learning and case studies were the most preferred teaching aid among the students.¹⁹.Fatima SS et al reported in their study of 98 students that the concept of "flipped classroom" i.e. interactive 2-way session were most preferred by undergraduate 4th year medical students ²⁰.In a study on 138 medical students of 2nd undergraduate year by Holambe VM et al reported that the most preferred mode for theory and practical teaching by students was focused group discussion and bedside clinic respectively and the most common obstacle faced by students during theory and

practical learning was one way, non-interactive teaching ²¹. In a study by Madhukumar S et al on undergraduate medical students of all years reported that from 685 students, more than half, i.e. 53% of the students preferred blackboard and 47%preferred power-point presentations. Majority of students preferred bed-side teaching (71%) over video and animation lectures²².Neetha CS et al in another study on 146 medical students reported that the most preferred mode of teaching was blackboard, i.e. among 54.79 % of students ²³.

Therefore it was recommended that providing training and opportunities to the medical educators for the development and understanding of the students' learning style preferences can result in a greater comprehension and consideration of the unique learning needs of each student. Correlating the students' learning style preferences and instructional needs can assist the teachers in using appropriate teaching-learning instructional practices and it can also provide personalized interventions for enhancing the learning.

Limitations of the study included observer bias, limited sample size and being conducted at a single center. Further recommendations for large scale multi-centric studies with different teaching methods are warranted to work on improvement and facilitate the learning.

CONCLUSION:

White board, multimedia, were the most preferred teaching methods for academic teaching and bed side teaching and clinical based learning were highly preferred teaching method for clinical teaching among both 4th and 5th year medical students. Therefore, approaches for improvement of the preferred teaching methods and establishing better facilities for students can be improve both knowledge and skills among clinical students.

- Regmi K. A Review of Teaching Methods--Lecturing and Facilitation in Higher Education (HE): A Summary of the Published Evidence. Journal of Effective Teaching. 2012;12(3):61-76.
- 2. Choudhary R, Dullo P, Tandon RV. Gender differences in learning style preferences of first year medical students. Pak J Physiol. 2011;7(2):42-5.
- 3. Liew SC, Sidhu J, Barua A. The relationship between learning preferences (styles and approaches) and learning outcomes among pre-clinical undergraduate medical students. BMC medical education. 2015;15(1):44-51.
- 4. Collins J. Education techniques for lifelong learning: giving a PowerPoint presentation: the art of communicating effectively. Radiographics. 2004;24(4):1185-92.
- Sarabi-Asiabar A, Jafari M, Sadeghifar J, Tofighi S, Zaboli R, Peyman H, Salimi M, et al. The relationship between learning style preferences and gender, educational major and status in first year medical students: A survey study from Iran. Iranian Red Crescent Medical Journal. 2015;17(1):1-6.
- Nuzhat A, Salem RO, Quadri MS, Al-Hamdan N. Learning style preferences of medical students: a single-institute experience from Saudi Arabia. Int J Med Educ.2011;2:70-3.

- 7. Nirmal KS, Amit B, Simerjit S, Adinegara LA. Learning preferences of clinical students: a study in a Malaysian medical college. International Journal of Medicine and Public Health. 2013;3(1):60-3.
- Williamson MF, Watson RL. Learning styles research: understanding how teaching should be impacted by the way learners learn part II: understanding how learners prefer to receive information. Christian Education Journal. 2006;3(2): 343-61.
- 9. Nanda B, Manjunatha S. Indian medical students' perspectives on problem-based learning experiences in the undergraduate curriculum: One size does not fit all. Journal of Educational Evaluation for Health Professions. 2013;10(1):11-18
- Gade S, Chari S, Dasgupta S. Perception of the Medical Students of a Private Medical College on their Future Career Indian J of Applied. Research. 2013;3(10):1-4.
- Patil U, Vaidya S, Jore S, Parekh M. MS Patwardhan Study of Student's Feedback on Present Teaching and Learning Patterns. Int J of Recent Trends in Sci And Tech. 2012;4(1):34-5.
- Gupta SS, Rathod AD. A Study on preferences of I MBBS Students about teaching–Learning Methods. Journal of Education Technology in Health Sciences. 2016;3(1):20-2.
- 13. Priyadarshini KS, Shetty HV, Reena R. assessment of different teaching aid and teaching methods for the better perception of Biochemistry by 1st MBBS students. Journal of evolution of medical and dental sciences. 2012;1(6):1159-65.
- Papanna KM, Kulkarni V, Tanvi D, Lakshmi V, Kriti L, Unnikrishnan B, Akash S, et al. Perceptions and preferences of medical students regarding teaching methods in a Medical College, Mangalore India. African health sciences. 2013;13(3): 808-13.
- 15. Mohan L, Kamath A, Manish M, Eesha B. Students' attitudes towards the use of audio visualaid during didactic lectures in pharmacology. Journal of Clinical and Diagnostic Research. 2010;4(6):3363-8.

- 16. Atif M, Fahmida K, Mukarram A, Saima E, Kamran A, Qureshi MA. Perception and preferences of undergraduate medical students regarding the use of contemporary teaching aid at Dow International Medical College, Karachi. Journal of the Dow University of Health Sciences. 2011;5(1):34-6.
- 17. Kharb P, Samanta PP, Jindal M, Singh V. The learning styles and the preferred teaching-learning strategies of first year medical students. Journal of clinical and diagnostic research: JCDR. 2013;7(6):1089-92.
- Naqvi SH, Mobasher F, Afzal MA, Umair M, Kohli AN, Bukhari MH. Effectiveness of teaching methods in a medical institute: perceptions of medical students to teaching aid. J Pak Med Assoc. 2013;63(7):859-64.
- Mahmood A, Khatoon F, Ali M, Ejaz S, Qureshi MA. Perceptions and preference of contemporary teaching methods among university students of Pakistan-A cross-sectional survey. IOSR J Nursing Health Sci. 2012;1(1):6-10.
- 20. Fatima SS, Arain FM, Enam SA. Flipped classroom instructional approach in undergraduate medical education. Pakistan Journal of Medical Sciences. 2017;33(6):1424.
- Holambe VM, Thakur NA, Giri PA. Student's preferences for learning in medical education. International Journal Of Community Medicine And Public Health. 2017;2(3):328-30.
- 22. Madhukumar S. Usage of Teaching Aids in A Medical College-Students Perceptions. Indian Journal of Public Health Research & Development. 2017;8(4):89-93.
- 23. Neetha CS, Nandini T, Padmanabha TS. Students' preferences of teaching methods and aids in a medical college–A cross-sectional study. National Journal of Physiology, Pharmacy and Pharmacology. 2019;9(8):763-6.



Diagnosis Of Endometriosis In The Light Of Prevalent Theories

ArfaAzhar, Rabiya Ali, Mohummad Hassan Raza Raja, Rozeena Baig, Rehana Rehman

ABSTRACT:

Endometriosis is a gynecological condition recognized by the existence of ectopic endometrial tissue outside the uterus. It is predominantly present in females of reproductive age group and is one of the main causes of infertility. Even with a predictable prevalence of 11% in females and considerable historical explanations adopted from the seventeenth century, the diagnosis of endometriosis still remains doubtful. The conventional concepts on histological basis of endometriosis are explained by a number of theories. Medical signs of endometriosis contain prolonged pelvic ache, dyspareunia, repeated menstrual discomfort and chronic pelvic pain which can severely affect the excellence of life and health of the patient. In this review we will discuss the prevalent theories for the diagnosis of endometriosis and suggestions to identify the condition well in time for better control and management.

Key words: Endometriosis, Endometriotic lesion, angiogenesis, vascularization, vasculogenesis, endothelial progenitor cells

I

I

L

L

I

INTRODUCTION:

Endometriosis is well-defined as the existence of endometrium in uncommon or ectopic position¹ Histopathologically, there is the existence of tissue or glands of the endometrial type external to the uterine cavity². This is a gynecological condition that depends on the hormones that are observed more frequently in child bearing age women³. Frequency of endometrium is among 5% and 10% in premenopausal females and be able to extent up to 35% in females suffering of subfertility, as this might be main reason for infertility². The hazardous cause of endometriosis is menarche starting at the age of 11 years as well as prolonged and heavy periods³. These two causes may raise the extra uterine environment for menstrual flow and the threat to endometriosis. The common locations for pelvic endometriosis are fallopian tubes ovaries, Douglas-fir pouch and uterine ligaments (broadly broad and uterosacral ligaments⁴. Endometriotic embeds are also present outside

Arfa Azhar

I

I

Т

I

I

L

T

I

I

Senior Instructor Department of Biological and Biomedical sciences

Aga Khan University Hospital, Karachi

Rabiya Ali Senior Lecturer, Department of Physiology Bahria University Medical and Dental College, Karachi

Mohummad Hassan Raza Raja 2nd year MBBS student Aga Khan University Hospital, Karachi

Rozeena Baig

Research associate Department of Biological & Biomedical Sciences, Aga Khan University Hospital. Karachi

Rehana Rehman

Associate professor, Vice chair research and graduate studies Department of Biological and Biomedical Sciences Aga Khan University, Karachi Email: drrehana7@gmail.com

Received: 31-05-2019 Accepted: 01-10-2019 the pelvis, i.e. diaphragm, lungs, gastrointestinal tract, pericardium and abdomen⁵.

There are 3 main types of endometriosis present in pelvisperitoneal, ovarian, and infiltrating endometriotic disease⁶. Structurally, there are 3forms of endometriotic lesions: red lesions, white lesions and black lesions. Red are characterize by great vascularization, although white are at late stages of red lesions, assuming the development of fibrosis and inflammation. The black lesions have tissue breakdown and scarring with successive development of scar tissue⁷. The histological basis of endometriosis are explained by a number of theories.

METHODOLOGY:

Literature search was carried out regarding the studies conducted on Theories of Endometriosis with the key words endometriosis, endometriotic lesions, angiogenesis, vascularization, vasculogenesis endothelial progenitor cells. Through Literature searches were performed in PubMed, Medline and Google scholar for English articles. The searches included both animal and human studies (Figure 1)

Literature Review: The various theories were discussed in 43 articles for the diagnosis of endometriosis.

Molecular and Cellular Theories onPathophysiologyof Endometriosis

To date, the pathologic process of endometriosis is quiet debatable even with many years of investigations. Numerous concepts of pathology have been suggested in current years: i) implantation theory⁸; ii) metaplasia theory⁹; iii) induction theory¹⁰; iv) Epigenetic theory¹¹; v) stem cell based theory¹²; vi) Perineural theory¹³. In recent times, it is suggested that an additional means of expressing the development and pain associated with endometriosis on the basis of inflammatory processes and initiation of nerve terminals to menstrual debris resultant retrograde and addition aluterinemenstrual flow of endometriosis¹⁴.

i) Implantation theory:

The best frequently recognized implantation theory⁸ stands on hypothesis that small and early disease is recognized the consequent progression and invasion indicates towards advanced problem. These conserved endometriotic particle shave capability for attachment to the peritoneum, multiply, categorize, and attack the adjoining tissues. Additionally the distribution of endometrotic cells thru lymph nodes¹⁵ impacts over the source of disease at distant places such as cerebellar or thoracic endometriosis¹⁶.

As per requirement towards sustenance of implantation theory a number of causes take place: i) existence of backward menstruation¹⁶; ii) occurrence of sustainable endometrial tissues to reversing refluxed menstrual flow¹⁶; and iii) binding ability of endometrial cells on peritoneum together with implantation and propagation¹⁷.

The peritoneal fluid, (PF) is filled into the peritoneal cavity, variation of fluid resulting eg. macrophage exudations, ovarian exudate, retrograde tubal fluid, transudate and reflux endometriotic material through reflux menstruation are therefore a significant component of the peritoneal surrounding¹⁸. This conversation of fluid into the pelvic cavity may explain in part the anatomical distribution of endometriotic lesions, which corresponds well to the principles of implantation biology¹⁹ and is therefore favorable to the theory of implantation. In contrast, endometriosis is only seen in a subcategory of females, despite of detail that FP comprises endometriotic tissue in equal to 59% of patients, regardless of endometriotic lesion present or menstrual cycle at any stages¹⁷. However, a persistent as well as increasing menstrual flow noticed in females having endometriosis might because of retrograde flow into the pelvis compared to healthy females having patent fallopian tubes²⁰. Furthermore, the sealtered uterine peristalsis might be the reason for the interruption of additional basal endometrium and, hence, growing extent of stem cell-resembling cells existing in retrograde flow of menstrum²¹.

ii) Metaplasia theory:

The theory of metaplasia further more remains redirected in developing rest theory since poorly placed Mullerian / endometriotic tissues might be stimulated on the way to suffer metaplasia. These data are corroborated by recent evidence that emigrant primary epithelium remains or endometrium-like ectopic glands are able to create beside fetal woman reproductive system²² sustainingas likely cause for endometriotic disease. Conversely, endometrial lesions also take place at additional positions outer to the Müller canals²³.

iii) Induction theory:

The induction theory associates the theories of implantation and metaplasia and hypothesizes that unidentified materials released from the degenerating endometrium will induce the undifferentiated mesenchyme to form a tissue similar to that of the endometrium¹⁰. In summing-up, the overhead concepts emphasis over the occurrence of endometrial lesions however remain unsatisfactory to describe the happening of severe endometriosis. The progressive development of short-term disease to initial endometrial lesions and severe types approaching benign cancers could remain elucidated by cellular alterations initiating after genetic or epigenetic modifications besides is treated into the theory of endometriotic lesion(EDT)¹¹.

iv) Epigenetic theory:

In Support of the epigenetic concept, it is found that cystic ovarian endometriosis is of clonal origin¹¹ then certain endometrial particles are disturbing in vitro, related with loss of epithelial -cadherin appearance), a process commonly detected in cancer biology²⁴. Furthermore, there is a combined proposal of tendency of germ line to endometriosis. Family reunification of endometriosis in humans²⁵ and rhesus monkeys moreover to the increased prevalence between blood relatives of females having all diseases, associated to the wide spread population²⁶ has been described. In addition, the suffered non-twin sisters are similar in ageof onset for symptoms²⁷ and show onsistency in monozygotic twins²⁸. Furthermore, other risk factors, such as prolonged exposure of digoxins, may to oplay a part in etiology of disease²⁹. These comments may lead to the assumption that endometriosis is probably having complicated genetic trait where several genes work together and with the surroundings to produce the phenotype of disease¹¹. The endometrium have a tremendously regenerative power and this is not an amazing that endometrium has stem cell properties³⁰.

v) Stem cell-based theory:

After confirmation, that endometriosis may possibly be a stem cell-based situationstops after the statement that newly isolated endometrial stromal and epithelial cells comprise a uncommon population of cells having clonogenic property fictional in colony-forming units. (CFUs)³¹.

The CFUs in endometriotic stromal fractions are analogous with mesenchymal stem cells (MSCs) with respect to their differentiation potential across several lineages³². Development of endometrial type MSC cells (eMSC) is likely through expression of PDGF-Rb and CD146 perivascular cell markers. The epithelial and stromal cells Clonogenicity of the endometrium shows non-substantial predisposition dependent on stage of the menstrual cycle, with greater than before clonogenicity at the growing stage of stromal cells, at secretory stage of epithelial cells. CFUs can similarly be identified in the non-cycling endometrium³³. MSC inappropriate eretrograde in the pelvis hence a serious element in forming an initial endometriotic disease. Further significance, the menstrual blood comprises plasticity particles, i.e. the re-forming cells of the endometrium (ERC)³⁴.

ERCs be similar to MSCs by their presence, growing

Diagnosis Of Endometriosis In The Light Of Prevalent Theories

possessions and prospective for differentiation into several cell categories. But, unlike MSCs, they direct matrix metalloproteases (MMP-3 and MMP-10), angiogenic factor ANG-2 and cytokines (GM-CSF, PDGF-BB) exposed by proteome investigations³⁴.

The morphology of menstrual blood-derive MSC (discussed as MMCs or MenSCs) for example unique like as fibroblast and similar to bone marrow-derived MSCs³⁵.

An additional research established the comprehensive plasticity of Men SCs³⁶.

Generally, Men SC shave advanced rate of proliferation, clonogenicity and migration than angiogenic potential in vitro and bone marrow-derived MSCs in vivo studies³⁷. Hida et al. confirmed the power of Men SC stowards there sortation developments in Myocardial Infarction rat model³⁸. Now, Men SCs contributed in reestablishment for diminished cardiac physiology thrudistinguishing into Cardiomyocytes derived from Men SC over transplant position. Therefore, menstrual blood comprises plastic cells that provide a new basis for cell-based additional managements³⁹. These outcomes obviously designate that back ward flow of menses be able to carry stem cell in the pelvic cavity and also there may be additional cell types using putative stem / progenitor cell properties. Investigations on blood and menstrualderived plastic cells are still in its infancy. This is likewise the objective why numerous researches describe the appearance of diver seimmuno phenotypic sketches of MenSC⁴⁰. A consistent attitude to segregate and describe





(figure:2) Interplay of theories of endometriosis adopted from PAB Klemm, A Starzinski - Powitz - Current Women's Health (2018)



stem cells in menstrual blood is important in deciphering their title role in the pathogenesis of endometriosiss⁴¹.

vi) Perineural theory:

It was suggested the perineural extent of endometriotic lesion with in inferior hypo gastric plexus, established concept of extent of endometriosis into nerve tissues in pelvic cavity¹³. Meanwhile, further studies are demonstrated participation of nerves arising after lumbosacral plexus, as well as sciatic and obturator nerves⁴². Newly revealed biological concepts of general importance (e.g. miRNAs, stem cell-based) are also significant to the pathogenesis of endometriosis⁴³. One challenge in endometriosis research will be to evaluate non-steroidal signaling pathways as targets for new therapeutics for the treatment of endometriosis. This may be an opportunity to substitute E2 depletion therapies to reduce undesirable effects.

CONCLUSION:

The molecular features of endometriosis include a hormonedependent (estrogen-dependent, progesterone- opposition) and inflammatory state with an epi-genetic predisposition that is most likely driven by cells with plasticity.

- Alimi Y, Iwanaga J, Loukas M, Tubbs RS. The Clinical Anatomy of Endometriosis: A Review. Cureus. 2018;10(9): e3361-e.
- Macer ML, Taylor HS. Endometriosis and infertility: a review of the pathogenesis and treatment of endometriosis-associated infertility. Obstetrics and Gynecology Clinics. 2012;39(4):535-49.
- 3. Prescott J, Chavarro JE, Spiegelman D, Rich-Edwards JW, Missmer SA, Farland LV, et al. A prospective cohort study of endometriosis and subsequent risk of infertility. Human Reproduction. 2016;31(7):1475-82.
- Vercellini P, Viganò P, Somigliana E, Fedele L. Endometriosis: pathogenesis and treatment. Nature Reviews Endocrinology. 2013;10:261-75.
- 5. Machairiotis N, Stylianaki A, Dryllis G, Zarogoulidis P, Kouroutou P, Tsiamis N, et al. Extrapelvic endometriosis: a rare entity or an under diagnosed condition? Diagnostic Pathology. 2013;8(1):194. doi: 10.1186/1746-1596-8-194.
- Tosti C, Pinzauti S, Santulli P, Chapron C, Petraglia F. Pathogenetic Mechanisms of Deep Infiltrating Endometriosis. Reproductive Sciences. 2015;22(9):1053-9.
- Alimi Y, Iwanaga J, Loukas M, Tubbs RS. The Clinical Anatomy of Endometriosis: A Review. Cureus. 2018;10(9).e3361
- Sampson JA. The development of the implantation theory for the origin of peritoneal endometriosis. American Journal of Obstetrics and Gynecology. 1940;40(4):549-57.
- 9. Fujii S. Secondary mullerian system and endometriosis. Am J Obstet Gynecol. 1991;165(1):219-25.
- Levander G, Normann P. The pathogenesis of endometriosis; an experimental study. Acta obstetricia et gynecologica Scandinavica. 1955;34(4):366-98.

- Koninckx PR, Barlow D, Kennedy S. Implantation versus infiltration: the Sampson versus the endometriotic disease theory. Gynecologic and obstetric investigation. 1999;47 DOI:10.1159/000052853.
- 12. Perillo A, Bonanno G, Pierelli L, Rutella S, Scambia G, Mancuso S. Stem cells in gynecology and obstetrics. Panminerva medica. 2004;46(1):49-59.
- 13. Roth LM. Endometriosis with Perineural Involvement. American Journal of Clinical Pathology. 1973;59(6):807-9.
- Laux-Biehlmann A, d'Hooghe T, Zollner TM. Menstruation pulls the trigger for inflammation and pain in endometriosis. Trends in pharmacological sciences. 2015;36(5):270-6.
- Gong Y, Tempfer CB. Regional lymphatic spread in women with pelvic endometriosis. Medical hypotheses. 2011;76(4):560-3.
- 16. Augoulea A, Lambrinoudaki I, Christodoulakos G. Thoracic endometriosis syndrome. Respiration; international review of thoracic diseases. 2008;75(1):113-9.
- 17. van der Linden PJ, de Goeij AF, Dunselman GA, van der Linden EP, Ramaekers FC, Evers JL. Expression of integrins and E-cadherin in cells from menstrual effluent, endometrium, peritoneal fluid, peritoneum, and endometriosis. Fertility and sterility. 1994;61(1):85-90.
- 18. Bahtiyar MO, Seli E, Oral E, Senturk LM, Zreik TG, Arici A. Follicular fluid of women with endometriosis stimulates the proliferation of endometrial stromal cells. Human reproduction (Oxford, England). 1998;13(12):3492-5.
- Vercellini P, Aimi G, De Giorgi O, Maddalena S, Carinelli S, Crosignani PG. Is cystic ovarian endometriosis an asymmetric disease? British journal of obstetrics and gynaecology. 1998;105(9):1018-21.
- 20. Bulletti C, De Ziegler D et al. Characteristics of uterine contractility during menses in women with mild to moderate endometriosis. Fertility and sterility. 2002;77(6): 1156-61.
- 21. D'Hooghe TM, Debrock S. Evidence that endometriosis results from the dislocation of basal endometrium? Human reproduction (Oxford, England). 2003;18(5):1130; author reply -1.
- 22. Bouquet de Joliniere J, Ayoubi JM, Lesec G, Validire P, Goguin A, Gianaroli L, et al. Identification of displaced endometrial glands and embryonic duct remnants in female fetal reproductive tract: possible pathogenetic role in endometriotic and pelvic neoplastic processes. Frontiers in physiology. 2012;3:444. doi: 10.3389/fphys.2012.00444
- 23. Signorile PG, Baldi F, Bussani R, D'Armiento M, De Falco M, Baldi A. Ectopic endometrium in human foetuses is a common event and sustains the theory of müllerianosis in the pathogenesis of endometriosis, a disease that predisposes to cancer. Journal of Experimental & Clinical Cancer Research. 2009;28(1):49. doi: 10.1186/1756-9966-28-49
- 24. Gaetje R, Kotzian S, Herrmann G, Baumann R, et. al. Nonmalignant epithelial cells, potentially invasive in human endometriosis, lack the tumor suppressor molecule E-cadherin. The American journal of pathology. 1997;150(2):461-7.
- Kennedy S, Mardon H, Barlow D. Familial endometriosis. Journal of assisted reproduction and genetics.1995;12(1):32-4
- 26. Moen MH, Magnus P. The familial risk of endometriosis. Acta obstetricia et gynecologica Scandinavica. 1993;72(7): 560-4.

- Kennedy S, Hadfield R, Mardon H, Barlow D. Age of onset of pain symptoms in non-twin sisters concordant for endometriosis. Human reproduction (Oxford, England). 1996;11(2):403-5.
- Hadfield RM, Yudkin PL, Coe CL, Scheffler J, Uno H, Barlow DH, et al. Risk factors for endometriosis in the rhesus monkey (Macaca mulatta): a case-control study. Human reproduction update. 1997;3(2):109-15.
- 29. Koninckx PR, Braet P, Kennedy SH, Barlow DH. Dioxin pollution and endometriosis in Belgium. Human reproduction (Oxford, England). 1994;9(6):1001-2.
- Yang J, Huang F. Stem cell and endometriosis: new knowledge may be producing novel therapies. International journal of clinical and experimental medicine. 2014;7(11):3853-8.
- Chan RW, Schwab KE, Gargett CE. Clonogenicity of human endometrial epithelial and stromal cells. Biology of reproduction. 2004;70(6):1738-50.
- 32. Schwab KE, Gargett CE. Co-expression of two perivascular cell markers isolates mesenchymal stem-like cells from human endometrium. Human Reproduction. 2007;22(11): 2903-11.
- Schwab KE, Chan RWS, Gargett CE. Putative stem cell activity of human endometrial epithelial and stromal cells during the menstrual cycle. Fertility and sterility. 2005;84: 1124-30.
- 34. Meng X, Ichim TE, Zhong J, Rogers A, Yin Z, Jackson J, et al. Endometrial regenerative cells: a novel stem cell population. Journal of translational medicine. 2007;5(1):57.
- Musina RA, Belyavski AV, Tarusova OV, Solovyova EV, Sukhikh GT. Endometrial mesenchymal stem cells isolated from the menstrual blood. Bulletin of experimental biology and medicine. 2008;145(4):539-43.
- Patel AN, Park E, Kuzman M, Benetti F, Silva FJ, Allickson JG. Multipotent Menstrual Blood Stromal Stem Cells: Isolation, Characterization, and Differentiation. Cell Transplantation. 2008;17(3):303-11.

- 37. Alcayaga-Miranda F, Cuenca J, Luz-Crawford P, Aguila-Díaz C, Fernandez A, Figueroa FE, et al. Characterization of menstrual stem cells: angiogenic effect, migration and hematopoietic stem cell support in comparison with bone marrow mesenchymal stem cells. Stem cell research & therapy. 2015;6(1):32.
- Hida N, Nishiyama N, Miyoshi S, Kira S, Segawa K, Uyama T, et al. Novel cardiac precursor-like cells from human menstrual blood-derived mesenchymal cells. Stem cells. 2008;26(7):1695-704.
- 39. Toyoda M, Cui C, Umezawa A. Myogenic transdifferentiation of menstrual blood-derived cells. Acta myologica : myopathies and cardiomyopathies : official journal of the Mediterranean Society of Myology. 2007;26(3):176-8.
- 40. Khoury M, Alcayaga-Miranda F, Illanes SE, Figueroa FE. The promising potential of menstrual stem cells for antenatal diagnosis and cell therapy. Frontiers in immunology. 2014;5:205.
- 41. Luz-Crawford P, Torres MJ, Noël D, Fernandez A, Toupet K, Alcayaga-Miranda F, Tejedor G, Jorgensen C, Illanes SE, Figueroa FE, Djouad F. The immunosuppressive signature of menstrual blood mesenchymal stem cells entails opposite effects on experimental arthritis and graft versus host diseases. Stem cells. 2016;34(2):456-69.
- 42. Cimsit C, Yoldemir T, Akpinar IN. Sciatic neuroendometriosis: Magnetic resonance imaging defined perineural spread of endometriosis. Journal of Obstetrics and Gynaecology Research. 2016;42(7):890-4.
- 43. Petra ABK, Anna S-P. Molecular and Cellular Pathogenesis of Endometriosis. Current Women's Health Reviews. 2018;14(2):106-16.


Huge Thyroglossal Duct Cyst Mimicking As Goiter In An Adult Man

Iqbal Hussain Udaipurwala, Sana Muhammad Sadiq, Sohail Aslam

ABSTRACT:

Thyroglossal duct cyst is the most common congenital cervical mass found mainly in children but only 7% of them are among adult population. They are mostly asymptomatic and found around the region of hyoid bone. Their size usually varies around 1.5 to 3cms. but cases are reported with unusually larger sized cysts, which may cause pressure symptoms over upper aero-digestive tract. We are reporting a case of unusually huge thyroglossal cyst of size of 6 x 8 cms in a 26-year-old man. This cyst was not apparent at time of birth or in early childhood but appeared later on. Initially it was very small but progressively and gradually increased to its present size. On first look, it appeared as thyroid swelling with soft to firm in consistency but on examination it was moving with both deglutition and tongue protrusion. Ultrasonography and CT scan of the neck confirmed the diagnosis of thyroglossal cyst. Thyroid scan showed, thyroid gland in its normal position. Sistrunk's operation was done with a midline vertical incision and the subsequent recovery was uneventful.

Key Words: Thyroglossal duct cyst, congenital neck masses, Sistrunk's operation

INTRODUCTION:

Thyroid gland is the first endocrine gland which appears in the 3rd week of embryonic life near foramen cecum¹. Initially it remains connected to gut through a narrow stalk called thyroglossal duct, while it descends in the neck and by 10th week of gestational life, the duct obliterates. Sometimes this duct may persist and runs from foramen cecum to thyroid gland's anatomical location in the neck and sometimes a cyst may develop within this duct later in life to appears as a midline cervical mass. Thyroglossal duct cyst is a common and frequent congenitally present midline neck mass in children. Majority of the thyroglossal duct cysts are usually diagnosed till the age of 5 years and only 7% are found in adult population². It has a slight male preponderance. It is mostly found around the hyoid bone but may be found at any place along the tract of the duct³. Most of the thyroglossal cysts are small in size but in literature some cases of unusually large size are reported which may compromise the upper aerodigestive tract. Sistrunk operation is found to be gold standard surgical procedure, while specimen is sent for confirmed histopathological diagnosis.

CASE REPORT:

A 26-year-old man presented with complaint of a painless

Iqbal Hussain Udaipurwala I I Professor & Head of ENT Department I I Bahria University Medical and Dental College, Karachi I Sana Muhammad Sadiq I Assistant Professor, Department of ENT, L Bahria University Medical and Dental College, Karachi Email: sanaent1112@gmail.com I L Sohail Aslam L Assistant Professor, Department Of ENT, Bahria University Medical and Dental College, Karachi L Received: 12-08-2019 Accepted: 01-10-2019

lump in front of the neck since 18 years of age, which slowly enlarged in size over last 8 years. Initially it was very small up to the size of an almond but gradually increased and reached up to its present size. It was painless and despite of its large size it was not associated with dyspnoea, stridor or dysphagia. On examination, patient was of average height and built, conscious, well oriented with person, time and place and vitally stable. There was a large sized lump in front of neck, up to 6 x 8cms. in size, moving with both deglutition and on tongue protrusion (fig. 1). Overlying skin was normal and freely mobile. The consistency was soft to firm with no fluid thrill. Pemberton's sign was negative, and no cervical lymphadenopathy was present. Rest of the clinical examination was also unremarkable.

Ultrasonography of the neck was advised, which revealed the presence of a cystic swelling. Thyroid scan was done which showed normal thyroid gland in its normal position. Thyroid function tests were also within normal limits. C.T scan was also done to find the extent of the lesion which showed presence of a huge thyroglossal duct cyst in the infrahyoid region, with compromise or displacement of airway or food passage (fig 2 and 3). Baseline investigations for general anaesthesia were found within limits and fitness was taken. Sistrunk operation was planned and vertical midline neck incision was used because of better exposure in this big cyst. It was a huge sized cyst, which appeared benign on macroscopic appearance and filled with straw coloured fluid. Surgery and subsequent post-operative recovery were uneventful (fig 4). Biopsy specimen was sent for histopathology which confirmed the diagnosis of thyroglossal cyst.

DISCUSSION:

Thyroglossal duct cysts are found mostly in 1st decade of life but sometimes in late teen or adult age cases may be reported. 60% cases appear before 20 years of life while only 7% cases are detected in adult life^{4,5}. In a large study

Fig 1. Pre-Operative Appearance of the cyst



Fig 2 CT scan findings on axial view



Fig 3. CT scan findings on coronal view



Fig 4. Post-operative appearance after 4 weeks



about congenital neck masses in paediatric population, 55% were diagnosed as thyroglossal duct cysts⁶. It is mostly found in the infrahyoid or sub-hyoid region but may present at any point along the tract of the thyroglossal duct. Atypical presentations also include along floor of the mouth⁷, intralaryngeal⁸, as a thyroid nodule in the lateral neck⁹, as cutaneous extrusion¹⁰, or in the mediastinum¹¹. Mostly these are asymptomatic except producing a cosmetically bad appearance, but larger ones may displace the trachea and /or oesophagus and thus pressure symptoms may appear like dyspnoea, stridor or dysphagia. Sometimes due to repeated infections, cyst may rupture and presents as fistulous tract or discharging sinus. In our case, the cyst appeared in the adult man after the age of 18 years. Though it was a huge cyst, there was no compression symptom and on inspection it appeared as a goitre. The patient in this case was also male as thyroglossal cyst is more common in males.

Ultrasound is usually the first investigation, which confirms the presence of the cyst. In our case also ultrasonography showed a huge cyst. Fine needle aspiration cytology reveals the nature of cells within the cyst. As it was a clear case of fluid filled thyroglossal cyst so fine needle aspiration cytology was not done in this case. In large cysts, C.T scan is advised to know the extent of the lesion. We also performed CT scan to see the extent of the cyst which showed a huge fluid filled cyst in the midline extending from the hyoid bone till upper tracheal rings. Thyroid function tests and thyroid scan are needed to rule out a normally functioning thyroid tissue in the body. In our case both were within normal limits.

Sistrunk operation is found to be gold standard treatment for such cases, in which TGD cyst is removed along with a part of central region of hyoid bone and a core of muscles around base of the tongue to avoid recurrence. This procedure carries 2.6-5% recurrence rate, depends upon the location of the cyst, surgeon's expertise, pre-operative infections etc. We also performed Sistrunk's operation. Ideally horizontal neck incision is used for this surgery, but we preferred midline vertical incision for better exposure as this was a huge cyst. There was no recurrence of the cyst in followup period of about 6 months. Use of operating microscope has been advocated by a recent study to identify the thyroglossal duct remnant better and to reduce chances of recurrence¹².

Thyroglossal cysts are mostly benign, but few cases are reported which harbour carcinoma in around 1% of the cases and out of which 75-80% cases are found to be papillary carcinoma. In our case histopathology of specimen was done after surgery which confirmed its benign and cystic nature with no evidence of malignancy. The lining epithelium of the cyst is mostly stratified squamous or sometimes pseudostratified ciliated columnar epithelium and rarely cyst may be devoid of any epithelium. In this case, the lining epithelium was stratified squamous.

CONCLUSION:

Thyroglossal duct cysts are congenitally present benign cervical masses, which mostly produce bad cosmetic appearance and no other symptoms. We are presenting a case of huge thyroglossal cyst in an adult man which was mimicking as a goitre because of its size.

REFERENCES:

- Carter Y, Yeutter N, Mazeh H. Thyroglossal duct remnant carcinoma: beyond the Sistrunk procedure. Surg Oncol. 2014; 23(3): 161-6.
- Kurt A, Ortug C, Aydar Y, Ortug G. An incidence study on thyroglossal duct cysts in adults. Saudi Med J. 2007; 28: 593-7
- Al-Thani H, El-Menyar A, Al- Sulaiti M, El-Mabrok J, Hajaji K, Elgohary H, Asim M, Taha I, Tabeb A. Presentation, Management, and Outcome of Thyroglossal Duct Cysts in Adult and Pediatric Populations: A 14-Year Single Center Experience. Oman Medical Journal, 2016; 31(4): 276-83.
- Lin ST, Tseng FY, Hsu CJ, Yeh TH, Chen YS. Thyroglossal duct cyst: a comparison between children and adults. Am J Otolaryngol., 2008; 29(2): 83-87.
- Dedivitis RA, Camargo DL, Peixoto GL, Weissman L, Guimarães AV. Thyroglossal duct: a review of 55 cases. J Am Coll Surg, 2002; 194(3): 274-277.

- Hsieh YY, Hsueh S, Hsueh C, Lin JN, Luo CC, Lai JY, Huang CS. Pathological analysis of congenital cervical cysts in children: 20 years of experience at Chang Gung Memorial Hospital. Chang Gung Med J, 2003; 26(2): 107-113.
- 7. Nakayama S, Kimachi K, Nakayama K, Ozeki S. Thyroglossal duct cyst occurring in the floor of the mouth: report of 2 cases . J Oral Maxillofac Surg, 2009; 67: 2690-3.
- 8. Nicollas R, Mimouni O, Roman S, Triglia JM. Intralaryngeal manifestation of thyroglossal duct cyst. Otolaryngol Head Neck Surg, 2007; 137: 360-1.
- Shifrin A, Vernick J. A thyroglossal duct cyst presenting as a thyroid nodule in the lateral neck. Thyroid, 2008; 18: 263-5.
- Nomdedéu-Guinot J, Martínez-Ramos D, Gibert-Gerez J, et al . Cutaneous extrusion as an atypical manifestation of a thyroglossal duct cyst . Cir Esp, 2008; 84: 173-4.
- 11. Chon SH, Shinn SH, Lee CB, et al. Thyroglossal duct cyst within the mediastinum: an extremely unusual location. J Thorac Cardiovasc Surg, 2007; 133: 1671-2.
- Akram A, Tariq M, Shahid RA. Thyroglossal duct cyst excision under magnification - How I do it? Pak J Med Health Sci., 2018; 12(2): 855-6.



Reasons of Diagnostic Errors and the Ways to Overcome among Medical **Residents**

Shafaq Sultana, Farhat Fatima

I

L

ABSTRACT:

Arriving at an accurate diagnosis is one of the competencies prime of the medical practitioner. Errors may occur in the diagnostic process anywhere from the point of patient's initial assessment and interpretation of diagnostic tests, and even during follow-up and patient referral. Patient safety is gaining global precedence and in this context diagnostic errors are speculate as an important cause of harm to the patients.¹ An awareness of the possible underlying factors leading to diagnostic errors, along with a repertoire of strategies to improve can be of great help to both junior and senior medical residents.

INTRODUCTION:

The burden of diagnostic errors is significant to the point that approximately 5% of adults who attended outpatient clinics endured diagnostic errors on an annual basis. Above 50% of these errors had detrimental consequences. This data reflects situation in a developed country and higher percentage of diagnostic errors is expected in developing countries, as access to resources and specialists is further limited there.¹ Considering this explicit attempts by residents to improve their diagnostic accuracy can in the end increase Patient Safety standards, more so in a country where resources are scarce.

Reasons for diagnostic errors:

Possible causes for a resident making diagnostic errors could be:

- He is committing a "no-fault error" because the patient presentation was either silent, atypical or mimicked a very common disease. They arise because of necessary short comings and the probabilistic nature of choosing a diagnosis on part of the physician.²
- His errors could be a result of system errors which are due to inadequacy of the health care system²
- He could be making "cognitive errors", a critical subset of diagnostic errors, collectively referred as cognitive dispositions to respond (CDRs). These are especially

S	hafa	aS	ulta	na
â	· · · • · · ·			

1

- Senior Lecturer Department of Medical Education Bahria University Medical and Dental College. Email: dr.shafaqsultana@gmail.com

- Farhat Fatima Clinical Tutor, Clinical Academic Sciences College of Medicine,Qatar University
- Received: 21-05-2019 Accepted: 17-09-2019

associated with failures in perception, failed heuristics and biases^{2-4,10}Studies have found processing biases like availability, base rate neglect, representativeness, confirmation bias, premature closure and many morea far more common cause of diagnostic error than knowledge gaps.^{3,4}

However, according to psychological literature heuristics and rules of thumb are efficient mental strategies which may help clinicians cope with uncertain situations and overcome the limitations of time and data. They serve as powerful tools to cope up with the diagnostic challenges and usually lead to accurate decisions, though at the cost of predictable error reflecting the inherent biases associated with them.^{2-6, 10}

Diagnostic errors can also be a result of poor attitude towards best practices and over confidence. Studies on doctors self-assessment and error recall have found doctors to over rate themselves and they also had difficulty in recalling errors they made.^{3,7}

How to reduce Diagnostic errors:

Following strategies can be employed by medical residents to reduce diagnostic errors:

- Develop awareness by providing detailed and thorough characterization of known cognitive biases. Provide multiple clinical examples on the constructive as well as detrimental effects of cognitive biases on the diagnostic process. This will help them reflect on the specific effects of heuristics on clinical decisions.^{4,8,9,18}
- Train them to employ a reflective approach to problem solving. Studies have shown that if problem solving training is coupled with metacognitive training or other kinds of instruction, such as questioning it further enhances the problem solving abilities of the student. Only a self-directed, strategic, reflective learner can become a flexible, effective problem solver.4,9,13-15
- Develop generic and specific cognitive forcing strategies to avoid predictable bias in particular clinical situations.^{4,11}
- Provide them with adequate time for quality decision • making.4
- Provide them with timely and effective feedback so that errors are confronted early on and corrected.^{4,9,12,13}
- Promote residents to adopt a systematic approach to common problems.¹³
- Promote them to practice worst case scenario medicine where in the worst possible diagnosis is considered

first. This technique might lead to unneeded lab testing. To avoid this teacher should emphasize that it is not always necessary that if a diagnosis is considered it should be tested as well. The positive side of this approach is that serious diseases will be considered and evaluated.^{9,10}

- Promote the use of why questions to reinforce the importance of examining all cases in detail.⁹
- Teach and reinforce the value of clinical exam as it helps reduce diagnostic errors occurring as a result of premature closure and unpacking error.⁹
- Promotingresidents to use diagnostic timeout effectively by making every effort not to frame the data using the current working diagnosis, can prove useful in preventing propagation of a diagnostic error.⁹
- Learning strategies to foster elaborated and compiled knowledge should be employed for medical training.¹⁶
- Acquisition of expert knowledge should be highly facilitated, as studies have shown that content is what derives the medical diagnostic work.^{8,16} Itshould be emphasized that nothing can substitute for knowledge attainment and clinical experience.¹⁶
- Provide them with an understanding of the basic processes of problem solving because an awareness of general problem solving strategies can turn a person into a better problem solver.^{8,13}
- Promote them to focus on discovering and identifying the problem. Adequate time should be spent on this stage because the better a problem is conceptualized the better it is solved, particularly when coupled with high creativity and motivation on part of the solver.^{9,13,14}
- Promote them to use external representations of the problem whenever possible for example written or graphical. This is necessary because most problems encountered by physicians exceed the limited stores of sensory and short-term memory. This causes an inability to hold all relevant pieces of a problem in working memory.^{13,14}
- Diagnoses can be arrived at more precisely by engaging in more than one form of reasoning. Such an approach aids in maintaining balance between the analytical and non-analytical forms of reasoning particularly while tackling diagnostic challenges.¹⁹

CONCLUSION:

An awareness of the possible underlying factors leading to diagnostic errors, along with a repertoire of strategies to improve can be of great help to both junior and senior medical residents. They will have metacognitive awareness of their own practices while making diagnosis and can guide their juniors along similar lines.

REFERENCES:

- 1. World Health organization. Diagnostic errors: Technical series on safer primary care. c2016 [cited 2019 Feb24]. Available from https://apps.who.int/iris/bitstream /handle/10665/252410 /9789241511636eng.pdf;jsessionid=596169EC8715CFA42 14ABAACDEE5234C?sequence=1
- 2. Mark G, Ruthanna G, Nancy F. Reducing diagnostic errors in medicine: what's the goal? Acad Med 2002;77(10):981-992.
- 3. Norman GR, Eva KW.Diagnostic error and clinical reasoning.Med Educ 2010;44:94-100.
- 4. CroskerryP.The importance of cognitive errors in diagnosis and strategies to minimize them. Acad Med 2003;78(8):775-780.
- 5. Elstein AS. Heuristics and biases: selected errors in clinical reasoning. Acad Med 1999;74:791-794.
- Eva KW, Norman GR. Heuristics and biases: a biased perspective on clinical reasoning. Med Educ 2005;39:870-872.
- Berner ES, Graber ML. Over confidence as a cause of diagnostic error in medicine. Am J Med 2008;121(suppl):2-33.
- 8. Collard A, GelaesS, Vanbelle S et al. Reasoning versus knowledge retention and ascertainment throughout a problembased learning curriculum. Med Educ 2009;43:854-865.
- 9. Trowbridge RL.Twelve tips for teaching avoidance of diagnostic errors.MedTeach2008;30:496-500.
- Croskerry P. Achieving quality in clinical decision making: cognitive strategies and detection of bias. AcadEmerg Med 2002;9(11):1184-1204.
- 11. Croskerry P. Cognitive forcing strategies in clinical decision making. Ann Emerg Med 2003;41:110-120.
- 12. Croskerry P. The feedback sanction. AcadEmerg Med 2000;7:1232-1238.
- 13. BruningRH,SchrawGJ,NorbyMM.Problem solving and critical thinking.In:CognitivePsychology and instruction.5th ed.Boston:Pearson Education Inc;2011:p. 160-191.
- 14. Bruning RH, Schraw GJ,NorbyMM.Introduction to cognitive psychology. In:CognitivePsychology and instruction. Boston: Pearson Education Inc; 2011;(5):1-12.
- 15. Epstein RM. Reflection, perception and the acquisition of wisdom. Med Educ 2008;42:1048-1050.
- 16. Fuks A, Boudreau JD, Cassell EJ. Teaching clinical thinking to first year medical students. Med Teach 2009;31:105-111.
- 17. Bruin ABH, Schmidt HG, RikersRMJP.The role of basic science knowledge and clinical knowledge in diagnostic reasoning:A structural equation modeling approach.Acad Med 2005;80(8):765-773.
- 18. Kassirer JP. Teaching clinical reasoning: case based and coached. Acad Med 2010;85(7):1118-1124.
- 19. Eva KW, Hatala RM, LeBlanc VR, Brooks LR. Teaching from the clinical reasoning literature: combined reasoning strategies help novice diagnosticians overcome misleading information. Med Educ2007;41:1152-1158.



Medical Marijuana: A Hope For Resistant Epilepsy?

Arsalan Anwar, Sidra Saleem

Dear sir,

Cannabis is a popular recreational drug worldwide and recently has been approved by many countries and a few states within the USA for recreational purposes. It is composed of two basic components, the psychoactive part tetrahydrocannabinol (THC) that targets CB1 and CB2 receptors in the body and counteracts reactive oxygen species and the Cannabinoidiol (CBD) component is famous for its medicinal use that works without interacting with these receptors and is free of psychiatric side effects.

CBD has gained wide popularity for its use such as reducing nausea/vomiting during chemotherapy, chronic pain, muscular spasm, improving appetite in chronic immunosuppressive disorders¹. In the past, Cannabis has also been used for multiple CNS disorders including Parkinson Disease, Multiple Sclerosis, Alzheimer's Disease, Autism, Tourette syndrome, Huntington Disease, Neuropathic pain but the most prominent and earliest example is its usage for treatment of Epilepsy².

The global prevalence of epilepsy is generally taken as between 5 and 10 cases per 1000 persons.Prevalence of epilepsy in general population in Pakistan is estimated to be 9.99 in 1,000 population. It is characterized by a history of at least one seizure, enduring alterations in brain with likelihood of future episodes. It can be due to different phenomenon such as Traumatic Brain Injury, Congenital Syndromes, Stroke and Infections. The other component is associated neurobiological, cognitive, psychological and social disturbances³. All these demographics is always concerning to researchers and they are actively working on Anti-Epileptic Drugs (AED) and therapeutics of all kind of Epilepsy. Multiple treatment modalities are available for epilepsy but the advancement in treating resistant epilepsy has been slow. Cannabis has created hope in the epilepsy community for its modest efficacy in treating resistant epilepsy disorder (seizures cannot be controlled with the use of two appropriate AEDs). Resistant Epilepsy more commonly occurs in two congenital disorders-Dravet syndrome (DS) or Lennox-Gastaut syndrome (LGS)⁴. Multiple studies have been conducted in the past to assess the efficacy of Cannabis and showed improvement in symptoms but it is used as an adjunct with traditional AED in treating Epilepsy⁵. More studies are required before it will go mainstream.

REFERENCES

- 1. Borgelt LM, Franson KL, Nussbaum AM, Wang GS (February 2013). "The pharmacologic and clinical effects of medical cannabis". Pharmacotherapy(Review). 33 (2): 195–209.
- Maroon J, Bost J. Review of the neurological benefits of phytocannabinoids. *Surg Neurol Int.* 2018;9:91. Published 2018 Apr 26. doi:10.4103/sni.sni_45_18
- I. A. Khatri, S. T. Iannaccone, M. S. Ilyas, M. Abdullah, S. Saleem Epidemiology of epilepsy in Pakistan: review of literature J Pak Med Assoc. 2003; 53(12): 594–597.
- O'Connell, B. K., Gloss, D., & Devinsky, O. (2017). Cannabinoids in treatment-resistant epilepsy: a review. *Epilepsy* & *Behavior*, 70, 341-348.
- Zaheer, S., Kumar, D., Khan, M. T., Giyanwani, P. R., & Kiran, F. N. U. Epilepsy and Cannabis: A Literature Review. Cureus, 2018; 10(9).



Arsalan Anwar
Department of Internal Medicine
Dow Medical College, Karachi, Pakistan
Email: drarsalananwar@gmail.com
Sidra Saleem
Department of Internal Medicine
Dow Medical College, Karachi, Pakistan
Received: 12-06-2019
Accepted: 05-08-2019

Author Index Volume-9, Issue-4

Aamir K Role of Vitamin E as a Preventive measure Against Platelet Aggregation In Pregnancy Induced Hypertension 170

Abbas M See Shahid Ali 257

Abbas SM Willingness To Pay And Its Role In Health Economics 62

Abbasi S See Sadia Suboohi 43

Abbasi S See Sadia Suboohi 210

Abbasi S See Fozia Akmal 303

Abbassi ZA See Kiran Fatima Mehboob Ali Bana 183

Abid A See Sara Ikram Khan 294

Abid F See Kausar Aamir 170

Abid M See Shahid Ali 257

Adnan N Evaluation Of Weight Changes On Wistar Rats Induced By Erythromycin And Aqueous Neem Leaves Extract 3

Afridi A See Khalid Aziz 25

Afridi A See Khalid Aziz 281

Aftab F See Sara Ikram Khan 294

Aftab S Indications of Primary Cesarean Section In Multipara 105

Ahmad I See Muhammad Asif Shahzad 98

Ahmed AS Emergence Of XDR Typhoid: An Alarming State To The Health Professionals 162

Ahmed H See Haroon Sabir Khan 17

Ahmed J Clinical Assessment Of Bonding Agent v/s Fluoride Varnish In Dentinal Hypersensitivity 53

Ahmed M See Nataha Fatima 275

Ahmed SA Comparison of Calcium Hydroxide, Chlorhexidine and Triple Antibiotic Paste As Intracanal Medicaments In Patients With Acute Periapical Infections 175

Ahmed SB Cervical Spondylosis; An Inevitable But Preventable Catastrophe 237

Ainuddin JA See Ayesha Khan 67

Akhlaq H Estimation Of Salivary Superoxide Dismutase Level In Oral Submucous Fibrosis: A Clinical And Biochemical Study 86

Akhtar M See Muhammad Asim Shafique 21

Akhtar M See Ramsha Azhar 192 Akhtar S See Faaiz Ali Shah 13 Akhtar Z See Syed Parvez Asghar 247 Akhter N See Ijaz Ali 48

Akhter N See Samina Naseem Khattak 57

Akmal F Outcome Of Manual Vacuum Aspiration Vs Surgical Evacuation 303 Akmal M See Haroon Sabir Khan 17 Akram U See Samina Naseem Khattak 57

Alam MJ See Furgan Mirza 8

Alamgir M See Beenish Hussain Nomani 151

Ali A See Faaiz Ali Shah 13

Ali H See Urooj Fatima 117

Ali I Effect Of Internet Addiction On Academic Performance And Mental Health Of Medical Students 48

Ali MA See Faaiz Ali Shah 13

Ali N See Shazia Aftab 105

Ali R See Syed Parvez Asghar 247

Ali R Education Of Females And Impact On Fertility 254

Ali R See Arfa Azhar 316

Ali S Effect Of Citrullus Lanatus Juice On Hemoglobin, Red Blood Cells And Liver Enzyme; An ExperimentalStudy 257

Ali SA See Aisha Wali 34

Ali SA See Jamshed Ahmed 53

Ali U See Ayesha Basit 113

Amin F See Sadia Siddiqi 38

Anayat M See Samina Naseem Khattak 57

Ansari R See Sehrish Shafique 286

Anum A Differences In Learning Preferences Among Medical, Dental And DPT Students 222

Anwar A Medical Marijuana: A Hope For Resistant Epilepsy? 326

Anwar MA See Muhammad Asim Shafique 21

Anwar S See Syed Adeel Ahmed 175

Arain KA See Waseem Mehmood Nizamani 156

Arif A See Khalid Aziz 25

Arif A See Khalid Aziz 281

Ariff H Factors Influencing The Choice Of Ophthalmology As A Career Amongst Students Of Dow University Of Health Sciences, Karachi 202

Ariff H See Sehrish Shafique 286

Asghar P See Saman Nadeem 137

Asghar S See Syed Adeel Ahmed 175

Asghar S See Umeed Javaid 206

Asghar S See Sara Ikram Khan 294

Asghar SP Bernard Soulier Syndrome: Presenting As High-grade Fever In A Young Male 247

Asif S See Wahab Buksh Kadri 214

Asim S Perception Regarding Oral Health Among Patients Visiting Dental OPD 266

Aslam A See Muhammad Asif Shahzad 98

Aslam A See Hira Mateen 128

Aslam I See Amer Sabih Hydri 94

Aslam S See Iqbal Hussain Udaipurwala 321

Aslam U See Nataha Fatima 275

Assad T See Asma Dahar 197

Ayaz H See Abdul Samad 120

Azeem M Introducing Evidence Based Orthodontics Journal Club Using A Structured Pre And Post Test 91

Azhar A See Kausar Aamir 170

Azhar A Diagnosis Of Endometriosis In The Light Of Prevalent Theories 316

Azhar R Patterns Of Torus Mandibularis And Torus Palatinus Among Dental Patients Of A Public Hospital In Karachi 192

Aziz K Perception And Barriers Of Research Conduction Among Faculty Members Of BUMDC 25

Aziz K Association of Physical activity levels and BMI Among Doctor of Physical Therapy Students of a Private College from Karachi 281

B

Baber H See Ramsha Azhar 192

Baig R See Arfa Azhar 316

Bakhat S Carbapenem Resistance Of Pseudomonas Aeruginosa: A Review 141

Bakhat S Evaluation Of Phenotypic Methods For Detection Of Carbapenem Resistance In Isolates Of Pseudomonas Aeruginosa In A Tertiary Care Hospital 165

Bana KFMA Importance of Quality in Medical and Dental Institutes 159

Bana KFMA Assessment Of Depression Among The Dentists Of

Karachi By Using AKUAD Scale 183

Bano K See Zara Jamali 271

Bareeqa B See Furqan Mirza 8

Basit A Dental Mangement Of Pregnant Patients: An Obstetrician's Perspective 113

Beenish S See Furqan Mirza 8

Bibi S Assessment Of Perinatal Outcome Of Breech Presentation At A Tertiary Care Hospital, Quetta 218

Bukhari U See Nausheen Adnan 3

Bukhsh FM See Safia Bibi 218

D

Dahar A Awareness Regarding Vitamin D Amongst The Medical And Nonmedical Students Of Karachi 197

Dareshani S See Hamidullah Ariff 202 F

F

Faheem F See Asiya Kazi 243

Faheem MF See Shaista Bakhat 165

Fahim M See Muhammad Asim Shafique 21

Fahim MF See Khalid Aziz 25

Fahim MF See Khalid Aziz 281

Faiz S Colour Blindness Among Male Professional Drivers: A Cross-sectional Study In Karachi 124

Faiz S Risk Factors Associated With Health And Wellness of Professional Automobile Drivers Of City Karachi, Pakistan 261

Faraz N See Sehrish Shafique 133

Faraz N See Junaid Tariq 179

Faraz N See Sehrish Shafique 286

Farhat H See Warda Zainab 227

Farzand M See Aisha Wali 34

Fatima F Improving Learning: Underlying Factors And Suggestions To Improve Learning In Health Profession 250

Fatima F See Shafaq Sultana 324

Fatima N Awareness Of Medical Students Regarding Periodontal Disease In Diabetic Patients In A Private Dental College of Karachi 275 Fatima U Localization Of Cyst Of

Myelomeningocele Among Pediatric Patients 117

G

Ghafoor S See Shazia Aftab 105 Ghani R See Urooj Fatima 117 Gul K See Safia Bibi 218 Gul P Evaluation Of Findings On Imaging Of Brain In Children With First Recognized Episode Of Fits-Experience At Tertiary Care Hospital Of Quetta 188

Gul P See Pari Gul 188

Gul P See Safia Bibi 218

Gul P Patterns Of Hysterosalpingographic Findings In Infertile Patients Presenting In A Tertiary Care Hospital Of Quetta 299

Gul P See Pari Gul 299

Η

Habib FA See Ambreen Kalam 83 Hamid W See Muhammad Azeem 91 Hanif F See Saman Nadeem 137 Hanif F See Shaista Bakhat 141 Hanif F See Shaista Bakhat 165 Haq A See Muhammad Azeem 91 Haque S See Syeda Bushra Ahmed 237 Hasan U See Ramsha Azhar 192 Hassan MA See Shahid Ali 257 Hassan Z See Wahab Buksh Kadri 214 Hoor T See Shabzain Ishrat 232 Hussain B See Ramsha Azhar 192 Hydri AS See Furgan Mirza 8 Hydri AS Adenoidectomy Before Or After Myringotomy In A Single Stage Procedure: Does The Sequence Matter? 94

I

Idrees H See Wahab Buksh Kadri 214 Ilyas M See Muhammad Azeem 91 Imran M See Syed Muslim Abbas 62

Imran M See Junaid Tariq 179

Imran M See Syeda Bushra Ahmed 237

Iqbal J See Muhammad Azeem 91 Ishrat S Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus And Vitamin C 232

J

Jabeen B See Ramsha Azhar 192 Jabeen S Assessment of Teaching Strategy among Undergraduate Medical Students of Clinical Sciences 312 Jafer Z See Hira Mateen 128

Jaffari SSA See Syed Parvez Asghar 247

Jaffri MSA See Mehtab Munir 72 Jaffri MSA See Shabzain Ishrat 232 Jaffri SA See Mehtab Munir 308 Jafri SA See Sehrish Shafique 286 Jafry SIA See Saima Asim 266

Jamali Z Neonatal Outcomes In Cord Clamping And Its Association With Hematological Parameters 271

Jamil S See Wahab Buksh Kadri 214

Jamshed A See Muhammad Asim Shafique 21

Jan AA See Ijaz Ali 48

Jan AA See Samina Naseem Khattak 57

Javaid U Attitudes And Behavior Of Dentists Regarding Management Of Deep Carious Lesion 206

Jesrani A See Waseem Mehmood Nizamani 77

Jesrani A See Waseem Mehmood Nizamani 156

Jesrani A See Pari Gul 188

Jiskani AR See Sadaf Jabeen 312

Jogezai S See Pari Gul 299

Jouhar R See Jamshed Ahmed 53

Junejo S Dietary Antioxidant An Indispensible Nutrient 80

K

Kadri W See Kiran Fatima Mehboob Ali Bana 159

Kadri WB Dentists Perspective Regarding Prophylactic Removal Of Asymptomatic And Impacted Third Molars 214

Kalam A Sleep Paralysis: An Overlooked Phenomenon 83

Kalsoom O See Ijaz Ali 48

Kamran M See Iffat Raza 30

Kamran T See Wahab Buksh Kadri 214

Karim N Impact Of Dietary Measures In Autoimmune Diseases 1

Karim N See Ayesha Khan 67

Karim N Water and Human Health 163

Kazi A Nocturnal Enuresis In Children 243

Kazmi SAJ See Ijaz Ali 48

Khalid N See Inayat H. Thaver 84

Khalid N See Kiran Fatima Mehboob Ali Bana 159

Khalid N See Warda Zainab 227

Khalid N See Inayat H. Thaver 255

Khan A The Triad Of PCOS, Infertility And Metformin 67

Khan FA See Qaisar Sajad 290

Khan H See Sadaf Jabeen 312

Khan HS Feasibility And Efficiency

Of Ureterorenoscopy As A Day-care Procedure For Treatment Of Ureteric Calculi 17

Khan I See Hina Mushtaq 109

Khan M See Waseem Mehmood Nizamani 77

Khan M See Waseem Mehmood Nizamani 156

Khan NA See Pari Gul 188

Khan R See Khalid Aziz 281

Khan S See Zara Jamali 271

Khan SI Awareness Regarding Minimally Invasive Dentistry among Dentists of Karachi 294

Khattak SN Incidence And Risk Factors Of Maternal And Fetal Outcomes Among Patients Of Placenta Previa With And Without Placenta Accreta 57

Khemchand K See Asiya Kazi 243

Khuraish NA See Waseem Mehmood Nizamani 77

Khuraish NA See Waseem Mehmood Nizamani 156

Kirmani F See Sadaf Jabeen 312

Kumari D See Sadaf Jabeen 312

Μ

Magsi K See Waseem Mehmood Nizamani 77

Mahesh A See Shazia Aftab 105

Mahmood S See Ayesha Basit 113

Malik L See Aisha Wali 34

Mateen H Students' Perspective On Using Internet Based Dental Educational Videos As An Adjunct In Dental Education 128

Mazhar S See Nataha Fatima 275

Mehar Y See Syeda Bushra Ahmed 237

Mehdi H See Urooj Fatima 117

Mehmood T See Hina Mushtaq 109 Memon FM See Urooj Fatima 117

Memon KM See Mehtab Munir 72

Memon KM See Mehtab Munir 308

Memon S See Shazia Aftab 105

Memon SM See Mehtab Munir 308 Mirza D See Muhammad Asif Shahzad

98

Mirza D See Sehrish Shafique 133 Mirza F Assessment Of Hearing Status In Rickshaw Drivers Of Karachi 8 Mumtaz S See Samira Faiz 124 Mumtaz SN See Samira Faiz 261 Munawar L See Saifullah Shaikh 102

Munim S See Warda Zainab 227

Munir M Pharmacological Treatment Of Osteoarthritis In A Nutshell 72

Munir M Comparison Of Diacerein-Ginger With Diacerein Alone In Treating Knee Osteoarthritis 308

Munir TA See Ijaz Ali 48

Munir TA See Samina Naseem Khattak 57

Musani A See Qaisar Sajad 290

Mushtaq H Correlation Between Automated And The Westergren Method For Determination Of ESR 109

Mutiullah S See Furqan Mirza 8

Ν

Nadeem S Emergence And Management Of Muti-Drug Resistant Pseudomonas Aeruginosa Isolated From Intensive-Care Unit 137

Naeem M See Ayesha Basit 113 Naheed F See Pari Gul 299

Naqvi SMZH Searching Literature: A Challenge For Novice Researchers 253

Nagvi SMZH See Saima Asim 266

Naseeb S See Zara Jamali 271

Nasim G See Sadia Suboohi 210

Nasir M See Ayesha Basit 113

Nawaz M See Haroon Sabir Khan 17

Naz S See Warda Zainab 227

Naz S See Saima Asim 266

Naz Z See Shahid Ali 257

Nisar A See Furqan Mirza 8

Nizamani WM Eagle's Syndrome Presenting As Unilateral Pain In The Anterolateral Neck And Referred Otalgia 77

Nizamani WM Amyotrophic Lateral Sclerosis: The Most Common And Lethal Form Of Motor Neuron Diseasea Case Report From Middle East 156

Nomani BH Diagnostic Utility Of Various Biomarkers For Prostate Cancer: A Review 151

Р

Pario S See Sadia Suboohi 43

Pario S See Sadia Suboohi 210

Pario S See Fozia Akmal 303

Pervaiz E See Samina Naseem Khattak 57

Q

Qadeer TA See Amtul Anum 222

Qamar A See Syeda Bushra Ahmed 237

Qayyum Z See Ijaz Ali 48 Qureshi F See Samira Faiz 124 Qureshi FM See Samira Faiz 261

R

Rab K See Hamidullah Ariff 202 Raja MHR See Arfa Azhar 316 Rajpoot NN See Abdul Samad 120

Rao MH See Hamidullah Ariff 202

Rasool S See Ramsha Azhar 192

Raza I See Nausheen Adnan 3

Raza I Grading Of Prostate Volume And International Prostatic Symptom Score (IPSS) In A Subset Of Karachi Population 30

Razvi N See Hina Mushtaq 109

Rehman R See Rabiya Ali 254

Rehman R See Arfa Azhar 316

Rizvi KF See Umeed Javaid 206

S

Saboor F See Sadia Siddiqi 38

Sadiq N See Abdul Samad 120

Sadiq SM See Iqbal Hussain Udaipurwala 321

Saeed MA See Haroon Sabir Khan 17

Sajad Q Risk Factors Associated With Sino-Nasal Polyposis And Its Relationship With The Occupational Inhalants 290

Sajjad M See Haroon Sabir Khan 17

Saleem S See Kiran Fatima Mehboob Ali Bana 183

Saleem S See Arsalan Anwar 326

Saleem T See Hamidullah Ariff 202

Saleh F See Shazia Aftab 105

Samad A Effect Of Withania Coagulans And Liraglutide On Serum Glp-1, Postprandial And Fasting Blood Glucose In Streptozotocin Induced Diabetic Rats 120

Samad MA See Humera Akhlaq 86

Samar SS See Furqan Mirza 8

Sami Z See Shizma Junejo 80

Sayyar HT See Asma Dahar 197

Seema N See Sadaf Jabeen 312

Shafique MA Hearing Loss Among Excessive Mobile Phone Users; A Cross Sectional Study At Bahawal Victoria And Civil Teaching Hospitals Bahawalpur 21

Shafique S Frequency of Dyslipidemia In Type 2 Diabetic Patients In Karachi 133

Shafique S Association Of Vitamin D Deficiency With Type 2 Diabetes 286

Shah FA Open Reduction And Internal Fixation Of Ankle Fractures - Is Timing Of Surgery Important? 13

Shah H See Jamshed Ahmed 53

Shaheen A See Muhammad Azeem 91

Shaheen S See Iffat Raza 30

Shahid G See Khalid Aziz 25

Shahid G See Khalid Aziz 281

Shahzad MA Burden Of Cysts And Tumors Around Impacted Third Molars 98

Shaikh FR See Shizma Junejo 80

Shaikh S Gender Distribution Of Depression Among Undergraduate Medical Students By Using PHQ-9 Scale 102

Shakoor S See Saifullah Shaikh 102

Shawana S See Sehrish Shafique 133

Shawana S See Hina Wasti 147

Siddiqi S Factors Associated With Patient Satisfaction – Evidence From A Primary Care Not For Profit Organization In Karachi, Pakistan 38 Siddique N See Syed Parvez Asghar 247

Siddiqui R See Saifullah Shaikh 102

Siddiqui SH See Sadia Suboohi 210

Siddiqui SH See Fozia Akmal 303

Siddiqui TM See Aisha Wali 34

Solangi A See Warda Zainab 227

Suboohi S Outcome Of Immediate PPIUCD At Follow Up Visit In Women At A Tertiary Care Hospital In Karachi, Pakistan 43

Suboohi S Assessment Of Premenstrual Syndrome In Medical Students And Its Association With Progression Of Academic Years 210

Suboohi S See Fozia Akmal 303

Sultana N See Shahid Ali 257

Sultana S See Farhat Fatima 250

Sultana S Reasons of Diagnostic Errors and the Ways to Overcome among Medical Residents 324

Т

Tabassum S See Sehrish Shafique 133

Taj Y See Saman Nadeem 137

Taj Y See Shaista Bakhat 141

Taj Y See Shaista Bakhat 165

Tariq J Social And Health Related Effects of Smart Phone Usage Among University Students 179

Thaver I Are We Ready For The Paradigm Shift In The Health Care System Of Pakistan? 255

Thaver IH Hospitals and Public Health: Conflicting Or Complementing Each Other 84

Tlili K See Waseem Mehmood Nizamani 77

Tlili K See Waseem Mehmood Nizamani 156

U

Udaipurwala IH See Furqan Mirza 8

Udaipurwala IH See Amer Sabih Hydri 94

Udaipurwala IH Huge Thyroglossal Duct Cyst Mimicking As Goiter In An Adult Man 321

Usmani A See Syed Muslim Abbas 62

Usmani A See Junaid Tariq 179

Usmani A See Syeda Bushra Ahmed 237

W

Wali A Assessment Of Anxiety In Patients Attending Baqai Dental Teaching Hospital Karachi-A Cross Sectional Study 34

Wasti H Comparision Of BRAF V600E, COX-2 and p53 As Biomarkers For The Early Detection Of Colorectal Cancer 147

Y

Yousuf S See Saman Nadeem 137

Ζ

Zahra S See Samira Faiz 261

Zaidi SIH See Asiya Kazi 243

Zainab W Awareness Regarding Cervical Cancer And Pap Smear Test As A Screening Tool Among Married And Unmarried Females Of Karachi 227

Zehra NM See Saman Nadeem 137

Zehra S See Samira Faiz 124

Zubairi A See Wahab Buksh Kadri 214 See Humera Akhlaq 86

Subject Index Volume-9, Issue-4

Α ACADEMIC Effect Of Internet Addiction On Academic Performance And Mental Health Of Medical Students (Ali I et al) 9(1):48-52 Assessment Of Premenstrual Syndrome In Medical Students And Its Association With Progression Of Academic Years (Suboohi S et al) 9(3):210-213 ADDICTION Effect Of Internet Addiction On Academic Performance And Mental Health Of Medical Students (Ali I et al) 9(1):48-52 ADENOIDECTOMY Adenoidectomy Before Or After Myringotomy In A Single Stage Procedure: Does The Sequence Matter? (Hydru AS et al) 9(2):94-97 ADULT Huge Thyroglossal Duct Cyst Mimicking As Goiter In An Adult Man (Udaipurwala IH et al) 9(4):321-323 AERUGINOSA Emergence And Management Of Muti-Drug Resistant Pseudomonas Aeruginosa Isolated From Intensive-Care Unit (Nadeem S et al) 9(2):137-140 Carbapenem Resistance Of Pseudomonas Aeruginosa: A Review (Bakhat S et al) 9(2):141-146 AERUGINOSA Evaluation Of Phenotypic Methods For Detection Of Carbapenem Resistance In Isolates Of Pseudomonas Aeruginosa In A Tertiary Care Hospital (Bakhat S et al) 9(3):165-169 AGGREGATION Role of Vitamin E as a Preventive measure Against Platelet Aggregation In Pregnancy Induced Hypertension (Aamir K et al) 9(3):170-174 ALARMING Emergence Of XDR Typhoid: An Alarming State To The Health Professionals (Ahmed AS) 9(2):162 AMYOTROPHIC LATERAL SCLEROSIS Amyotrophic Lateral Sclerosis: The Most Common And Lethal Form Of Motor Neuron Disease-a Case Report From Middle East (Nizamani WM et al) 9(2):156-158 ANKLE Open Reduction And Internal Fixation Of Ankle Fractures - Is Timing Of Surgery Important? (Shah FA et al) 9(1):13-16 ANTIBIOTIC Comparison of Calcium Hydroxide, Chlorhexidine and Triple Antibiotic Paste As Intracanal Medicaments In Patients

ANXIETY

Assessment Of Anxiety In Patients Attending Bagai Dental Teaching Hospital Karachi-A Cross Sectional Study (Wali A et al) 9(1):34-37 ASSESSMENT Assessment Of Anxiety In Patients Attending Bagai Dental Teaching Hospital Karachi-A Cross Sectional Study (Wali A et al) 9(1):34-37 Assessment of Teaching Strategy among Undergraduate Medical Students of Clinical Sciences (Jabeen S et al) 9(4):312-315 ASYMPTOMATIC Dentists Perspective Regarding Prophylactic Removal Of Asymptomatic And Impacted Third Molars (Kadri WB et al) 9(3):214-217 ATTITUDES Attitudes And Behavior Of Dentists Regarding Management Of Deep Carious Lesion (Javaid U et al) 9(3):206-209 AUTOIMMUNE Impact Of Dietary Measures In Autoimmune Diseases (Karim N) 9(1):01-02 AUTOMATED METHOD Correlation Between Automated And The Westergren Method For Determination Of ESR (Mushtaq H et al) 9(2):109-112 AUTOMOBILE Risk Factors Associated With Health And Wellness of Professional Automobile Drivers Of City Karachi, Pakistan (Faiz S et al) 9(4):261-265 AWARENESS Awareness Of Medical Students Regarding Periodontal Disease In Diabetic Patients In A Private Dental College (Fatima N et al) 9(4):275-280 Awareness Regarding Cervical Cancer And Pap Smear Test As A Screening Tool

Among Married And Unmarried Females Of Karachi (Zainab W et al) 9(3):227-231 Awareness Regarding Minimally Invasive Dentistry among Dentists of Karachi (Khan SI et al) 9(4):294-298

B

BARRIERS

Perception And Barriers Of Research Conduction Among Faculty Members Of BUMDC (Aziz K et al) 9(1):25-29 BEHAVIOR

Attitudes And Behavior Of Dentists Regarding Management Of Deep Carious Lesion (Javaid U et al) 9(3):206-209 BERNARD SOULIER SYNDROME Bernard Soulier Syndrome: Presenting As High-grade Fever In A Young Male (Asghar SP et al) 9(3):247-249

BLINDNESS

Colour Blindness Among Male Professional Drivers: A Cross-sectional Study In Karachi (Faiz S et al) 9(2):124-127 BLOOD

Effect Of Withania Coagulans And Liraglutide On Serum Glp-1, Postprandial And Fasting Blood Glucose In Streptozotocin Induced Diabetic Rats (Samad A et al) 9(2):120-123 BMI

Association of Physical activity levels and BMI Among Doctor of Physical Therapy Students of a Private College from Karachi (Aziz K et al) 9(4):281-285

BONDING AGENT

Clinical Assessment Of Bonding Agent v/s Fluoride Varnish In Dentinal

Hypersensitivity (Ahmed J et al) 9(1):53-56

BRAIN

Evaluation Of Findings On Imaging Of Brain In Children With First Recognized Episode Of Fits-Experience At Tertiary Care Hospital Of Quetta (Gul P et al) 9(3):188-191 BREECH

Assessment Of Perinatal Outcome Of Breech Presentation At A Tertiary Care Hospital, Quetta (Bibi S et al) 9(3):218-221

С

CALCIUM HYDROXIDE Comparison of Calcium Hydroxide, Chlorhexidine and Triple Antibiotic Paste As Intracanal Medicaments In Patients With Acute Periapical Infections (Ahmed SA et al) 9(3):175-178 CANCER

Diagnostic Utility Of Various Biomarkers For Prostate Cancer: A Review (Nomani BH et al) 9(2):151-155

Comparision Of BRAF V600E, COX–2 and p53 As Biomarkers For The Early Detection Of Colorectal Cancer (Wasti H et al) 9(2):147-150

Awareness Regarding Cervical Cancer And Pap Smear Test As A Screening Tool Among Married And Unmarried Females Of Karachi (Zainab W et al) 9(3):227-231 CARBAPENEM

Carbapenem Resistance Of Pseudomonas Aeruginosa: A Review (Bakhat S et al) 9(2):141-146

Evaluation Of Phenotypic Methods For Detection Of Carbapenem Resistance In Isolates Of Pseudomonas Aeruginosa In A Tertiary Care Hospital (Bakhat S et al) 9(3):165-169

CAREER

Factors Influencing The Choice Of

With Acute Periapical Infections (Ahmed

SA et al) 9(3):175-178

Students Of Dow University Of Health Sciences, Karachi (Ariff H et al) 9(3):202-205 CARIOUS Attitudes And Behavior Of Dentists Regarding Management Of Deep Carious Lesion (Javaid U et al) 9(3):206-209 CATASTROPHE Cervical Spondylosis; An Inevitable But Preventable Catastrophe (Ahmed SB et al) 9(3):237-242 CERVICAL Awareness Regarding Cervical Cancer And Pap Smear Test As A Screening Tool Among Married And Unmarried Females Of Karachi (Zainab W et al) 9(3):227-231 Cervical Spondylosis; An Inevitable But Preventable Catastrophe (Ahmed SB et al) 9(3):237-242 CESAREAN Indications of Primary Cesarean Section In Multipara (Aftab S et al) 9(2):105-108 CHILDREN Evaluation Of Findings On Imaging Of Brain In Children With First Recognized Episode Of Fits-Experience At Tertiary Care Hospital Of Quetta (Gul P et al) 9(3):188-191 Nocturnal Enuresis In Children (Kazi A et al) 9(3):243-246 CHLORHEXIDINE Comparison of Calcium Hydroxide, Chlorhexidine and Triple Antibiotic Paste As Intracanal Medicaments In Patients With Acute Periapical Infections (Ahmed SA et al) 9(3):175-178 CITRULLUS Effect Of Citrullus Lanatus Juice On Hemoglobin, Red Blood Cells And Liver Enzyme; An Experimental Study (Ali S et al) 9(4):257-260 CLAMPING Neonatal Outcomes In Cord Clamping And Its Association With Hematological Parameters (Jamali Z et al) 9(4):271-274 **CLINICAL** Clinical Assessment Of Bonding Agent v/s Fluoride Varnish In Dentinal Hypersensitivity (Ahmed J et al) 9(1):53-56 Assessment of Teaching Strategy among Undergraduate Medical Students of Clinical Sciences (Jabeen S et al) 9(4):312-315 COAGULANS Effect Of Withania Coagulans And Liraglutide On Serum Glp-1, Postprandial And Fasting Blood Glucose In Streptozotocin Induced Diabetic Rats (Samad A et al) 9(2):120-123 COLORECTAL Comparision Of BRAF V600E, COX-2 and p53 As Biomarkers For The Early Detection Of Colorectal Cancer (Wasti H

Ophthalmology As A Career Amongst

COLOUR Colour Blindness Among Male Professional Drivers: A Cross-sectional Study In Karachi (Faiz S et al) 9(2):124-127 COMPLEMENTING Hospitals and Public Health: Conflicting Or Complementing Each Other (Thaver IH et al) 9(2):84-85 CONDUCTION Perception And Barriers Of Research Conduction Among Faculty Members Of BUMDC (Aziz K et al) 9(1):25-29 CONFLICTING Hospitals and Public Health: Conflicting Or Complementing Each Other (Thaver IH et al) 9(2):84-85 CYST Huge Thyroglossal Duct Cyst Mimicking As Goiter In An Adult Man (Udaipurwala IH et al) 9(4):321-323 D DAY-CARE Feasibility And Efficiency Of Ureterorenoscopy As A Day-care Procedure For Treatment Of Ureteric Calculi (Khan HS et al) 9(1):17-20 DENTAL Students' Perspective On Using Internet

Based Dental Educational Videos As An Adjunct In Dental Education (Mateen H et al) 9(2):128-132 DENTAL MANGEMENT PREGNANT Dental Mangement Of Pregnant Patients: An Obstetrician's Perspective (Basit A et al) 9(2):113-116 DENTAL OPD Perception Regarding Oral Health Among Patients Visiting Dental OPD (Asim S et al) 9(4):266-270 DENTISTS Assessment Of Depression Among The Dentists Of Karachi By Using AKUAD Scale (Bana KFMA et al) 9(3):183-187 Attitudes And Behavior Of Dentists Regarding Management Of Deep Carious Lesion (Javaid U et al) 9(3):206-209 Dentists Perspective Regarding Prophylactic Removal Of Asymptomatic And Impacted Third Molars (Kadri WB et al) 9(3):214-217 DEPRESSION Gender Distribution Of Depression Among Undergraduate Medical Students By Using PHQ-9 Scale (Sheikh S et al) 9(2):102-104 Assessment Of Depression Among The Dentists Of Karachi By Using AKUAD Scale (Bana KFMA et al) 9(3):183-187 DETERMINATION Correlation Between Automated And The Westergren Method For Determination Of ESR (Mushtaq H et al) 9(2):109-112 DIABETES Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus And Vitamin C

Iype 2 Diabetes Mellitus And Vitamin C (Ishrat S et al) 9(3):232-236

Association Of Vitamin D Deficiency With Type 2 Diabetes (Shafique S et al) 9(4):286-289 Awareness Of Medical Students Regarding Periodontal Disease In Diabetic Patients In A Private Dental College (Fatima N et al) 9(4):275-280 Effect Of Withania Coagulans And Liraglutide On Serum Glp-1, Postprandial And Fasting Blood Glucose In Streptozotocin Induced Diabetic Rats (Samad A et al) 9(2):120-123 Frequency of Dyslipidemia In Type 2 Diabetic Patients In Karachi (Shafique S et al) 9(2):133-136 DIACEREIN-GINGER Comparison Of Diacerein-Ginger With Diacerein Alone In Treating Knee Osteoarthritis (Munir M et al) 9(4):308-311 DIAGNOSIS Diagnosis Of Endometriosis In The Light Of Prevalent Theories (Azhar A et al) 9(4):316-320 DIAGNOSTIC Reasons of Diagnostic Errors and the Ways to Overcome among Medical Residents (Sultana S et al) 9(4):324-325 DIETARY ANTIOXIDANT Dietary Antioxidant An Indispensible Nutrient (Junejo S et al) 9(1):80-82 DIETRY Impact Of Dietary Measures In Autoimmune Diseases (Karim N) 9(1):01-02DISEASE Awareness Of Medical Students Regarding Periodontal Disease In Diabetic Patients In A Private Dental College (Fatima N et al) 9(4):275-280 DISMUTASE Estimation Of Salivary Superoxide Dismutase Level In Oral Submucous Fibrosis: A Clinical And Biochemical Study (Akhlaq H et al) 9(2):86-90 DRIVERS Assessment Of Hearing Status In Rickshaw Drivers Of Karachi (Mirza F et al) 9(1):08-12 Colour Blindness Among Male Professional Drivers: A Cross-sectional Study In Karachi (Faiz S et al) 9(2):124-127 Risk Factors Associated With Health And Wellness of Professional Automobile Drivers Of City Karachi, Pakistan (Faiz S et al) 9(4):261-265 DYSLIPIDEMIA Frequency of Dyslipidemia In Type 2 Diabetic Patients In Karachi (Shafique S et al) 9(2):133-136 Е

EAGLE'S SYNDROME Eagle's Syndrome Presenting As Unilateral Pain In The Anterolateral Neck And

et al) 9(2):147-150

Referred Otalgia (Nizamani WM et al) 9(1):77-79 **ECONOMICS** Willingness To Pay And Its Role In Health Economics (Abbas SM et al) 9(1):62-66 **EDUCATION** Education Of Females And Impact On Fertility (Ali R et al) 9(3):254 **EDUCATIONAL** Students' Perspective On Using Internet Based Dental Educational Videos As An Adjunct In Dental Education (Mateen H et al) 9(2):128-132 **ENDOMETRIOSIS** Diagnosis Of Endometriosis In The Light Of Prevalent Theories (Azhar A et al) 9(4):316-320 ENURESIS Nocturnal Enuresis In Children (Kazi A et al) 9(3):243-246 EPILEPSY Medical Marijuana: A Hope For Resistant Epilepsy? (Anwer A 9(4):326 ERRORS Reasons of Diagnostic Errors and the Ways to Overcome among Medical Residents (Sultana S et al) 9(4):324-325 **ERYTHROMYCIN** Evaluation Of Weight Changes On Wistar Rats Induced By Erythromycin And Aqueous Neem Leaves Extract (Adnan N et. Al) 9(1):03-07 **EVACUATION** Outcome Of Manual Vacuum Aspiration Vs Surgical Evacuation (Akmal F et al) 9(4):303-307 **EVIDENCE** Factors Associated With Patient Satisfaction - Evidence From A Primary Care Not For Profit Organization In Karachi, Pakistan (Siddiqi S et al) 9(1):38-42 Introducing Evidence Based Orthodontics Journal Club Using A Structured Pre And Post Test (Azeem M et al) 9(2):91-93

F

FACTORS Improving Learning: Underlying Factors And Suggestions To Improve Learning In Health Profession (Fatima F et al) 9(3):250-252

FASTING

Effect Of Withania Coagulans And Liraglutide On Serum Glp-1, Postprandial And Fasting Blood Glucose In Streptozotocin Induced Diabetic Rats (Samad A et al) 9(2):120-123 FETAL

Incidence And Risk Factors Of Maternal And Fetal Outcomes Among Patients Of Placenta Previa With And Without Placenta Accreta (Khattak SN et al) 9(1):57-61 FEVER

Bernard Soulier Syndrome: Presenting As High-grade Fever In A Young Male (Asghar SP et al) 9(3):247-249

FITS

Evaluation Of Findings On Imaging Of Brain In Children With First Recognized Episode Of Fits-Experience At Tertiary Care Hospital Of Quetta (Gul P et al) 9(3):188-191

FIXATION

Open Reduction And Internal Fixation Of Ankle Fractures - Is Timing Of Surgery Important? (Shah FA et al) 9(1):13-16 FLUORIDE

Clinical Assessment Of Bonding Agent v/s Fluoride Varnish In Dentinal

Hypersensitivity (Ahmed J et al) 9(1):53-56

FRACTURES

Open Reduction And Internal Fixation Of Ankle Fractures - Is Timing Of Surgery Important? (Shah FA et al) 9(1):13-16

G

GLUCOSE Effect Of Withania Coagulans And Liraglutide On Serum Glp-1, Postprandial And Fasting Blood Glucose In Streptozotocin Induced Diabetic Rats (Samad A et al) 9(2):120-123 GOITER Huge Thyroglossal Duct Cyst Mimicking As Goiter In An Adult Man (Udaipurwala IH et al) 9(4):321-323

Η

HEALTH Willingness To Pay And Its Role In Health Economics (Abbas SM et al) 9(1):62-66 Hospitals and Public Health: Conflicting Or Complementing Each Other (Thaver IH et al) 9(2):84-85 Are We Ready For The Paradigm Shift In The Health Care System Of Pakistan? (Inayat H Thaver et al) 9(4):255-256 Risk Factors Associated With Health And Wellness of Professional Automobile Drivers Of City Karachi, Pakistan (Faiz S et al) 9(4):261-265 Perception Regarding Oral Health Among Patients Visiting Dental OPD (Asim S et al) 9(4):266-270 Effect Of Internet Addiction On Academic Performance And Mental Health Of Medical Students (Ali I et al) 9(1):48-52 Emergence Of XDR Typhoid: An Alarming State To The Health Professionals (Ahmed AS) 9(2):162 Water and Human Health (Karim N) 9(3):163-164 Social And Health Related Effects of Smart Phone Usage Among University Students (Tariq J et al) 9(3):179-182 Improving Learning: Underlying Factors

Improving Learning: Underlying Factors And Suggestions To Improve Learning In Health Profession (Fatima F et al) 9(3):250-252

HEARING

Assessment Of Hearing Status In Rickshaw Drivers Of Karachi (Mirza F et al) 9(1):08-12

Hearing Loss Among Excessive Mobile Phone Users; A Cross Sectional Study At Bahawal Victoria And Civil Teaching Hospitals Bahawalpur (Shafique MA et al) 9(1):21-24

HEMATOLOGICAL

Neonatal Outcomes In Cord Clamping And Its Association With Hematological Parameters (Jamali Z et al) 9(4):271-274 HEMOGLOBIN

Effect Of Citrullus Lanatus Juice On Hemoglobin, Red Blood Cells And Liver Enzyme; An Experimental Study (Ali S et al) 9(4):257-260

HOPE

Medical Marijuana: A Hope For Resistant Epilepsy? (Anwer A 9(4):326 HOSPITALS

Hearing Loss Among Excessive Mobile Phone Users; A Cross Sectional Study At Bahawal Victoria And Civil Teaching Hospitals Bahawalpur (Shafique MA et al) 9(1):21-24

HUMAN

Water and Human Health (Karim N) 9(3):163-164

HYPERSENSITIVITY

Clinical Assessment Of Bonding Agent v/s Fluoride Varnish In Dentinal Hypersensitivity (Ahmed J et al) 9(1):53-

56 HYPERTENSION

Role of Vitamin E as a Preventive measure Against Platelet Aggregation In Pregnancy Induced Hypertension (Aamir K et al) 9(3):170-174

HYSTEROSALPINGOGRAPHIC Patterns Of Hysterosalpingographic Findings In Infertile Patients Presenting In A Tertiary Care Hospital Of Quetta (Gul P et al) 9(4):299-302

T

IMMEDIATE

Outcome Of Immediate PPIUCD At Follow Up Visit In Women At A Tertiary Care Hospital In Karachi, Pakistan (Suboohi S et al) 9(1):43-47 IMPACTED MOLAR Burden Of Cysts And Tumors Around Impacted Third Molars (Shahzad MA et al) 9(2):98-101 IMPORTANCE Importance of Quality in Medical and Dental Institutes (Bana KFMA et al) 9(2):159-161 **INCIDENCE** Incidence And Risk Factors Of Maternal And Fetal Outcomes Among Patients Of Placenta Previa With And Without Placenta

Accreta (Khattak SN et al) 9(1):57-61

INDISPENSIBLE Dietary Antioxidant An Indispensible Nutrient (Junejo S et al) 9(1):80-82

INEVITABLE Cervical Spondylosis; An Inevitable But Preventable Catastrophe (Ahmed SB et al) 9(3):237-242 INFERTILE Patterns Of Hysterosalpingographic Findings In Infertile Patients Presenting In A Tertiary Care Hospital Of Quetta (Gul P et al) 9(4):299-302 INFERTILITY The Triad Of PCOS, Infertility And Metformin (Khan A et al) 9(1):67-71 INFLUENCING Factors Influencing The Choice Of Ophthalmology As A Career Amongst Students Of Dow University Of Health Sciences, Karachi (Ariff H et al) 9(3):202-205 **INHALANTS**

Risk Factors Associated With Sino-Nasal Polyposis And Its Relationship With The Occupational Inhalants (Sajad Q et al) 9(4):290-293 INTERNET

Effect Of Internet Addiction On Academic Performance And Mental Health Of Medical Students (Ali I et al) 9(1):48-52 Students' Perspective On Using Internet Based Dental Educational Videos As An Adjunct In Dental Education (Mateen H et al) 9(2):128-132

ISOLATES Evaluation Of Phenotypic Methods For Detection Of Carbapenem Resistance In Isolates Of Pseudomonas Aeruginosa In A Tertiary Care Hospital (Bakhat S et al) 9(3):165-169

Κ

KARACHI

Risk Factors Associated With Health And Wellness of Professional Automobile Drivers Of City Karachi, Pakistan (Faiz S et al) 9(4):261-265 KNEE Comparison Of Diacerein-Ginger With

Diacerein Alone In Treating Knee Osteoarthritis (Munir M et al) 9(4):308-311

LANATUS Effect Of Citrullus Lanatus Juice On Hemoglobin, Red Blood Cells And Liver Enzyme; An Experimental Study (Ali S et al) 9(4):257-260

L

LEARNING

Improving Learning: Underlying Factors And Suggestions To Improve Learning In Health Profession (Fatima F et al) 9(3):250-252 Differences In Learning Preferences Among Medical, Dental And DPT Students (Anum A et al) 9(3):222-226

LEAVES

Evaluation Of Weight Changes On Wistar Rats Induced By Erythromycin And Aqueous Neem Leaves Extract (Adnan N et. Al) 9(1):03-07 LETHAL

Amyotrophic Lateral Sclerosis: The Most Common And Lethal Form Of Motor Neuron Disease-a Case Report From Middle East (Nizamani WM et al) 9(2):156-158

LITERATURE

Searching Literature: A Challenge For Novice Researchers (Naqvi SMZH)

9(3):253

LIVER ENZYME

Effect Of Citrullus Lanatus Juice On Hemoglobin, Red Blood Cells And Liver Enzyme; An Experimental Study (Ali S et al) 9(4):257-260

LOCALIZATION

Localization Of Cyst Of Myelomeningocele Among Pediatric Patients (Fatima U et al) 9(2):117-119

Μ

MANAGEMENT Emergence And Management Of Muti-Drug Resistant Pseudomonas Aeruginosa Isolated From Intensive-Care Unit (Nadeem S et al) 9(2):137-140 Attitudes And Behavior Of Dentists Regarding Management Of Deep Carious Lesion (Javaid U et al) 9(3):206-209 MARIJUANA Medical Marijuana: A Hope For Resistant Epilepsy? (Anwer A 9(4):326 MATERNAL Incidence And Risk Factors Of Maternal And Fetal Outcomes Among Patients Of Placenta Previa With And Without Placenta Accreta (Khattak SN et al) 9(1):57-61 MEDICAL Gender Distribution Of Depression Among

Undergraduate Medical Students By Using PHQ-9 Scale (Sheikh S et al) 9(2):102-104 Awareness Of Medical Students Regarding Periodontal Disease In Diabetic Patients In A Private Dental College (Fatima N et al) 9(4):275-280

Reasons of Diagnostic Errors and the Ways to Overcome among Medical Residents (Sultana S et al) 9(4):324-325

Medical Marijuana: A Hope For Resistant Epilepsy? (Anwer A 9(4):326

Assessment of Teaching Strategy among Undergraduate Medical Students of Clinical Sciences (Jabeen S et al) 9(4):312-315 MELLITUS

Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus And Vitamin C (Ishrat S et al) 9(3):232-236

MENTAL

Effect Of Internet Addiction On Academic Performance And Mental Health Of Medical Students (Ali I et al) 9(1):48-52 METFORMIN The Triad Of PCOS, Infertility And Metformin (Khan A et al) 9(1):67-71 MIMICKING Huge Thyroglossal Duct Cyst Mimicking As Goiter In An Adult Man (Udaipurwala IH et al) 9(4):321-323 MINIMALLY INVASIVE DENTISTRY Awareness Regarding Minimally Invasive Dentistry among Dentists of Karachi (Khan SI et al) 9(4):294-298 MOBILE Hearing Loss Among Excessive Mobile Phone Users; A Cross Sectional Study At Bahawal Victoria And Civil Teaching Hospitals Bahawalpur (Shafique MA et al) 9(1):21-24

MOLARS

Dentists Perspective Regarding Prophylactic Removal Of Asymptomatic And Impacted Third Molars (Kadri WB et al) 9(3):214-217

MOTOR NEURON DISEASE Amyotrophic Lateral Sclerosis: The Most Common And Lethal Form Of Motor Neuron Disease-a Case Report From Middle East (Nizamani WM et al) 9(2):156-158

MULTI-DRUG RESISTANT Emergence And Management Of Muti-Drug Resistant Pseudomonas Aeruginosa Isolated From Intensive-Care Unit (Nadeem S et al) 9(2):137-140 MULTIPARA

Indications of Primary Cesarean Section In Multipara (Aftab S et al) 9(2):105-108 MYELOMENINGOCELE

Localization Of Cyst Of Myelomeningocele Among Pediatric Patients (Fatima U et al) 9(2):117-119

MYRINGOTOMY

Adenoidectomy Before Or After Myringotomy In A Single Stage Procedure: Does The Sequence Matter? (Hydru AS et al) 9(2):94-97

Ν

NECK Eagle's Syndrome Presenting As Unilateral Pain In The Anterolateral Neck And Referred Otalgia (Nizamani WM et al) 9(1):77-79 NEONATAL

Neonatal Outcomes In Cord Clamping And Its Association With Hematological

Parameters (Jamali Z et al) 9(4):271-274 NOCTURNAL

Nocturnal Enuresis In Children (Kazi A et al) 9(3):243-246

NOVICE

Searching Literature: A Challenge For

Novice Researchers (Naqvi SMZH) 9(3):253 NUTRIENT Dietary Antioxidant An Indispensible Nutrient (Junejo S et al) 9(1):80-82 NUTSHELL Pharmacological Treatment Of Osteoarthritis In A Nutshell (Munir M et al) 9(1):72-76

0

OBSTETRICIAN'S Dental Mangement Of Pregnant Patients: An Obstetrician's Perspective (Basit A et al) 9(2):113-116 **OCCUPATIONAL** Risk Factors Associated With Sino-Nasal Polyposis And Its Relationship With The Occupational Inhalants (Sajad Q et al) 9(4):290-293 OPHTHALMOLOGY Factors Influencing The Choice Of Ophthalmology As A Career Amongst Students Of Dow University Of Health Sciences, Karachi (Ariff H et al) 9(3):202-205 ORAL SUBMUCOUS FIBROSIS Estimation Of Salivary Superoxide Dismutase Level In Oral Submucous Fibrosis: A Clinical And Biochemical Study (Akhlaq H et al) 9(2):86-90 ORTHODONTICS Introducing Evidence Based Orthodontics Journal Club Using A Structured Pre And Post Test (Azeem M et al) 9(2):91-93 **OSTEOARTHRITIS** Pharmacological Treatment Of Osteoarthritis In A Nutshell (Munir M et al) 9(1):72-76

Comparison Of Diacerein-Ginger With Diacerein Alone In Treating Knee Osteoarthritis (Munir M et al) 9(4):308-311

OTALGIA

Eagle's Syndrome Presenting As Unilateral Pain In The Anterolateral Neck And Referred Otalgia (Nizamani WM et al) 9(1):77-79

Р

PAIN Eagle's Syndrome Presenting As Unilateral Pain In The Anterolateral Neck And Referred Otalgia (Nizamani WM et al) 9(1):77-79

PAPSMEAR TEST

Awareness Regarding Cervical Cancer And Pap Smear Test As A Screening Tool Among Married And Unmarried Females Of Karachi (Zainab W et al) 9(3):227-231 PARADIGM

Are We Ready For The Paradigm Shift In The Health Care System Of Pakistan? (Inayat H Thaver et al) 9(4):255-256

PARALYSIS Sleep Paralysis: An Overlooked Phenomenon (Kalam A et al) 9(1):83 PARAMETERS Neonatal Outcomes In Cord Clamping And Its Association With Hematological Parameters (Jamali Z et al) 9(4):271-274 PATIENTS Assessment Of Anxiety In Patients Attending Baqai Dental Teaching Hospital Karachi-A Cross Sectional Study (Wali A et al) 9(1):34-37 Perception Regarding Oral Health Among Patients Visiting Dental OPD (Asim S et al) 9(4):266-270 PEDIATRIC Localization Of Cyst Of Myelomeningocele Among Pediatric Patients (Fatima U et al) 9(2):117-119 PERFORMANCE Effect Of Internet Addiction On Academic Performance And Mental Health Of Medical Students (Ali I et al) 9(1):48-52 PERIAPICAL INFECTIONS Comparison of Calcium Hydroxide, Chlorhexidine and Triple Antibiotic Paste As Intracanal Medicaments In Patients With Acute Periapical Infections (Ahmed SA et al) 9(3):175-178 PERINATAL Assessment Of Perinatal Outcome Of Breech Presentation At A Tertiary Care Hospital, Quetta (Bibi S et al) 9(3):218-221 PERIODONTAL Awareness Of Medical Students Regarding Periodontal Disease In Diabetic Patients In A Private Dental College (Fatima N et al) 9(4):275-280 PHARMACOLOGICAL Pharmacological Treatment Of Osteoarthritis In A Nutshell (Munir M et al) 9(1):72-76 PHENOTYPIC Evaluation Of Phenotypic Methods For Detection Of Carbapenem Resistance In Isolates Of Pseudomonas Aeruginosa In A Tertiary Care Hospital (Bakhat S et al) 9(3):165-169 PHYSICAL THERAPY Association of Physical activity levels and BMI Among Doctor of Physical Therapy Students of a Private College from Karachi (Aziz K et al) 9(4):281-285 PLACENTA Incidence And Risk Factors Of Maternal And Fetal Outcomes Among Patients Of Placenta Previa With And Without Placenta Accreta (Khattak SN et al) 9(1):57-61 PLATELET Role of Vitamin E as a Preventive measure Against Platelet Aggregation In Pregnancy Induced Hypertension (Aamir K et al) 9(3):170-174

POPULATION

Grading Of Prostate Volume And International Prostatic Symptom Score (IPSS) In A Subset Of Karachi Population (Raza I et al) 9(1):30-33 POSTPRANDIAL Effect Of Withania Coagulans And Liraglutide On Serum Glp-1, Postprandial And Fasting Blood Glucose In Streptozotocin Induced Diabetic Rats (Samad A et al) 9(2):120-123 PPIUCD Outcome Of Immediate PPIUCD At Follow Up Visit In Women At A Tertiary Care Hospital In Karachi, Pakistan (Suboohi S et al) 9(1):43-47 PREFERENCES Differences In Learning Preferences Among Medical, Dental And DPT Students (Anum A et al) 9(3):222-226 PREGNANCY Role of Vitamin E as a Preventive measure Against Platelet Aggregation In Pregnancy Induced Hypertension (Aamir K et al) 9(3):170-174 PREMENSTRUAL SYNDROME Assessment Of Premenstrual Syndrome In Medical Students And Its Association With Progression Of Academic Years (Suboohi S et al) 9(3):210-213 PREVALENT Diagnosis Of Endometriosis In The Light Of Prevalent Theories (Azhar A et al) 9(4):316-320 PREVENTABLE Cervical Spondylosis; An Inevitable But Preventable Catastrophe (Ahmed SB et al) 9(3):237-242 PREVIA Incidence And Risk Factors Of Maternal And Fetal Outcomes Among Patients Of Placenta Previa With And Without Placenta Accreta (Khattak SN et al) 9(1):57-61 PRIVATE COLLEGE Association of Physical activity levels and BMI Among Doctor of Physical Therapy Students of a Private College from Karachi (Aziz K et al) 9(4):281-285 PROFIT Factors Associated With Patient Satisfaction - Evidence From A Primary Care Not For Profit Organization In Karachi, Pakistan (Siddiqi S et al) 9(1):38-42 PROGRESSION Assessment Of Premenstrual Syndrome In Medical Students And Its Association With Progression Of Academic Years (Suboohi S et al) 9(3):210-213 PROPHYLACTIC Dentists Perspective Regarding Prophylactic Removal Of Asymptomatic And Impacted Third Molars (Kadri WB et al) 9(3):214-217 PROSTATE Grading Of Prostate Volume And

International Prostatic Symptom Score (IPSS) In A Subset Of Karachi Population (Raza I et al) 9(1):30-33 Diagnostic Utility Of Various Biomarkers For Prostate Cancer: A Review (Nomani BH et al) 9(2):151-155 **PSEUDOMONAS** Carbapenem Resistance Of Pseudomonas Aeruginosa: A Review (Bakhat S et al) 9(2):141-146 Emergence And Management Of Muti-Drug Resistant Pseudomonas Aeruginosa Isolated From Intensive-Care Unit (Nadeem S et al) 9(2):137-140 Evaluation Of Phenotypic Methods For Detection Of Carbapenem Resistance In Isolates Of Pseudomonas Aeruginosa In A Tertiary Care Hospital (Bakhat S et al) 9(3):165-169

Q

OUALITY Importance of Quality in Medical and Dental Institutes (Bana KFMA et al) 9(2):159-161

R

RATS Evaluation Of Weight Changes On Wistar Rats Induced By Erythromycin And Aqueous Neem Leaves Extract (Adnan N et. Al) 9(1):03-07 REASONS Reasons of Diagnostic Errors and the Ways to Overcome among Medical Residents (Sultana S et al) 9(4):324-325 **RED BLOOD CELLS** Effect Of Citrullus Lanatus Juice On Hemoglobin, Red Blood Cells And Liver Enzyme; An Experimental Study (Ali S et al) 9(4):257-260 REDUCTION Open Reduction And Internal Fixation Of Ankle Fractures - Is Timing Of Surgery Important? (Shah FA et al) 9(1):13-16 RELATIONSHIP Risk Factors Associated With Sino-Nasal Polyposis And Its Relationship With The Occupational Inhalants (Sajad Q et al) 9(4):290-293 REMOVAL Dentists Perspective Regarding Prophylactic Removal Of Asymptomatic And Impacted Third Molars (Kadri WB et al) 9(3):214-217 RESEARCH Perception And Barriers Of Research Conduction Among Faculty Members Of BUMDC (Aziz K et al) 9(1):25-29 RESEARCHERS Searching Literature: A Challenge For Novice Researchers (Naqvi SMZH) 9(3):253 RESIDENTS Reasons of Diagnostic Errors and the Ways to Overcome among Medical Residents

(Sultana S et al) 9(4):324-325

RESISTANT

Medical Marijuana: A Hope For Resistant Epilepsy? (Anwer A 9(4):326 RICKSHAW

Assessment Of Hearing Status In Rickshaw Drivers Of Karachi (Mirza F et al) 9(1):08-12

RISK

Incidence And Risk Factors Of Maternal And Fetal Outcomes Among Patients Of Placenta Previa With And Without Placenta Accreta (Khattak SN et al) 9(1):57-61 Risk Factors Associated With Sino-Nasal Polyposis And Its Relationship With The Occupational Inhalants (Sajad Q et al) 9(4):290-293

Risk Factors Associated With Health And Wellness of Professional Automobile Drivers Of City Karachi, Pakistan (Faiz S et al) 9(4):261-265

S

SALIVARY Estimation Of Salivary Superoxide Dismutase Level In Oral Submucous Fibrosis: A Clinical And Biochemical Study (Akhlaq H et al) 9(2):86-90 SATISFACTION Factors Associated With Patient Satisfaction - Evidence From A Primary Care Not For Profit Organization In Karachi, Pakistan (Siddiqi S et al) 9(1):38-42 SCALE Assessment Of Depression Among The Dentists Of Karachi By Using AKUAD Scale (Bana KFMA et al) 9(3):183-187 SCREENING Awareness Regarding Cervical Cancer And Pap Smear Test As A Screening Tool Among Married And Unmarried Females Of Karachi (Zainab W et al) 9(3):227-231 SEARCHING Searching Literature: A Challenge For Novice Researchers (Naqvi SMZH) 9(3):253 SINO-NASAL POLYPOSIS Risk Factors Associated With Sino-Nasal Polyposis And Its Relationship With The Occupational Inhalants (Sajad Q et al) 9(4):290-293 SLEEP Sleep Paralysis: An Overlooked Phenomenon (Kalam A et al) 9(1):83 SMART PHONE Social And Health Related Effects of Smart Phone Usage Among University Students (Tariq J et al) 9(3):179-182 SOCIAL Social And Health Related Effects of Smart Phone Usage Among University Students (Tariq J et al) 9(3):179-182 SPONDYLOSIS Cervical Spondylosis; An Inevitable But Preventable Catastrophe (Ahmed SB et al) 9(3):237-242

STRATEGY

Assessment of Teaching Strategy among Undergraduate Medical Students of Clinical Sciences (Jabeen S et al) 9(4):312-315 STREPTOZOTOCIN Effect Of Withania Coagulans And Liraglutide On Serum Glp-1, Postprandial And Fasting Blood Glucose In Streptozotocin Induced Diabetic Rats (Samad A et al) 9(2):120-123 STRUCTURED Introducing Evidence Based Orthodontics

Journal Club Using A Structured Pre And Post Test (Azeem M et al) 9(2):91-93 SURGERY

Open Reduction And Internal Fixation Of Ankle Fractures - Is Timing Of Surgery Important? (Shah FA et al) 9(1):13-16 SURGICAL

Outcome Of Manual Vacuum Aspiration Vs Surgical Evacuation (Akmal F et al) 9(4):303-307

SYMPTOM

Grading Of Prostate Volume And International Prostatic Symptom Score (IPSS) In A Subset Of Karachi Population (Raza I et al) 9(1):30-33

Т

TEACHING Assessment Of Anxiety In Patients Attending Baqai Dental Teaching Hospital Karachi-A Cross Sectional Study (Wali A et al) 9(1):34-37 TERTIARY CARE HOSPITAL Outcome Of Immediate PPIUCD At Follow Up Visit In Women At A Tertiary Care Hospital In Karachi, Pakistan (Suboohi S et al) 9(1):43-47 Patterns Of Hysterosalpingographic

Findings In Infertile Patients Presenting In A Tertiary Care Hospital Of Quetta (Gul P et al) 9(4):299-302 TEST

Introducing Evidence Based Orthodontics Journal Club Using A Structured Pre And Post Test (Azeem M et al) 9(2):91-93 THEORIES

Diagnosis Of Endometriosis In The Light Of Prevalent Theories (Azhar A et al) 9(4):316-320

THYROGLOSSAL

Huge Thyroglossal Duct Cyst Mimicking As Goiter In An Adult Man (Udaipurwala IH et al) 9(4):321-323

TORUS MANDIBULARIS Patterns Of Torus Mandibularis And Torus Palatinus Among Dental Patients Of A Public Hospital In Karachi (Azhar R et al) 9(3):192-196

TORUS PALATINUS

Patterns Of Torus Mandibularis And Torus Palatinus Among Dental Patients Of A Public Hospital In Karachi (Azhar R et al) 9(3):192-196

TRIAD PCOS

The Triad Of PCOS, Infertility And Metformin (Khan A et al) 9(1):67-71 TUMORS Burden Of Cysts And Tumors Around Impacted Third Molars (Shahzad MA et al) 9(2):98-101

TYPHOID

Emergence Of XDR Typhoid: An Alarming State To The Health Professionals (Ahmed AS) 9(2):162

U UNDERGRADUATE

Gender Distribution Of Depression Among Undergraduate Medical Students By Using PHQ-9 Scale (Sheikh S et al) 9(2):102-104 Assessment of Teaching Strategy among Undergraduate Medical Students of Clinical Sciences (Jabeen S et al) 9(4):312-315 UNDERLYING

Improving Learning: Underlying Factors And Suggestions To Improve Learning In Health Profession (Fatima F et al) 9(3):250-252

UNILATERAL

Eagle's Syndrome Presenting As Unilateral Pain In The Anterolateral Neck And Referred Otalgia (Nizamani WM et al) 9(1):77-79

URETERIC CALCULI

Feasibility And Efficiency Of Ureterorenoscopy As A Day-care Procedure For Treatment Of Ureteric Calculi (Khan HS et al) 9(1):17-20 URETERORENOSCOPY Feasibility And Efficiency Of Ureterorenoscopy As A Day-care Procedure For Treatment Of Ureteric Calculi (Khan HS et al) 9(1):17-20 UTILITY Diagnostic Utility Of Various Biomarkers For Prostate Cancer: A Review (Nomani BH et al) 9(2):151-155

V

VACUUM Outcome Of Manual Vacuum Aspiration Vs Surgical Evacuation (Akmal F et al) 9(4):303-307

VARNISH

Clinical Assessment Of Bonding Agent v/s Fluoride Varnish In Dentinal

Hypersensitivity (Ahmed J et al)9(1):53-56

VICTORIA

Hearing Loss Among Excessive Mobile Phone Users; A Cross Sectional Study At Bahawal Victoria And Civil Teaching Hospitals Bahawalpur (Shafique MA et al) 9(1):21-24

VÌŤAMIN C

Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus And Vitamin C (Ishrat S et al) 9(3):232-236 VITAMIN D

Association Of Vitamin D Deficiency With Type 2 Diabetes (Shafique S et al) 9(4):286-289 Awareness Regarding Vitamin D Amongst The Medical And Non-medical Students Of Karachi (Dahar A et al) 9(3):197-201 VITAMIN E

Role of Vitamin E as a Preventive measure Against Platelet Aggregation In Pregnancy Induced Hypertension (Aamir K et al) 9(3):170-174

W

WATER Water and Human Health (Karim N) 9(3):163-164

WÉIGHT

Evaluation Of Weight Changes On Wistar Rats Induced By Erythromycin And Aqueous Neem Leaves Extract (Adnan N et. Al) 9(1):03-07

WESTERGREN METHOD

Correlation Between Automated And The Westergren Method For Determination Of ESR (Mushtaq H et al) 9(2):109-112 WILLINGNESS

Willingness To Pay And Its Role In Health Economics (Abbas SM et al) 9(1):62-66 WITHANIA

Effect Of Withania Coagulans And Liraglutide On Serum Glp-1, Postprandial And Fasting Blood Glucose In Streptozotocin Induced Diabetic Rats

(Samad A et al) 9(2):120-123

Instructions to Author

The Journal of Bahria University Medical and Dental College abbreviated as JBUMDC is a peer reviewed quarterly multidisciplinary biomedical journal of basic and clinical health sciences. It accepts manuscripts prepared in accordance with the "Uniform Requirements for Submission of Manuscripts for Biomedical Journals, updated December 2015", adopted by International Committee of Medical Journal Editors (ICMJE) & PMDC guidelines for medical & Dental journals. The Journal will encompass manuscripts from all fields of biomedical sciences in the form of Editorial (Invited/Editor), Original Article, Review Article (narrative reviews and systematic reviews), short communication, (Commentary), specical communication, brief report, recent advances, book review, personal views, case study, clinical images/visual vignette and letter to editor.

Peer Review Policy:

Every paper will be read by the editor and then will be sent to two reviewers. If statistical analysis is included examination by the staff statistician will be carried out.

Plagiarism:

JBUMDC follows the ICMJE, PMDC and HEC guidelines. Each manusript will be scrutinized.

Preparation of Manuscript:

Type the manuscript on ISO A4 (212×297 mm), with margins of at least 25 mm (1 inch). Type or print on only one side of the paper. Use double spacing throughout the manuscript. Start each section on new page. Number pages consecutively, beginning with the title page. Put the page number in the lower right-hand corner of each page.

Contents of Manuscript for submission:

Submission items include a Covering letter, Letter of undertaking duly signed by all authors, Ethicel Review Committee (ERC) Letter, Title page and the Manuscript [Abstract, Key words, Introduction, Methodology, Results, Discussion, Conclusion, Acknowledgement, Authorship, Conflict of interest, References, Tables , Figures]. Title page should have complete title of the manuscript, the names of all authors with qualifications, their department, affiliation, telephone number, e-mail, corresponding author, address for correspondence, short running title, source of funding (grant/equipment/drugs), number of figures and tables, total word count, total number of pages.

1. Abstract

It should have no more than 150 words for unstructured abstracts or 250 words for structured abstracts. The abstract should state the purpose of the study(objective), basic procedures (methodology with study design, subjects/animals, place & duration of study, drug/chemical/equipment,

procedure or protocol), main findings (results) and conclusion. It should emphasize new and important aspects of the study. Below the abstract provide, 3-10 key words that will assist indexers in cross-indexing the article and may be published with the abstract.

2. Introduction

State the purpose of the article and summarize the rationale for the study. Give only strictly pertinent references and do not include data or conclusions from the work being reported.

3. Methodology:

Describe your selection of the observational or experimental subjects (patients or laboratory animals, including controls) clearly. Identify the age, sex, and other important characteristics of the subjects. Identify the methods, apparatus (give the manufacturer's name and address in parentheses), and procedures in sufficient detail to allow other workers to reproduce the results. Identify precisely all drugs and chemicals used, including generic name(s), dose(s), and route(s) of administration. For randomized clinical trials provide information on all major study elements, including the protocol (study population, interventions or exposures, outcomes, and the rationale for statistical analysis), assignment of interventions (methods of randomization, concealment of allocation to treatment groups), and the method of masking (blinding). Authors submitting review manuscripts should include a section describing the methods used for locating, selecting, extracting, and synthesizing data. These methods should also be summarized in the abstract. All studies must be approved by the relevant Ethics Committee/Institution Review Board of the respective institutions.

4. Results

Present your results in logical sequence in the text, tables, and illustrations. Do not repeat in the text all the data in the tables or illustrations; emphasize or summarize only important observations. Describe appropriate indicators of measurement error or uncertainty such as confidence intervals, P values. Report complications of treatment and dropouts from a clinical trial. Specify any general-use computer programs employed for analysis.

5. Discussion and Conclusion

Emphasize the new and important aspects of the study and the conclusions that follow from them. Do not repeat in detail data or other material given in the Introduction or the Results section. Include in the Discussion section the implications of the findings and their limitations, including implications for future research. Relate the observations to other relevant studies. Link the conclusions with the goals of the study.

6. Acknowledgment

List all contributors who do not meet the criteria for authorship, such as a person who provided purely technical help, writing assistance, or a department chair who provided only general support. Financial and material support should also be acknowledged.

7. Authorship

Authorship credit is based only on the criteria laid down by International committee of Medical Journal Editors (http://www.icmje.org/recommendations/browse/roles-andresponsibilibies/defining-the-role-of-authore-andcontributors. html).1) substantial contributions to conception and design, or acquisition of data, or analysis and interpretation of data; 2) drafting the article or revising it critically for important intellectual content; and 3) final approval of the version to be published. 4) Agreement to be Accountable for all aspects of the work in ensuring that questions related to the accuracy or integrity of any part of the work are appropriately investigated and resolved. All Conditions must be met. Authors should provide a description of what each contributed.

8. Conflict of interest

All authors have to disclose and submit any financial /personnel relationship that might bias and inappropriately influence their work.

9. References

Majority of the references must be from last five years. Local references must also be included. Vancouver style should be followed. Examples are:

a) Standard journal article

List the first six authors followed by et al. I)Less than 6 authors:

Vega KJ, Pina I, Krevsky B. Heart transplantation is associated with an increased risk for pancreato-biliary disease. Ann Intern Med 1996; 1;124 (11):980-3

II) More than six authors:

Parkin DM, Clayton D, Black RJ, Masuyer E, Friedl HP, Ivanov E, et al. Childhood leukaemia in Europe after Chernobyl: 5 year follow-up. Br J Cancer 1996;73:1006-12

b) Organization as author

The Cardiac Society of Australia and New Zealand. Clinical exercise stress testing. Safety and performance guidelines. Med J Aust 1996; 164: 282-4

c) No author given

Cancer in South Africa [editorial]. S Afr Med J 1994;84:15

d) Chapter in a book

Phillips SJ, Whisnant JP. Hypertension and stroke. In: Laragh

JH, Brenner BM, editors. Hypertension: pathophysiology, diagnosis, and management. 2nd ed. New York: Raven Press; 1995. p. 465-78

e) Newspaper

Hasan Mansoor. Excessive use of drugs creating resistance to antibiotics. The Dawn 2013, 24 June; sect. Metropolitan (col.1-4)

10. Tables

Type or print out each table with double spacing on a separate sheet of paper. Number tables consecutively in the order of their first citation in the text and supply a brief title for each. Give each column a short or abbreviated heading. Place explanatory matter in footnotes. Explain in footnotes all nonstandard abbreviations that are used in each table. Identify statistical measures of variations, such as standard deviation and standard error of the mean. Do not use internal horizontal and vertical rules.

11. Illustrations (Figures)

Figures should be professionally drawn and photographed. Photographic prints $127 \times 173 \text{ mm} (5 \times 7 \text{ inches})$. Photomicro-graphs should have internal scale markers. Symbols, arrows, or letters used in photomicro graphs should contrast with the background. If photographs of people are used, either the subjects must not be identifiable or their pictures must be accompanied by written permission to use the photograph.

Figures should be numbered consecutively according to the order in which they have been first cited in the text. If a figure has been published, acknowledge the original source and submit written permission from the copyright holder to reproduce the material.

Legends for Illustrations

Type or print out legends for illustrations using double spacing, starting on a separate page, with Arabic numerals corresponding to the illustrations. When symbols, arrows, numbers, or letters are used to identify parts of the illustrations, identify and explain each one clearly in the legend. Explain the internal scale and identify the method of staining in photomicrographs.

Units of Measurement

Measurements of length, height, weight, and volume should be reported in metric units. Temperatures in degrees Celsius, Blood pressure in millimeters of mercury and all hematologic and clinical chemistry measurements in the metric system in terms of the International System of Units (SI).

Abbreviations and Symbols

Use only standard abbreviations. Avoid abbreviations in the title and abstract. The full term for which an abbreviation stands should precede its first use in the text unless it is a standard unit of measurement.

Sending the Manuscript to the Journal

Submit manuscript by e-mail: editor.bumdc@bahria.edu.pk

or by post on CD with two hard copies to: Editor, JBUMDC, Bahria University Medical & Dental College, Sailor Street, DHA Phase-II, Adjacent PNS Shifa, Karachi. All correspondence regarding submitted manuscripts will be via e-mail.

S No	Type of	Abstract type and word	Key words	Total word	References	Tables	Figures
	Article	count		count		(Max)	(Max)
1	Editorial	-	-	1000-1500	10-12	-	-
2	Review Article	Unstructured (150)	3-6	3000-3500	40-60	4	2
3	Original Article	Structured (250)	3-10	2500-3000	20-30	4	3
4	Medical Education	1. Original Structured (250)	3-10	2500-3000	20-30	4	3
		2. Review Unstructured (150)	3-6	3000-3500	40-60	4	2
		3. Reproducible work (guide lines, questionnaire)	Mention Source, Accessed on, Retrieval date				
5	Short Communication /Commentary/ Opinions/ Perspective	-	-	1200-1500	15-20	2	1
6	Student Corner	1. Original article Structured (250)	3-10	2500-3000	20-30	4	3
		2. Views/Perspectives/ Opinions Unstructured (150)	3-6	1200-1500	8-10	1	1
7	Case Report	Unstructured (150)	3-5	1200-1300	10-12	1	5
8	Letter to Editor	-	-	400-500	1-5	-	-

JBUMDC

Journal of Bahria University Medical & Dental College

Peer Reviewed Multidisciplinary Quarterly Published Journal ISSN (print): 2220-7562, ISSN (online): 2617-9482 Recognized by PM&DC (IP/0072)

Online edition is available at URL: https://jbumdc.bahria.edu.pk,

Indexed with Index Medicus for the Eastern Mediterranean Region (IMEMR),

ROAD Directory of Open Access Scholarly Resources at https://portal.issn.org/

Pakmedinet at www.pakmedinet.com/jbumdc,

Google Scholar at https://scholar.google.com.pk/,

Bahira University DSpace Repository at http://111.68.99.22:8080/xmlui/handle/123456789/6388,

Pakistan Scientific and Technological Information Center (PASTIC) at http://pastic.gov.pk/



Journal of Bahria University Medical & Dental College

Published by Bahria University Medical & Dental College Adjacent PNS SHIFA DHA Phase II Karachi, Pakistan +92-21-35319491-9 # http://jbumdc.bahria.edu.pk editor.bumdc@bahria.edu.pk f https://www.facebook.com/journal.bumdc.7